T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Major Applications

Planning

Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 5 JANUARY
2016

Time: 6.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS8

1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)

lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman)
Peter Curling

Jazz Dhillon

Janet Duncan (Labour Lead)
Carol Melvin

John Morgan

Brian Stead

David Yarrow

Published: Friday 18 December 2015

Contact: Kiran Grover
Tel: 01895 556454
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=325&Year=0

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking V/

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at

the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a S umé\\

short walk away. Limited parking is available at Pavilions &, gypube and b

the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Shapping -} G S
Centra

how to book a parking space, please contact
Democratic Services. Please enter from the
Council’'s main reception where you will be car gk
directed to the Committee Room. e mm.m.

Muziaming

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is

available for use in the various meeting rooms.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make
their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in writing
to the Council in advance of the meeting. Where
there is a petition opposing a planning application
there is also the right for the applicant or their
agent to address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with by
the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at the
beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1
2
3

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meetings 28 October
2015 and 18 November 2015

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered in public
and those items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

1-10

Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
6 | 511 Uxbridge Road Townfield | Demolition of existing 4-bedroom 11-36
Hayes house and erection of 2, three
storey blocks comprising 10 two- | 106 - 112
15988/APP/2014/4271 bedroom flats, with associated
access, parking and amenity
space.
Recommendation: Refusal
7 | Waterloo Wharf Uxbridge Erection of 2 blocks containing 52 | 37 - 80
Waterloo Road South one, two and three bedroom
Uxbridge apartments, together with 113-135
associated parking access and
43016/APP/2014/4486 landscaping, involving demolition

of existing buildings.

Recommendation: Refusal




Major Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
8 | Material Store, the Old | Botwell Approval of reserved matters 81-104
Vinyl Factory Blyth relating to the appearance and the
Road Hayes landscaping of Phase 2 of The Old 136 -
Vinyl Factory Masterplan: The 144
59872/APP/2015/3991 Material Store as required by

Conditions 2 and 3 of planning
permission ref.
59872/APP/2013/3775.

Recommendation: Approval

PART | - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee 105 -

144




This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes
MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE
28 October 2015

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Agenda ltem 3

- RORWARS

FHILLINGDON

LONDON

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman)
lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman)

Peter Curling

Jazz Dhillon

Carol Melvin

John Morgan

Brian Stead

David Yarrow

John Oswell

LBH Officers Present:

Charles Francis (Democratic Services Officer).

Alex Chrusciak (Planning Services Manager), Adrien Waite (Major Applications
Manager), Syed Shah (Principal Highways Engineer), Sarah White (Legal Advisor) and

64. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

with Councillor John Oswell acting as substitute.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Janet Duncan,

65. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE

THIS MEETING (Agenda ltem 2)

None.

66. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD
ON 26 AUGUST AND 6 OCTOBER 2015 (Agenda Item 3)

Were agreed as an accurate record.

67. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR

URGENT (Agenda Item 4)

None.

68. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2

WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

All items were considered in public.

Page 1




LAND EAST OF THE FORMER EMI SITE, 120 BLYTH ROAD,
HAYES - 51588/APP/2015/1613 (Agenda Item 6)

Minor amendments to design, external appearance and car
parking layout through variation of condition 2 of Planning
Consent reference 51588/APP/2011/2253 for the 'Demolition of
warehouse extension to Apollo House and erection of a part 4,
part 5, part 6 and part 7 storey building comprising 132 residential
units, cafe (class A3), Community room (class D2), 5 x workshop
units (class B1, B8 or a2 uses), and associated car parking and
landscaping'.

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the
application.

Officers explained that the variation of the condition would permit the
approved plans to be altered so that minor revisions could be made to
the proposal. The Committee were informed that these changes
complied with the policies of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan (2012).

It was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote agreed that the
application be approved.

Resolved -

That the application be approved.

HOLLAND & HOLLAND SHOOTING SCHOOL, DUCKS HILL ROAD,
NORTHWOOD - 16568/APP/2015/2277 (Agenda Item 7)

Variation of Condition 2 (Approved drawings) of planning
application 16568/APP/2013/3588 (Single storey ground floor
extension to the lodge and construction of basement) to allow for
a variation to the finished floor levels, increase in the ridge height
of the building, increase in the size and depth of the basement,
retention of spoil on site and associated internal alterations.

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the
application.

It was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote agreed that the
application be approved.

Resolved -

That the application be approved.

The meeting, which commenced at 6pm, closed at 6:07pm

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Charles Francis on 01895 277488. Circulation of these
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 2




Minutes ;g‘

MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE

Safel

“ IO QWAL

18 November 2015 HILINDON

LONDON
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman), Peter Curling
Jazz Dhillon, Janet Duncan (Labour Lead), Carol Melvin, John Morgan, Brian Stead
and David Yarrow

LBH Officers Present:

James Rodger (Head of Planning and Enforcement), Adrien Waite (Major Applications
Manager), Syed Shah (Transport Consultant), Nicole Cameron (Legal advisor) and Jon Pitt
(Democratic Services Officer).

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

No apologies for absence had been received.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda ltem 2)

There were no Declarations of Interest made.

3. MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Iltem
3)

No matters had been notified in advance of the meeting or were urgent.

4. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN
PUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE
(Agenda ltem 4)

It was confirmed that all agenda items were Part | and would, therefore, be considered
in public.

5. FORMER ROYAL BRITISH LEGION CLUB, SIPSON ROAD, WEST DRAYTON -
829/APP/2014/4252 (Agenda ltem 5)

The redevelopment of the site to accommodate a 7 storey 91 room hotel,
including a basement level and associated parking and landscaping.

Officers introduced the report and referred Members to the addendum sheet circulated.
The proposed scheme was for the development of a vacant Royal British Legion site.
This included the demolition of the existing club building, with the proposed hotel to
include a basement car park with 23 parking spaces. It was noted that the principal of
hotel use at the site had been previously established through a previously approved
scheme for a four storey, 54 room hotel.

Page 3




The site was adjacent to, but not within, the green belt and it was therefore considered
that the scheme would not have a negative impact on the visual amenity of the green
belt.

Although the proposed hotel building would be seven storeys tall, it was noted that the
two upper two floors would be stepped back from the front and side elevations of the
lower floors. The height of the development would be consistent with the neighbouring
Park Hotel development. The proposed street landscaping, car parking and highway
arrangements were considered to be consistent with planning policy. Accordingly,
officers recommended that the application be approved.

A Member questioned why the proposed development was not exclusively four storey
and asked whether it could be combined with the existing Park Hotel. The Member
considered that the proposed structure was unacceptably high, although they had been
satisfied with the previously submitted proposal for construction of a four storey hotel.
Concerns were also raised by the Member in relation to what they considered was the
excessively blue colour of the proposed building and the visual impact of the
development on a public footpath that passed through the site. Officers advised that, as
the application site was not within the green belt, any visual impact on users of the
footpath was not relevant to the determination of the application.

Further Members expressed concerns about the height of the building, its appearance
and effect on the adjacent green belt. Officers confirmed that existing buildings at the
complex were between four and six storeys in height. The Legal Advisor stated that if
the application was refused by the Committee and subsequently went to appeal, the
Planning Inspector would consider the height of neighbouring buildings in comparison
to the proposals. It was also noted that the colour of the buildings could be covered by
a planning condition and that, therefore, this should not be included in any reasons for
refusal, in the event that the Committee made such a decision.

In response to a Member question about disabled access to bedrooms and the
apparent absence of a door within the submitted plans, officers advised that this
appeared to be error in the plans.

Other Members stated that they did not object to the proposals as the development
was not within the green belt and it also complied with relevant Council policies. In
addition, the visual impact when viewed from a distance would be minimal.

A recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was
agreed by six votes for to one against, with one abstention.

It was further agreed that authority would be granted to the Head of Planning and
Enforcement to agree the wording of the reasons for refusal with the Chairman and
Labour Lead.

RESOLVED - That the application be refused, subject to the following:

- Delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
agree the wording of the reasons for refusal with the Chairman and Labour Lead.

211-213 SWAKELEYS ROAD - 70701/APP/2015/3026 (Agenda Item 6)
Page 4




Demolition of the existing 2 x detached dwellings and erection of a two storey
residential development with a lower ground floor and accommodation within the
roof space. The development comprises of 6 x 1 bed flats and 6 x 2 bed flats.

Officers introduced the report and referred Members to the addendum sheet circulated.
It was noted that the two proposed dwellings had been designed to replicate the
appearance of two buildings within the plot. Although the buildings would be joined by a
glazed link, this would be set back from the front elevations. The proposals included 12
parking spaces, which was equivalent to one space per dwelling and amenity space.

The overall design, size and scale of the proposed building was considered to have an
acceptable impact on occupants of surrounding buildings and would not have a
detrimental impact on their amenity. The development would also be within acceptable
limits for housing in the area. The scheme was considered to have an acceptable
impact on the surrounding highway network. Accordingly, officers recommended that
the application be approved.

Members felt that the proposals provided much needed housing and that the designs
were sympathetic to the surrounding area. A Member asked what percentage of
houses within the area close to the proposed development had been converted to flats.
Officers advised that this information was contained within the officer report. The
Council had identified three properties (five including the application site) over a 1 km
length for which consent had been granted or implemented for the conversion of
buildings.

Members expressed concern about the number of side windows that appeared to be
facing towards habitable rooms and that the separation appeared to only be 3 metres,
while planning policies specified that the minimum separation should be 15 metres.
Concerns were also raised about the amount of light that these rooms would receive.
Some Members felt that the proposals were, therefore, unacceptable.

The Chairman reflected that the proposals appeared to be acceptable in broad terms
but that there were concerns about the light that would be received by three habitable
rooms.

Officers advised that conditions could be attached to some of the windows to increase
the level of light. The Legal Advisor confirmed that the concerns raised were likely to be
overturned at appeal in the event that the Committee cited them as reasons for refusal.
It would be possible for the concerns to be addressed through additional conditions.

A Member asked whether there would be enough room for a bed to be placed in one of
the rooms that was marked as a study. Officers advised that the room was smaller than
the size for it to be considered to be a bedroom but that it was likely that the room
would be physically large enough to accommodate a bed. However, it would not be
practical to enforce a condition in relation to this.

Some Members felt that the Committee should base its decision on the planning
guidance. This stated that the external windows of habitable rooms should not be
separated by less than 15 metres from the windows of other habitable rooms. Officers
advised that the minimum separation of 15 metres was guidance and therefore did not
carry as much weight in the determination of a decision as a policy would.

It was agreed that authority would be granted to the Head of Planning and Enforcement
to agree, outside the meeting, the wording of conditions in relation to the siting of oriel
windows.

Page 5




The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was agreed by four votes in favour to three against, with one abstention.

RESOLVED - That the application be approved as per the officers’
recommendation, subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the
officer's report , the addendum sheet circulated and the following:

- Delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
agree wording in relation to the siting of oriel windows with the Chairman and
Labour Lead.

IMPERIAL HOUSE, VICTORIA ROAD, RUISLIP - 5039/APP/2014/3715 (Agenda
Item 7)

Construction of an A1 discount food store with associated car parking and
landscaping on the site of the former Imperial House. External refurbishment of
Units 1 and 2.

Officers introduced the report and referred Members to the addendum sheet circulated.
The application proposed demolition of the vacant single storey Imperial House and
replacement with a building that would house a Lidl food store.

It was noted that the application was the resubmission of a similar scheme that had
been refused permission in April 2014. This refusal had been based upon the likely
impact on other retailers, highways issues and the lack of a legal agreement and flood
risk plan. Officers advised that Members should focus on these issues when
considering the application. It was also noted that the site was within a designated IBA.
There was no bulky goods restriction at the site following a previous appeal and the
principal of industrial use had already been established.

Approval of the application would enable vacant land, which was currently not
contributing to the local economy, to be brought back into use. There had been
significant changes since the refusal of the previous application. An updated retail
impact assessment had concluded that the proposals would not have an adverse
impact on the viability other retail centres. Issues in relation to highways were complex,
but the key conclusion was that the development would not cause an unacceptable
impact in terms of either traffic or safety. Overall, officers considered that the issues
that had resulted in refusal of the previous application had been overcome to the extent
that the current application was recommended for approval.

A number of additional consultation responses had been received from the public in
relation to application, the majority of which were in support. At the time of publication
of the addendum, there had been 54 additional responses received in support of the
application and 4 against. A petition in support of the application was also presented to
the Committee. While the petition had been received too late for formal consideration, it
was noted that the petition contained 52 signatures.

Members expressed concerns that the parking at the site would not be sufficient, which
could cause congestion in nearby roads. Concerns were also raised that there was a
possibility that pedestrian safety could be compromised by delivery vehicles, given the
proposed site layout. Officers advised that the site currently contained 85 spaces. The
proposals would add 19 spaces to give an on-site total of 104. This was only slightly
less than the forecast peak requirement of 116 parking spaces. It was also noted that
the proposed scheme complied with the maximum number of parking spaces permitted

Page 6




for either retail or non-retail use, which would be 162. There was no minimum
requirement. In relation to pedestrian safety, officers advised that the proposed Lidl
store was of a standard format used in locations across the country and they were not
aware of any serious incidents or safety concerns at these other locations.

In response to a Member question about disabled access, officers confirmed that there
would be not be an impact as access was separate. Some Members remained
concerned that the footprint for the site was too small for the proposed development.
The Chairman reflected that while the Committee appeared to be satisfied with the
proposal in principle, there were concerns about highways issues, particularly in
relation to parking and traffic volumes. Officers advised that these concerns did not
amount to strong planning grounds for refusal and that parking related issues were
particularly difficult to win at appeal. It was questioned whether conditions could be
used to require the applicant to manage traffic at the site. In response, officers advised
that this would not be practical in this case.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was agreed by six votes in favour to one against, with one abstention.

RESOLVED - That the application be approved as per the officers’
recommendation, subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the
officer's report and the addendum sheet circulated.

GRASSY MEADOW DAY CENTRE, GRANGE ROAD, HAYES -
48110/APP/2015/3436 (Agenda ltem 8)

1. Demolition of existing Day Centre.

2. Erection of a single part 3 and part 4 storey building comprising: 88 number of
1 bed Extra-Care units (C2 Use Class) and 700 sqm dementia resource centre
with communal lounge and associated service facilities (D1 Use Class).

3. Associated soft and hard landscaping (including ancillary structures such as
bin stores & storage shed).

4. Provision of car parking.

Officers introduced the report and referred Members to the addendum sheet circulated.
The application proposed demolition of an existing Day Centre and complete
redevelopment of the site to provide extra care housing units, a specialised Dementia
Resource Centre and associated facilities. The proposed development was part three
storey and part four storey.

It was noted that the proposals complied with current planning policy. This sought to
encourage new residential schemes, including those which cater for people in need of
additional care. The development, which would utilise a modern design, would be well
screened by trees with all rooms receiving adequate light. There would be no
significant impact on the local highway network. Accordingly, officers recommended
that the application be approved.

Some Members considered that the scale of the proposed development was excessive
given that it was within Metropolitan Open Land, although they would not consider a
smaller development at the site to be inappropriate. One Member considered that the
suggestion that the proposals complied with the planning policy that sought to
encourage new residential schemes was a weak argument. This was because the
argument could be applied to the development of land anywhere in the Borough.

Officers advised that being within Metropolitan Open Land did not give the land the
same status as would be afforded to it if it was within the Green Belt. It was also

Page 7




considered that proposed tree planting would help to limit the impact of the
development on the Metropolitan Open Land. The Chairman stated that the fact that
there was already existing development at the site was an important factor in the
determination of whether the development would be appropriate.

A Member sought assurances that there was suitable protection on the ground floor of
the proposed development to prevent vulnerable dementia patients leaving the
premises undetected. Officers considered that there had been much attention to detail
with regard to the application and were confident that the relevant arrangements would
be satisfactory to ensure the safety of residents.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote
was agreed by five votes in favour to three against.

RESOLVED - That the application be approved as per the officers’
recommendation, subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the
officer's report and the addendum sheet circulated.

WEST LONDON INDUSTRIAL PARK, IVER LANE, COWLEY - 751/APP/2015/335
(Agenda Item 9)

Continued use of the site for B8 purposes with new storage and ancillary
workshop and office buildings, car parking, external storage area and new
access to Wallingford Road.

Officers introduced the application, noting that the scheme proposed to create a new
site access point so that all traffic associated with the operator would be able to gain
access via Cowley Mill Road / Wallingford Road. This access had been opened
previously but closure had been secured via condition. It was considered that the
proposals were likely to result in a significant number of lorries using the local road
network. Approval of the proposals would create a relatively large area of industrial
land. Officers considered that this was likely to result in excessive noise and traffic and
to prejudice general highway and pedestrian safety. Accordingly, officers
recommended that the application be refused.

The recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being to the vote was
agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED: that the application be refused as per the officers recommendation.

10.

PARK VIEW DAY CENTRE, FARRIER CLOSE, HILLINGDON -
60469/APP/2015/3368 (Agenda Item 10)

Erection of a 3 storey building (including a lower ground level) comprising 60
Extra-Case Units (C2 Use Class), associated facilities, parking and landscaping
(involving demolition of existing building at the site).

Officers introduced the report and referred Members to the addendum sheet circulated.
It was noted that although the exiting day care facility at the site was currently vacant, it
had provided day care facilities until recently.

It was considered that the scheme would not have a detrimental impact on the
character and appearance of the surrounding area, nor to the amenities of the
surrounding residential occupants or highway network. Accordingly, the officer
recommendation was for the applicatioFr] até)ebg approved.




Members asked for confirmation that the rooms that were closest to an earth bank
would receive adequate light. With regard to the proximity of some rooms to the bank, it
was confirmed that these room would receive adequate daylight. Appropriate wording
would be included in the Landscape Maintenance Schedule to ensure that the bank
would be maintained as a green area. Officers further advised that the proposals were
compliant with planning policies with regard to the separation between rooms. In
response to a Member question about amenity space, officers advised that all units had
winter gardens.

It was agreed that authority would be granted to the Head of Planning and Enforcement
to further investigate the issue of contaminated land in relation to the development site.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being to the vote was
agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED - That the application be approved as per the officers’
recommendation, subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the
officer's report , the addendum sheet circulated and the following:

- Delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
further investigate the issue of contaminated land in relation to the development
site.

The meeting, which commenced at 6:00 pm, closed 8:05 pm

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Jon Pitt on 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 511 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Demolition of existing 4-bedroom house and erection of 2, three storey blocks
comprising 10 two-bedroom flats, with associated access, parking and amenit'
space.

LBH Ref Nos: 15988/APP/2014/4271

Drawing Nos: 511UXBR PLOZ
511UXBR PLOS
511UXBR PLO0O4/
511UXBR/PLO1A
511UXBR/PLO5C
Design and Access Statemen
Renewable Energy Statemen

Date Plans Received: 03/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/04/2015
Date Application Valid: 09/07/2015 03/12/2014

1. SUMMARY

This scheme seeks permission to demolish the existing house and re-develop the site in
depth to provide two, three storey blocks, one sited behind the other, to provide 10 two-
bedroom flats with associated access, parking and amenity space.

This scheme constitutes a cramped form of backland development, that greatly exceeds the
Mayor's density guidance and is considered to represent inappropriate development of a
rear garden, that together with scale and design of the blocks, would result in a scheme
that would appear incongruous and fail to harmonise with the prevalent suburban character
of the area. The over-development of the site is evidenced by the flatted blocks failing to
provide adequate set backs from the site boundaries, excessive areas of hardstanding as
compared to inadequate landscaping and amenity space and the lack of any bin storage,
cycle parking provision or electric charging points, the provision of which would be likely to
further erode the limited external landscaping space.

Furthermore, the scheme would result in the loss of privacy to the adjoining occupier and
fails to provide an acceptable standard of residential accommodation for its future
occupiers. The scheme also fails to demonstrate that existing trees on and off site will not
be affected by the proposed development and/or create adequate space for their
replacement as part of a comprehensive landscape scheme nor does it assess ecological
impacts.

The scheme also does not make provision for wheelchair users and although the submitted
energy statement concludes that energy efficiency would be delivered by the use of
photovoltaic panels, the scheme fails to demonstrate that these could be adequately
accommodated on site. The scheme also fails to assess the implications of the
development in terms of air quality and the noise environment and whether any mitigation
would be required. Finally, the scheme makes no provision for affordable housing.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



The scheme is therefore recommended for refusal.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its design, layout, height, siting and scale
represents an excessively dense and cramped form of development, which fails to maintain
adequate undeveloped gaps to the site boundaries. As such, the proposal would result in
an unduly intrusive, visually dominant and inappropriate form of development, out of
keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area and the streetscene.
The principle of intensifying the residential use of the site to the level proposed, as well as
the proposed loss of existing private rear garden area, would have a detrimental impact on
the character and appearance of the surrounding residential area, including the adjoining
Hayes Village Conservation Area. The proposal is therefore contrary to the NPPF (March
2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan, Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE4, BE13, BE19,
BE22 and H12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and the Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal by reason of the siting of the proposed window(s) would give rise to actual
and perceived overlooking of the adjoining property, No. 513 Uxbridge Road and its rear
garden, that would result in the unacceptable loss of their privacy and residential amenity,
contrary to Policies BE19 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the Council's HDAS 'Residential Layouts'.

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of the proximity of block 2 to the rear boundary and
the external and internal layout of the blocks, fails to provide an acceptable standard of
residential amenity for their future occupier. The proposal also fails to make provision for
the secure and screened storage of refuse and recycling waste, cycle parking and passive
and active electric vehicle charging points contrary to Policy 3.5, 5.17, 6.9 and 6.13 of the
London Plan (March 2015) and Policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal fails to provide a sufficient quantity and quality of conveniently located and
usable external amenity space for the occupiers of the flatted blocks, resulting in a
development that would provide a poor standard of residential accommodation, contrary to
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (March 2015), Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Council's
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
Council's HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'.

5 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application fails to demonstrate that existing trees on and off site will not be affected by
the proposed development and has not made provision for their protection and/or created
adequate space for their replacement as part of a comprehensive landscape scheme for
the site. The scheme is therefore harmful to the character and appearance of the area,
contrary to Policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absense of an ecological assessment, the proposals fail to demonstrate that
protected species would not be adversely affected by the proposed development and that
appropriate replacement and/or enhancement of the ecological interest/features on site
would be provided. The development is therefore contrary to the NPPF (March 2012),
Policy 7.19 of the London Plan (March 2015) and Policies EC2 and ECS5 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The scheme fails to make adequate provision for housing which is accessible and
adaptable for wheelchair users, contrary to Policy 3.8 of the London Plan (March 2015) and
the Council's SPD HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon.

8 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absense of any noise assessment, the application fails to demonstrate that the
proposed residential accommodation would provide suitable residential accommodation,
given its likely exposure to noise generated by traffic on the adjoining Uxbridge Road and
the need for any mitigation measures, contrary to Policy 7.15 of the London Plan (March
2015), Policy OES5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and the Council's SPD: 'Noise'.

9 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absense of an air quality assessment, the scheme fails to demonstrate that the
impacts of the development upon local air quality and any threats to residential occupiers
can be suitably mitigated. As such, the scheme is contrary to Policy 7.14 of the London
Plan (March 2015) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance: 'Air Quality'.

10 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absense of details of the siting and appearance of the photovoltaic panels, the
scheme fails to demonstrate that the overall quantum of panels required to satisfy the
Mayor's energy reduction targets can be adequately sited on site, contrary to Policy 5.2 of
the London Plan (March 2015).

11 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to provide, through an appropriate legal agreement, an adequate
provision of on site affordable housing. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy 3.3 of
the London Plan (March 2015) and Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2015) Renewable energy

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 5.17 (2015) Waste capacity

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.5 (2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

LPP 6.9 (2015) Cycling

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2015) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.8 (2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and
enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate
soundscapes.

LPP 7.21 (2015) Trees and woodland

LPP 8.2 (2015) Planning obligations

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on
congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design o
highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

SPG-CS Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance,

adopted July 2004

3

The applicant is advised that the eastern side elevations of the proposed blocks facing
Georges Court have not been included and therefore the assessment of the application in
terms of the impact upon this development has been based on detail included on the
proposed floor plans.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The 0.1 hectare application site is located on the southern side of Uxbridge Road, opposite
the western end of the Uxbridge Road, Hayes Minor Town Centre, close to its traffic lighted
junction with Grange Road, some 45m to the east and Lansbury Drive almost opposite the
site. No. 511 comprises a detached two storey house on a relatively deep plot which has
been hard surfaced at the front with two vehicle crossovers and contains a number of trees
in the rear garden. The house has part two storey, part single storey extensions at the rear.

To the east of the site, on the corner of Uxbridge Road and Grange Road is George Court, a
modern part two, part three and part four storey flatted re-development scheme. Beyond this
on the opposite side of Grange Road is the County Court and Becks Theatre, set within
open parkland type grounds. Elmlea Drive, accessed from Grange Road, wraps around the
site at the rear which provides access to a garage court that immediately adjoins the rear
boundary of the application site. No. 513, a detached house abuts the site to the west.

The site lies immediately adjacent to the Hayes Village Conservation Area, the boundary of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



which runs along the site's eastern boundary. The site forms part of an Air Quality
Management Area and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 3 on a scale of
1 to 6 where 1 denotes the lowest level of accessibility and 6 the highest.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the demolition of the existing house and erection of 2, three storey
square shaped flatted blocks, one sited behind the other to provide 10 x two-bedroom flats,
5 in each block (although four of the flats are described as one-bedroomed units within the
application, all of these units have a separate room described as an office which could easily
be used as a second bedroom without any alteration to the units and therefore the
application has been described and considered as such), with associated access and car
parking arrangements and landscaping.

Block 1 at the front of the site would be 12.2m wide, set back some 1.3m from the side
boundary with No. 513 Uxbridge Road but sited on the side boundary with the adjoining
George Court. The block would be 11.7m deep, with a typical eaves height of approximately
7.6m and ridge height to the top of the crown roof of 9.6m. An undercroft would be provided
adjacent to the side boundary with Georges Court to allow vehicular and pedestrian accesss
to Block 2 at the rear. Two small gables would be provided on the front and rear roof slopes
with the main entrance to the block sited on the side elevation adjoining No. 513, which
would be covered by a storm porch.

Block 2 would be sited towards the rear of the site, some 11.7m wide and 13.7m deep, with
set backs of approximately 1.0m to the side boundaries. The block would have a similar
crown roof design and height to Block 1, with its entrance in the front elevation, which would
also have a storm porch.

The existing vehicular crossovers would be utilised to provide separate access and egress
from the site. Three parking spaces would be provided in front of Block 1 and 6 spaces in
front of Block 2. External amenity areas are shown to the rear of each block. No provision is
made for cycle storage or for the storage of refuse/ recycling waste.

In Block 1, there would be a single flat on the ground floor, with two duplex flats on each of
the floors above. Block 2 would comprise two flats on each of the ground and first floors,
with a larger two-bedroom flat occupying all of the space on the second floor.

The plans show that the ground level on the front part of the site would be reduced by up to
a third of a metre to match that of the adjoining road.

The application is supported by the following documents:-

Design and Access Statement:-

This brief document describes the existing site and the proposal and notes that the site is
surrounded by main bus routes, all parking will be on-site which is within a CPZ, all aspects
of the scheme can be modified to accommodate disabled users.

Renewable Energy Statement:-

This provides an introduction to the proposals and describes the policy background. The
energy assessment methodology is described and results are presented. In order to achieve

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



the required 35% reduction, the report advises that solar PV panels are the preferred option
and that approximately 31sgm of PV panels would be required on Block 1 and 35sgm on
Block 2.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

No. 511 Uxbridge Road was originally included in initial plans for the re-development of the
adjoining site that is now occupied by Georges Court. A scheme for the site's redevelopment
(App. No. 9912/APP/2008/3559 refers) to provide 70 residential units with associated
access, amenity space, landscaping and car parking was refused on 16/3/09 on grounds of
overdevelopment of the site, poor quality of the residential accommodation provided,
scheme would be visually dominant, lack of a S106 contribution, no affordable housing
provision and the scheme failed to demonstrate that existing trees can be retained and new
planting provided. An associated application for conservation area consent was also refused
on 16/3/09 (App. No. 9912/APP/2008/3560 refers). Subsequent appeals were also
dismissed on 23/10/09.

Planning permission and conservation area consent for the development now known as

Georges Court were granted for a reduced scale of development (45 units) and a reduced
size of site that omitted No. 511 on 19/8/10 and 5/3/10 respectively.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.E7 (2012) Raising Skills
PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal
NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



NPPF12
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.8
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.15
LPP 5.17
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.5
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.21
LPP 8.2
BE4
BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE22

BEZ23
BE24
BE38

OE1

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments
(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Renewable energy

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
(2015) Water use and supplies

(2015) Waste capacity

(2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
(2015) Cycling

(2015) Parking

(2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

(2015) An inclusive environment

(2015) Designing out crime

(2015) Local character

(2015) Architecture

(2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2015) Improving air quality

(2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

(2015) Trees and woodland

(2015) Planning obligations

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

SPG-CS Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted July
2004

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 8th September 2015

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

45 neighbouring properties have been consulted on this application and a notice has been displayed
on site on the 3/9/15, with a closing date of 24/9/15. 7 responses from neighbouring occupiers have
been received, together with a 33 signature petition, objecting to the proposals.

The petitioners state:-
'Our objections are as follows:

1. Over development of the existing residential site - to create an additional 3 storey block as well as
rebuilding of the existing property to 3 stories to create 10 flats. One development has already being
built on the local residents doorstep with another 2 just 500m away (Howarth Homes development).
The recent big development next to the site of 511 Uxbridge Road had a lot of objections and was
finally resolved with local residents. To ask residents to now put up with another development is not
acceptable.

2. Overlooking neighbouring properties gardens, bedrooms and sitting rooms. Privacy will be invaded

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



as the new blocks would be 3 stories high and potential new residents of these flats would be able to
look straight in neighbouring property bedrooms. 513 Uxbridge Road will be affected the most as from
the plans the front block would be almost at boundary line and direct views into the rear bedrooms,
sitting room and kitchen along with no privacy at all in the garden. Light / sun would be blocked to the
property as again the front new build will be built close to boundary line and sitting 3 stories high will
block all natural light to all of the windows on that side of the property. The entrance elevation to the
front block there are 2 windows that would look directly into a bedroom of 513 Uxbridge Road.

No consideration has been given to the existing residents of 513 Uxbridge Road in regards to these
plans what so ever - see pictures.

3. The site will more than likely increase the chance of accidents at an already notorious accident
hotspot. The entrance to the site is at the junction of Uxbridge Road and Lansbury Drive where
accidents and illegal U turns happen on a daily occurrence. The entrance to the proposed
development would be right on this junction and would increase the chance of accidents and illegal U
turns as residents would more than likely perform an illegal U turn rather than go all the way down to
the junction of Uxbridge Road and Gledwood Drive to perform a legal U turn - see pictures.

4. The parking spaces shown on the plans of the development would not be adequate for the site so
again the cars would end up either being parked on the pavement or on Uxbridge Road (yellow line).
This would cause traffic disruption, as this road is a major artery for buses.

5. Pollution to current residents as proposed rear and front parking would send fumes into the
neighbouring properties and would deter them from having windows open.

6. Noise pollution - neighbouring properties would have to be expected to put up with additional noise
from new residents and cars.

7. Emergency vehicle access to the rear block would be very difficult as if best you could only fit 1 or 2
if the proposed car park was empty. This would have implications on new residents and also current
local residents and put them all at unnecessary risk. One driveway entrance for 2-way traffic is not
acceptable for a proposed development of this size.

8. Site road not wide enough for 2 way traffic and would have traffic implications on the Uxbridge
Road as cars would have to wait to enter the site and therefore potentially causing traffic jams or even
accidents.

9. On the planning application - Section 15 Trees & Hedges - the applicant has filled in saying that
there are no trees on the development site when in fact there are quite a few existing trees - see
pictures.

The applicant has filled in that there are no trees on land adjacent to the proposed development site
when there are five 30ft tall mature trees on the boundary with 513 Uxbridge Road - see pictures.

10. The proposed new trees that would be planted at the rear of the site would have implications

to the garages at the back of the site, which is known as the garages on Elmlea Drive. 2 trees have
already been cut down due to complaints from the owners of these garages. The trees had caused
damage to the walls and floors of some of the garages due to the growing of the roots. This was
settled on production of an independent RICS surveyor. Copy is available for the committees perusa

On the boundary of 513 Uxbridge Road, the proposed site of the new trees would have implication to
513 Uxbridge Road a property foundations and light to the rear sitting room, bedrooms and kitchen.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



As you are aware building insurance will not cover for certain problems if trees are within a 3 - 5 metre
range. These proposed trees would be in that range and roots could cause instability to 513 Uxbridge
Road.

11. More rubbish - on the plans there is no area designated for external rubbish bins. Do the residents
keep the black bags and recycling in their properties? More than likely the rubbish bags will be left
outside uncovered - open to nature. The smell of the rubbish and the potential for rats, which there
are none currently, is not fair or acceptable on the local residents.

12. Notices from the council to the properties behind the proposed development site and further along
the Uxbridge Road were not sent. The only property that received notice of planning from the Council
was 513 Uxbridge Road. Only after complaining to the case officer and to Hillingdon Council Planning
Department, were notices just sent to some of the residents of Elmleas Drive - the first notice was
received on the 11th September 29015, seven days after the deadline for comments / objections for
the proposed site to be sent to the council. The closing date for any comments was 4th September
2015.

13. Demolition and contractors vehicles would impact on this busy junction to cause traffic chaos and
increase accidents on this accident hotspot from vehicles turning onto and exiting the proposed
development site.

The residents that have signed this petition to Hillingdon Council request that the Planning Committee
for this planning application along with the case officer, Mr Richard Phillips, to visit the proposed site
and meet with the local residents to listen and take note of their objections in person. The committee
should visit to see how over developed the local area is and is becoming with the recent 3 new
developments that have been built within such a small area and how this development would impact
on its neighbours.

We request the right to speak at the committee meeting against this proposed development site so
that our concerns and worries are heard directly, and wish to be informed of the date and time of the
committee meeting so that we may all attend.

We all strenuously object to this development site and hope that the committee will see fit to decline
planning application.

Our signed petition is enclosed along with pictures.'
The individual objectors raise the following concerns, summarised under the following headings:-
Character of the area

(i) This is blatant overdevelopment of the site with too many flats in a small area,
(i) This is just another set of ugly flats which will be detrimental to the local environment,

Residential amenity

(iif) Proposal will block light to No. 513 which only receives light to the side and rear. The front block
will be too close to the boundary and impact upon 5 windows on that side of the house on the ground
floor and 3 on the first floor, including blocking light to a bedroom,

(iv) Development would be far too close to properties in ElImlea Drive and 3 storey height would be
intrusive and invasive to No. 513 Uxbridge Road,

(v) Privacy to No. 513's rear and side elevations (which includes bedroom, rear kitchen and sitting

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



room) would be lost, and will not be able to open windows on this side and the rear gardens of Nos.
513 and 515 would be overlooked. The top flats would also overlook properties in EImlea Drive and
their gardens, far more so than the George Court flats, requiring lounge and bedroom curtains to be
kept permanently closed,

(vi) Noise will increase, particularly from the rear parking area which will be below bedrooms at No.
513,

(vii) Proposal will increase pollution from extra cars, dirt and dust generation, and together with other
surrounding developments, be disruptive. Residents will have to keep windows shut and be stuck
indoors which will be detrimental to their health

Highway Issues

(viii) Increase in traffic will be dangerous and result in more accidents on an already busy road and
the Grange Road junction which is a notorious accident hotspot with illegal U turns,

(ix) During construction, more traffic and accidents traffic will disrupt/block road users, as contractors
are likely to park on Uxbridge Road as service vehicles do this already, even though it is yellow lined
and there is no rear access,

(x) Parking provision is inadequate which will exacerbate existing parking problems on surrounding
roads and the current serious congestion in Elmlea Drive,

(xi) Small access road is dangerous in its own right - if this were blocked, emergency vehicles would
not be able to access the rear block,

Tree Issues

(xii) Application form is wrong in stating there are no trees on and adjacent to the site as there are
mature trees on the application site and on No. 513 which will be affected by the development,

(xiii) Two large conifers and a pear tree should not be removed,

(xiv) New tree planting along the boundary with No. 513 will be too close and together with the 3
storey blocks, will block light to No. 513 and their roots would affect main building and rear garages,

General

(xv) Planning permission has already been declined once, when site linked with adjoining
development,

(xvi) If there is a social housing element, there is already enough in the adjoining development(xvii)
Area is overcrowded and there has already been too much residential development in this area,
increasing pressures on local services, including schools, doctors and hospitals and roads,

(xviii) This application should not even be being considered and consulted upon. Residents are
meeting to stop this going ahead and will take this further if it is approved,

(xix) Development is only for personal gain and there is no housing need,

(xx) Proposal will set a precedent for flatted re-development,

(xxi) De-value property values,

Internal Consultees
URBAN DESIGN/ CONSERVATION OFFICER:

This site, whilst not within The Hayes Village Conservation Area, lies just off the boundary of that part
of the area that fronts the Uxbridge Road. It, therefore, has the potential to impact on the setting of the
conservation area.

| am concerned that the proposed drawing (POL4A), which shows the new frontage building, appears
to show it next to a 4 storey block on the adjacent site to the east. This building is actually 3 storeys in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



height with the top floor set in from the boundary. The existing buildings to the rear of this
development are also the same height. Any new structures should be no taller than this.

It is unclear as to why the levels across the frontage of the site are to be changed, as at present the
frontage across all of the immediately adjacent building appears to be fairly level. Is this to reduce the
height of the building against its neighbours? In addition, the sections and elevational drawings do not
seem to show the same level changes.

Building 1 would also sit directly on the site boundary to the east, creating a cramped appearance
across the frontage. The spaces between the older houses on the Uxbridge Road are an important
visual element along this part of the road, they give it a fairly spacious character and a distinct rhythm
to the street scene.

The design of frontage building is rather bland, with nothing to distinguish its front from its back. It also
has what can only be described as a contrived and rather "chaotic" looking opening for vehicles.
Overall, the quality of the design of this building is considered to be quite poor.

The rear block is of a similar design to the other, although it is of a slightly better more balanced
appearance. It is taller than block 1 and almost fills this part of the site. This building should be
secondary in terms of its scale and massing to the frontage block. It would, therefore, appear overly
dominant and also cramped. Its back land position would be at odds with the layout of the adjacent
older houses, which have generous open rear gardens and also with the adjoining modern housing
development, which incorporates an internal landscaped courtyard.

The design, layout and scale of this development are considered to be unacceptable and out of
character with the established townscape of the area.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

a. The site has moderate public transport accessibility (PTAL=3).

b. Car park should include 10% provision for disabled users.

c. Car Park should include 20% active and 20% passive provision for electric vehicles.

d. Cycle parking should be provided at 1 space per dwelling

e. Pedestrian visibility splays should be provided at each vehicular access to the back of footway.
Details of arrangements for refuse collection should be provided.

g. It is recommended that one of the vehicular access be closed to reduce the number of potential
conflict points between vehicular traffic, cyclists and pedestrians.

h. Details of car park allocation should be provided and residents should not be eligible for parking
permits within the PMA.

—h

TREES/ LANDSCAPING OFFICER:

Landscape character / context:

Site description:

- The site is occupied by a substantial two-storey detached house on the south side of Uxbridge
Road.

- The front garden has been sacrificed to provide hard-standing for 4No. off-street parking bays and
pedestrian access.

- This side of the street is residential, with a new development of flats immediately to the east at the
junction with Grange Road.

- To the north-east there is a parade of shops.

- The area is urban in character, dominated by Uxbridge Road. Several of the local larger houses

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



have already been redeveloped to provide flats.

Landscape Planning designations:

- There are no Tree Preservation Orders and no Conservation Area designations affecting trees
within the site.

- The site lies adjacent to Hayes Village Conservation Area to the east.

Landscape constraints / opportunities:

- The environmental quality along Uxbridge Road is generally poor and landscape enhancement is
particularly desirable in this area.

- Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

Proposal:

The proposal is to demolish the existing four bedroom house and replace it with 2No. new build three-
storey units to accommodate 10 new flats with new modified access and new onsite parking and
amenity space.

Landscape Considerations:

- According to the planning questionnaire (Q5) no trees or other landscape features of merit will be
affected by the proposal.

- However, according to aerial photographs and the existing site plans there are trees towards the end
of and along the side of the rear garden.

- No tree survey or assessment has been submitted.

- The brief Design & Access Statement fails to respond to the conventional guidance with regard to
the content or format, - as recommended by DCLG and CABE. Thus it fails to address the existing
landscape character or proposed landscape objectives.

- The Proposed Site Plan, ref.511UXBR/PLO5A indicates that all of the existing vegetation will be
removed in order to accommodate the two buildings and associated vehicular access and parking
spaces.

- The areas of planting reserved along the front boundary are likely to be too small to support
vegetation.

- There is a modest area of communal (?) garden in the middle of the site.

- The strip of soft landscape around the rear block is too narrow to function as attractive, or useable
amenity space.

- No provision is evident for bike or bin storage. Unless these have been accommodated within the
building footprints, their siting will put further pressure on the external space / landscape.

- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

Recommendations:

In the absence of a tree survey, as recommended in the planning questionnaire, it is not possible to
assess the impact of the tree loss.

The applicant has failed to demonstrate that trees will be unaffected by the development and has not
made provision for their protection or created adequate space for their replacement as part of a
comprehensive landscape scheme.

The development would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area and to the living
conditions of future occupiers.

ACCESS OFFICER:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



This proposal fails to comply with London Plan policy 3.8 in terms of housing which is accessible and
adaptable for wheelchair users.

There is no evidence and plan to suggest that 10% has been designed to meet the needs of
wheelchair users.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:
| object to the proposed development.
Ecology

The proposals will result in the removal of trees and loss of garden space. The maximising of the
development footprint will result in an overall reduction in ecological features. Garden spaces in
Hillingdon, as across London, provide a valuable supporting environment for urban wildlife. The
erosion of such habitats is having a detrimental impact on the biodiversity of the borough.

The application does not include an ecology assessment and importantly the development provides
no protection to existing ecological features. No proposals have been put forward for the replacement
or enhancement of biodiversity features. The development is therefore contrary to the national
planning policy framework.

Further information is required to clearly show what ecological features are on site, and how these will
be protected. The further information should also show how the development will contribute to a net
gain in biodiversity.

Energy

| object to the proposed development as there is insufficient information showing how the energy
strategy can be delivered.

The energy strategy relies on the use of roof mounted PVs to meet the London Plan reduction target
of 35% of Co2. | have no concerns with the strategy itself, however, there is a lack of a connection
between the strategy and the building designs. Specifically, the strategy requires over 60sqgm of PV to
be fitted on a south to south-west axis. The orientation of the building makes this difficult to achieve
and there is no supporting roof plan showing how the panels can be accommodated. The submitted
elevations show no inclusion of PV panels.

Further information is required to clearly show how the development incorporates the PVs in
accordance with the energy strategy.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

While there is in general, no objection in principle to the intensification of use on existing
residential sites, schemes need to be considered against relevant policy and guidance.

No objections would be raised to the loss of the existing house which has little intrinsic
architectural merit.

Uxbridge Road is a busy main route and the site lies opposite the western end of the Hayes,
Uxbridge Road Minor Town Centre with its more intensive, commercial character so that it
can not be considered a traditional residential street where restrictions on the number of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



sites to be re-developed for more intensive residential use as set out in paragraph 3.3 of the
Council's Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Layouts could
reasonably be applied.

Of more importance in this case is policy regarding garden areas. The NPPF (March 2012)
at paragraph 53 advises that LPAs 'should consider the case for setting out policies to resist
inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example where development would
cause harm to the local area.'

The London Plan (March 2015) notes that back gardens can contribute to the objectives of a
significant number of London Plan policies and these matters should be taken into account
when considering the principle of such developments. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan
supports development plan-led presumptions against development on back gardens where
locally justified by a sound local evidence base.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, November 2012 also provides
further guidance on the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan as regards
garden development. Paragraph 1.2.23 advises that when considering proposals which
involve the loss of gardens, regard should be taken of the degree to which gardens
contribute to a communities' sense of place and quality of life (Policy 3.5), especially in outer
London where gardens are often a key component of an area's character (Policies 2.6 and
2.7). The contribution gardens make towards biodiversity also needs to be considered
(Policies 7.18 and 7.19) as does their role in mitigating flood risk (Policies 5.12 and 5.13).
Gardens can also address the effects of climate change (Policies 5.9 - 5.11).

The various issues are discussed in more detail within the relevant sections of the report.

The Council has also adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(November 2012). Policy BE1 advises that new development, in addition to achieving a high
quality of design, should enhance the local distinctiveness of the area, contribute to
community cohesion and sense of place and make a positive contribution to the local area in
terms of layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity of surrounding
land and buildings, particularly residential properties. Specifically, the policy advises that
development should not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green
spaces that erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase flood risk.

Within the Council's emerging Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(Revised Proposed Submission Version, October 2015), at paragraph 4.15 advises that the
Council, in general will not accept proposals for development on garden land. Policy DMHG6:
Garden and Backland Development states:

"There is a presumption against the loss of gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited scale of backland
development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria:

- neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens must be
maintained and unacceptable light spillage avoided;

- vehicular access or car parking should not have an adverse impact on neighbours in terms
of noise or light. Access roads between dwellings and unnecessarily long access roads will
not normally be acceptable;

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



- development on backland sites must be more intimate in mass and scale and lower than
frontage properties; and

- features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife habitat must be retained or re-provided.'

It is therefore considered that there is a strong policy presumption against inappropriate
development within rear gardens at national, strategic and local level.

It is therefore considered that in this instance, the proposal would result in the loss to
buildings and hardstanding of the majority of the existing extensive rear garden. This would
be detrimental to the character and appearance of the area, adjacent to the Hayes Village
Conservation Area. When balanced against the limited contribution the development would
make toward achieving housing targets in the borough, it is considered that the principle of
the scheme, involving development of the majority of the rear garden area almost is contrary
to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policies BE4, BE13, BE19 and H12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan
(March 2015), guidance within the London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance
(November 2012) and the NPPF (March 2012).
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that new developments achieve the maximum
intensity of use compatible with the local context and with public transport capacity. This site
has a Public Transport Accessibiity Level (PTAL) of 3 (where 6 represents the highest level
of public transport accessibility and 1 the lowest), and Table 3.2 in the London Plan advises
that an appropriate residential density for this suburban site would range from 35-65 units
per hectare (u/ha) and 150-250 habitable rooms per hectare (hr/ha) for developments
containing larger unit sizes such as those proposed within such a location. The Council's
HDAS: 'Residential Layouts' also advises that larger rooms over 20sqm and capable of
subdivision should be counted as 2 rooms.

The proposed scheme equates to a unit density of 100 u/ha and a habitable room density of
400 hr/ha, both figures significantly in excess of the Mayor's maximum density guidance for
this type of site. However, whilst density guidance is a useful initial guide, it should be noted
that density guidance is of only limited relevance when considering smaller scale schemes
such as the current proposal. In these instances, it will be more important to ensure that the
scheme harmonises with its local environment, is not detrimental to the amenities enjoyed by
surrounding residents and the scheme also affords a suitable standard of amenity for its
potential occupiers. These issues are considered below.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site is not located within a designated archaeological area, nor would the
proposals affect the setting of any statutory listed building. The nearest locally listed building
is the Hayes Cottage Hospital on Grange Road which would be sufficiently distant from the
application site and screened by adjoining development so that it would not be materially
affected by the proposals. The site also does not form part of an Area of Special Local
Character but it does immediately adjoin the western boundary of the Hayes Village
Conservation Area, the boundary of which runs along the eastern boundary of the
application site.

The Council's Urban Design/Conservation Officer advises that the scheme, just off the
boundary of Hayes Village Conservation Area that fronts the Uxbridge Road, has the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

potential to impact upon the setting of the conservation area. The officer advises that the
spaces between the older houses on this part of the Uxbridge Road are an important visual
element, providing a fairly spacious character and a distinct rhythm to the street scene. In
contrast, block 1 at the front of the site would immediately abut the site boundary to the east,
creating a cramped appearance across the frontage on the edge of the conservation area,
which would be at odds with this spacious character.

The officer also advises that the design of the frontage building is rather bland, with nothing
to distinguish its front from its back. It also has a contrived and rather "chaotic" looking
opening for vehicles so that overall, the quality of the design of this building is considered to
be poor.

As regards the rear block, the Council's Conservation/ Urban Design Officer advises this is a
similar design to the the block at the front, although it is of a slightly better more balanced
appearance. However, it is taller than block 1 and almost fills this part of the site whereas
principles of good design dictate that this building should be secondary in terms of its scale
and massing to the frontage block. It would, therefore, appear overly dominant and cramped
and its back land position would be at odds with the layout of the adjacent older houses,
which have generous open rear gardens and also with the adjoining modern housing
development, which incorporates an internal landscaped courtyard.

The Design Officer concludes that the design, layout and scale of the development are
considered to be unacceptable and out of character with the established townscape of the
area. The scheme is contrary to Policies BE4, BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the Hilllingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Airport safeguarding

There are no safeguarding objections raised by this application.
Impact on the green belt

The application site does not form part of the Green Belt nor is it sited close to the Green
Belt boundary. As such, no Green Belt issues are raised by this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

This is dealt with in Section 7.03 above.
Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to protect the amenities of surrounding residential properties from
new development in relation to loss of sunlight, dominance and loss of privacy respectively.
The Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts provides
further clarification in that it advises that buildings of two or more storeys should maintain at
least a 15m separation distance from adjoining properties to avoid appearing overdominant
and a 21m distance between facing habitable room windows and private amenity space
(considered to be a 3m deep 'patio’ area adjoining the rear elevation of a property) should be
maintained to safeguard privacy.

As regards sunlight, Block 1 at the front of the site would only overshadow the side
elevations of the adjoining properties and their front gardens. As there are no side windows
in the adjoining block on Georges Court and only non-habitable room or secondary windows
in the side elevation of No. 513 Uxbridge Road, the overshadowing would not be of such
significance to justify a reason for refusal.

Block 2 at the rear would also only overshadow No. 513's rearmost part of the rear garden

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



during the morning/early afternoon and part of the amenity area serving Georges Court in
the afternoon, but these areas would already experience overshadowing from the existing
conifer trees in the garden of the application site so that any additional impact would not be
significant.

As regards dominance, the proposed blocks would not encroach upon a 45 degree line of
sight taken from neighbouring habitable room windows. Due to the staggered siting at the
front, Block 1 would project forward of No. 513 by some 5m, but this would be less that the
existing staggered relationship between the these, albeit two storey properties. However,
there is a projecting converted garage at No. 513 on this boundary which would help to
screen the proposed block from adjoining ground floor windows and the proposed staggered
relationship is similar to the existing relationship previously approved at Georges Court with
No. 511. Furthermore, Block 2 at the rear would have a similar siting the the rear block at
Georges Court so that this block would not be unduly affected and in terms of the nearest
part of the rear elevation at No. 513, the front elevation of Block 2 would maintain a
separation distance of some 23m and its rear elevation would be more than 27m from the
nearest property on Elmlea Drive (No. 12) and separated by the garage court at the rear.

In terms of privacy, Block 1 would have its main entrance with stairwell windows above on
each of the floors facing No. 513, whereas Block 2 behind would have two secondary
kitchen/ living room windows facing its rear garden. Although these windows could be made
to be fixed shut and obscure glazed, it is considered that these windows would result in a
perception that the garden was overlooked, particularly as these windows would add to the
overlooking which would result from the front facing windows which would overlook the rear
patio area with a 21m distance.

As regards George Court, although the side elevation of the proposed flatted blocks facing
this development have not been submitted, the floor plans do show secondary windows on
this side. However, being a flatted complex comprising 45 units, the proposal would not give
rise to any greater overlooking and loss of privacy to the development.

Therefore, although the scheme is considered to be acceptable in terms of loss of sunlight
and dominance impacts, in accordance with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2912), it is considered that it will result in
actual and perceived overlooking of No. 513 Uxbridge Road, resulting in an unacceptable
loss of their residential amenity, contrary to Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

INTERNAL LAYOUT

The proposed two-bedroomed, three person flats would all have internal floor areas of
61.5sgm, with the only exception being the second floor flat in Block 2 which would be for
four persons and have an internal floor area of 126sgm. The units would be of a sufficient
size to satisfy the new national technical standards which came into force on 1/10/15 of
61sgm for a 2 bedroom, 3 person flat and 70sqgm for a two bedroom, four person flat which
replace the London Plan standards.

However, in addition to their size, new residential units need to provide a reasonable outlook
from their habitable room windows, achieve good natural lighting and privacy.

The layout of the development is not satisfactory as Block 2 is sited too close to the rear

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



boundary of the site, which would involve the rear facing bedrooms of the ground floor units
(Flats 6 and 7) being sited within 2.6m of the rear boundary. In such proximity, the bedrooms
would have very restricted outlook and poor natural light. The amenity of these rooms would
be further compromised by their lack of privacy as the external area at the rear is intended
as shared amenity space. Furthermore, the layout of the living rooms/ kitchen areas of the
ground and first floor units involves deep, narrow 'L'-shaped rooms with the main window
being in the front elevation (and obstructed by the kitchen sink), away from the main living
area at the rear. Although there are two side windows serving the room, these are small
secondary windows that would need to be fixed shut and obscure glazed. The ground floor
rooms would also not be particularly private as a shared footpath runs immediately adjacent
to the front of the block. With little landscaping provided at the front of this block, the
proximity of the parking spaces and their access is likely to result in disturbance to these
units from noise, general disturbance and light pollution from headlights. As such, these
units would provide oppressive and substandard accommaodation.

The privacy of the ground floor flat (Flat 1) in Block 1 would also be compromised by a
shared footpath which passes immediately adjacent to the rear of the block and this units
bedroom windows.

EXTERNAL AMENITY SPACE

As regards external amenity space, Block 1 would have a 107sgm area at the rear of the
block and the plans show a 42sqgm amenity space provided at the rear and sides of Block 2.
No balconies or other external amenity space is proposed. In order to satisfy the Council's
amenity space standards, a minimum total of 250sqm of amenity space would be required.
The space also has to be useable in term sof its shape and size and also in terms of its
convenient siting and exposure to sunlight. The space around Block 2 would not be usable,
given its maximum depth of 2.6m adjacent to the three storey block and boundary fencing
/adjoining garage court at the rear where it would receive minimal sunlight, and this
decreases to 1m width at the sides of the block. As such, it has been discounted. Residents
of Block 2 would therefore have no conveniently located / usable amenity space. As such,
the development as a whole would only provide less than half of the minimum quantity of
amenity space required to satisfy the Council's standards, contrary to Policy BE23 of the
Hilingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at Paragraph 32 states that plans and
decisions should take account of whether safe and suitable access to the site can be
achieved for all people; and development should only be prevented or refused on transport
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Paragraph 35 of
NPPF also refers to developments and states that developments should be located and
designed where practical to give priority to pedestrian and cycle movements; create safe
and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians.

Local requirements in relation to impacts on traffic demand, safety and congestion are set
out in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). Policy
AM2 requires development proposals to be assesed on their contribution towards traffic
generation, policy AM7 requires the traffic generation of proposed development to be
acceptable in terms of the capacity and safe and efficient functioning of existing roads and
policies AM9 and AM14 require development proposals to satisfy cycle and car parking
standards.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



The Council's Highway Engineer raises no particular objections to the access arrangements
or the overall provision made for off-street car parking. Although recommendations for the
improvement of the access arrangements are made, such as provision of pedestrian visibility
splays and ideally the site should only have one access point, these issues could either be
reasonably dealt with by condition or would not be so significant as to amount to justification
for a further reason for refusal of the application, given the similar existing access
arrangements at the site.

The scheme has 9 parking spaces for 10 flats. a shortfall of one parking space would not in
itself be something which could justify a reason for refusal on this particular site.

However, the other omissions noted within the Highway Engineers comments such as no
provision for disabled parking, electric vehicle charging, cycle parking and refuse storage do
have material implications for the layout of the site so that a reason for refusal would be
justified and have been included in the officer's recommendation.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Mix of units

Given the relatively small scale of the proposed development comprising 10 units, no
objections are raised to the scheme providing only two-bedroomed units in terms of Policy
H4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.12 Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer advises that the proposal is not acceptable from an
accessibility standpoint, as it does not make appropriate provision to comply with London
Plan policy 3.8 in terms of housing which is accessible and adaptable for wheelchair users,
with no evidence and/or a plan to suggest that 10% of units have has been designed to
meet the needs of wheelchair users. A refusal reason to cover this has been added.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The London Plan (March 2015) sets a threshold that residential development schemes with
10 units or more should make provision for affordable housing. Although the Minister of
State, Department for Communities and Local Government in a statement on 28/11/14
advised that due to the disproportionate burden of developer contributions being on small-
scale developers, affordable housing contributions should not be sought for sites of 10 units
or less and which have a maximum combined gross floor space of 1,000 square metres.
However, this has now been successfully challenged in the High Court so that this scheme
now requires to make a contribution. As no such contribution is made, the scheme is
contrary to Policy 3.3 of the London Plan (March 2015) and Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Trees and Landscaping

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan advises that new development should retain
topographical and landscape features of merit and that new planting and landscaping should
be provided wherever it is appropriate.

There are no Tree Preservation Orders and no Conservation Area designations affecting
trees within the site. The Council's Tree/ Landscape Officer advises that the environmental
quality along Uxbridge Road is generally poor and landscape enhancement is particularly
desirable in this area where many front garden areas have been sacrificed to prove off-

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



street parking. Although the planning application form states that no trees will be affected by
the proposals and no tree survey or assessment has been submitted, there are trees
towards the end of and along the side of the rear garden. The Tree/ Landscape Officer
advises that all of the existing vegetation will be removed in order to accommodate the two
buildings and associated vehicular access and parking spaces. Areas of proposed planting
along the front boundary are likely to be too small to adequately support vegetation and the
strip of soft landscape around the rear block is too narrow to provide attractive (or useable)
amenity space.

Therefore the scheme in the absence of a tree/ arboricultural survey, fails to assess the
impact of the development upon existing trees on and off the site and has not made
provision for their protection or created adequate space for their replacement as part of a
comprehensive landscape scheme. As such, the development would be harmful to the
character and appearance of the area, contrary to Policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Ecology

The Council's Sustainability Officer advises that the removal of trees and the loss of garden
space will result in an overall reduction in ecological features and value of the site. Garden
spaces in Hillingdon, as across London, provide a valuable supporting environment for
urban wildlife and that the erosion of such habitats is having a detrimental impact on the
biodiversity of the borough.

The proposals do not include an ecology assessment and importantly the development
provides no protection to existing ecological features. Furthermore no proposals have been
put forward for the replacement or enhancement of biodiversity features.

The development is therefore contrary to the NPPF, Policy 7.19 of the London Plan (March
2015) and Policies EC2 and EC5 opf the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The proposal does not make any provision for the storage of refuse or recycling waste.
Furthermore, given the cramped nature of the development, it is not considered that suitable
secure and screened provision could be provided without requiring significant revision of the
scheme and/or compromising other aspects of the development. The scheme is therefore
contrary to Policy 5.17 of the London Plan (March 2015).

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

A renewable energy statement has been submitted in support of the application. This
advises that the preferred option for meeting the Mayor's requirement for a 35% reduction in
CO2 emissions would be through the use of photovoltaic (PV) panels. Whilst the Council's
Sustainability Officer does not object to the assessment itself, it is noted that the scheme
does not provide any further detail to demonstrate that the overall area of panels needed to
satisfy the Mayor's energy reduction targets can be fully accommodated on the roof of the
building(s) without any further, possibly off-site additional measures/contributions being
needed, contrary to Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (March 2015). A reason for refusal has
been included in the officer's recommendations.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site is not prone to flooding. Had the application not of been recommended for refusal, it
is considered that a suitable condition could have been attached to ensure that sustainable

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



drainage techniques were employed to ensure that the development did not increase the risk
of sites flooding elsewhere and made an appropriate contribution towards a reduction in the
use of potable water in accordance with Policies 5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan (March
2015).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Noise Issues

The proposal would intensify the residential use of this site adjacent to the busy A4020
Uxbridge Road. The application has failed to provide a noise assessment, that would assess
the noise exposure of the site and the suitability of the scheme and whether any noise
mitigation measures are required. In the absence of this assessment, the scheme is contrary
to Policy 7.15 of the London Plan (March 2015), Policy OES5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's SPD: 'Noise'.

Air Quality Issues

Similarly, the scheme has failed to provide an air quality assessment that would analysis the
impacts of the development upon local air quality and any threats to residential occupiers. As
such, the scheme is contrary to Policy 7.14 of the London Plan (March 2015) and the
Council's possible would be likely to generate more trips within the Air Quality Management
Area. The application has failed to provide an air quality assessment, contrary to Policy 7.14
of the London Plan (March 2015) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance: 'Air
Quality'.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations
The petitioners comments raising material planning considerations and points (i) to (viii) and
(x) to (xiv) raised within the individual consultee responses have been considered within the
officer's report. As regards point (ix), the possible inappropriate parking of contractors'
vehicles during the construction phase is a highway enforcement issue and not a planning
matter. In terms of social housing (point (xvi), this scheme is required to make a contribution
towards affordable housing and the scheme's lack of provision is included as a reason for
refusal. As regards local services (point (xvii), if the scheme were to be approved and
implemented, it would be CIL liable and therefore a financial contribution towards local
services would be payable. As regards point (xviii), all new valid planning applications need
to be considered and the concerns of surrounding residents are noted. As regards points
(xix) to (xxi), these do not raise valid planning reasons to oppose the application.
7.20 Planning obligations

This scheme would have required a contribution towards affordable housing and given that
the scheme is being recommended for refusal, a S106 Agreement has not been progressed
and in its absence, the scheme fails to make adequate provision for affordable housing,
which forms a reason for refusal.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

No enforcement issues are raised by this application.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other planning issues raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



10. CONCLUSION

This scheme seeks to provide an excessive amount of residential accommodation on site
which fails to harmonise with its surroundings and provides a poor standard of residential
accommodation for its future occupiers and lacks appropriate amenity space and bin and
cycle storage provision on site.

The scheme would result in the loss of privacy to neighbours and fails to assess its impacts
upon trees and the site's ecology and the implications of the development for air quality and
noise. Although the application has been accompanied by an energy statement, it is not
clear how the photovoltaic panels will be accommodated on site. The scheme also does not
make provision for wheelchair users. Finally, the scheme makes no provision for affordable
housing.

The scheme is recommended accordingly.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2015)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (November 2012
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014)

National Technical Standards (October 2015)

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



Uxbridge

County
Court

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

511 Uxbridge Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Hayes
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
15988/APP/2014/4271 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major P29e36 | January 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

IONY
HHILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address WATERLOO WHARF WATERLOO ROAD UXBRIDGE

Development: Erection of 2 blocks containing 53 one, two and three bedroom apartments,
together with associated parking, access and landscaping, involving
demolition of existing buildings.

LBH Ref Nos: 43016/APP/2014/4486

Drawing Nos: SUB 203.2 RevD- Sectional Elevations - EE + FF
SUB 204.2 RevD- Sectional Elevations - GG + HF
Phase 1 Detailed Desk Top Study
2015-08-28 D&A
Daylight Assessment Revised Aug 15 01.9.15
Environmental Noise Assessment Revised v4 01.9.15
Transport Statement Revised Aug 15 01.9.15
RPO01 rev D Landscape Design Statement 01.9.15
Amended Plans Submission Covering Letter 01.9.15
Applicant's response to Consultee feedback 4.12.15
Air Quality Assessment
Arboricultural Statement and Tree Condition Survey
Code for Sustainable Homes Pre-Assessment
Energy Strategy
Flood Risk Assessment
Waterloo Wharf Phase Il Geoarchaeological Trenches FINAL
Heritage Statement
MARKETING REPORT
SUB 01 RevVA - Location Plan
SUB 02 - Existing Survey site
SUB 201 - Existing Sectional Elevations AA + BE
SUB 202 - Existing Sectional Elevations - CC + DD
SUB 204 - Existing Sectional Elevations - GG + HF
01H External Works Masterplan
04E External Roof Terrace Masterplan Block B
SUB 03.1 RevD - Site Plan
SUB 04 RevD - Ground Floor Plan
SUB 05 RevD - First Floor Plan
SUB 06 RevD - Second Floor Plan
SUB 07 RevD - Third Floor Plan
SUB 08 RevD - Roof Plan
SUB 101 RevD - North + West Elevation - Block A
SUB 102 RevD South + East Elevation - Block A
SUB 103 RevD - West + South Elevation - Block B
SUB 104 RevD - East + North Elevation Block B
SUB 201.2 RevD - Sectional Elevations AA + BB 01
SUB 202.2 RevD- Sectional Elevations - CC + DD

Date Plans Received:  22/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 30/12/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of 2 separate part 3, part 4, part 5 storey
blocks of flats at the site of Goldburg's Timber Yard, Waterloo Warf, at the junction of
Rockingham Road and Waterloo Road. The proposal involves the demolition of the
existing structures on the site, includng the warehouse building, office building, main
house and annex and redevelopment for residential purposes for 53 flats.

70 surrounding occupiers were consulted. 20 representations have been received
objecting to the scheme, mainly for the following reasons: significant impact on residents
living in the surrounding area due to the design, height and scale, limited parking planned,
the poor access on a busy road and associated noise and pollution. In addition, a petition
bearing 60 signatures has been received objecting to the proposals on similar grounds.

The site is not identified as being required to meet the Council's housing targets, whilst the
application has failed to justify the loss of employment land in this case.

Because of the site's proximity to the adjoining boat yard and dry dock, future occupiers of
the scheme are likely to be subject to unacceptable levels of noise, with the potential for
noise complaints, thereby prejudicing the long-term future of this important canal related
operation.

The proposed scale and mass of the new residential blocks would be out of character
with the established scale of buildings in the Uxbridge Moor Conservation Area, whilst the
impact of the development upon the setting of the Grade 2 listed General Elliott public
house opposite and the adjacent locslly listed boat yard would harm those building's
historic interest.

The scheme fails to incorporate a review mechanism for affordable housing, while no
contributions towards canal side improvements have been offered. Refusal is therefore
recommended.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its layout, scale, proportions and massing would
result in an unduly intrusive, visually prominent and incongruous form of development,
which fails to respect the established character of the Uxbridge Moor Conservation Area
or compliment the visual qualities of the Grand Union Canal and the visual amenities of the
street. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE4, BE13, BE19 and BE32 of the
Saved Policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to demonstrate that there is no realistic prospect of the land being
used for industrial or warehousing purposes in the future. In addition, the proposed
development, by reason of its close proximity to the adjoining boat yard and dry dock
facility is likely to be subject to unacceptable levels of noise, detrimental to the residential
amenities of future occupiers, giving rise to noise complaints. The proposal is therefore
likely to cause operational problems for the boat yard operator, thereby prejudicing the
conservation of buildings and features associated with the working life of The Grand
Union Canal. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LE4 (iii), OE5, BE 31 and
BE32 of the Saved Policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



(November 2012).

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to provide, through an appropriate legal agreement, an
appropriate provision of on site affordable housing. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Saved Policy R17 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012), the London Borough of Hillingdon's Supplementary Planning Document
on Planning Obligations and Policies 3.10 - 3.13 of the London Plan (2015).

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvements of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in
respect of construction training, off site highway works, the canal environment and
towpath improvements and a project management and monitoring fee). Given that a legal
agreement to address this issue has not at this stage been offered or secured, the
proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2
- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Borough of Hillingdon's
Supplementary Planning Document on Planning Obligations.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

LE4 Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated
Industrial and Business Areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



OES8

BE1

BE10
BE13
BE20
BE21
BE23
BE24

BE3

BE31
BE32

BE33
BE38

AM14
AM15
AM18

AM2

AM7
AM9

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 5.1

LPP 5.11
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.3

LPP 5.7

LPP 6.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.24
LPP 7.26

LPP 7.28
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.30
LPP 7.8
LPP 8.2

protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Development within archaeological priority areas

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains

Facilities for the recreational use of the canal

Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union
Canal

Proposals for the establishment of residential moorings

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal - securing facilities
for canal borne freight

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
(2015) Climate Change Mitigation

(2015) Green roofs and development site environs

(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Renewable energy

(2015) Parking

(2015) Improving air quality

(2015) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2015) Blue Ribbon Network

(2015) Increasing the use of the Blue Ribbon Network for freight
transport

(2015) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network

(2015) Designing out crime

(2015) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

(2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2015) Planning obligations

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

3

The Local Planning Authority has actively engaged with the applicant at the pre application
and application stage of the planning process, in order to achieve an acceptable outcome.
However, the scheme results in a number of fundamental planning concerns, including
impact on the Uxbrdge Moor Conservation Area, failure to conserve buildings and features
associated with the working life of The Grand Union Canal.lack of an appropriate provision
of on site affordable housing, and failure to provide planning obligations. Accordingly, the
planning application has been refused.

4

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy. The actual Community
Infrastructure Levy will be calculated at the time your development is first permitted and a
separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority. Should you require
further information please refer to the Council's Website
www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site relates to land owned by British Waterways, known as Waterloo Wharf, currently
occupied by Y. Goldberg & Sons Ltd., who operate a timber yard. The site is accessed
from Waterloo Road and comprises a large warehouse building, a two-storey office
building and a detached property at 80 Rockingham Road. The site is located at the
junction of Waterloo Road and Rockingham Road and is bounded on the west by the
Grand Union Canal, to the south by a working boat yard and dry dock, while to the east lie
two-storey maisonettes fronting Waterloo Road.

Waterloo Wharf was one of, if not the first wharf in Uxbridge and has been continuously
available for over two centuries. The adjacent Uxbridge Wharf was and still is principally
devoted to boat building and repair, leaving Waterloo Wharf as the only general wharfage
left in Uxbridge.

The site is within the Uxbridge Moor Conservation Area. It is also opposite the Grade Il
Listed General Elliot Public House as well as the dry dock and boat yard which is on
Hillingdon's Local List of Buildings of Architectural or Historic Importance - all three heritage
assets. The site is considered to be highly sensitive. The immediate area is characterised
by the waterside industrial/commercial nature of the canal and wharf buildings, together
with the suburban nature of the inter-War housing.

Originally allotments, terraced housing (some of which survives), inns and yards, the site
appears to have been given over for use as a wharf in the 1950s. Waterloo Wharf and the
post-War housing block (3-5 Waterloo Road) have no architectural or historic merit. The
detached property, 80 Rockingham Road, is part of the turn of the century development of
the area and whilst altered, has a relationship between the remaining properties in the area

3.2 Proposed Scheme
The proposal involves the demolition of the existing structures on the site, including the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



warehouse building, office building, main house and annex and redevelopment for
residential purposes for 53 flats.

The residential units will be provided in 2 separate blocks. Block A is located towards the
northern corner edge of the site and junction between Rockingham Road and Waterloo
Road. Building A contains seven 1-bedroom, three 2-bedroom and one 3-bedroom
apartments. Building A will front both Waterloo Road and Rockingham Road, with an
element of the western facing side towards Rockingham Bridge being below bridge level.
Building B contains 28 x 1-bedroom and 14 x 2-bedroom apartments, with an east west
orientation maximising on the canal frontage.

Block A which has been scaled down from the original submission now comprises a part
3, part 4 and part 5 storey building. The portion which straddled over the entrance in the
initial planning submission has been removed in the final design, as well as the penthouse
level.

Block B is the larger of the two blocks and commands the most prominent canal views.
Block B is now a part 3 part 4 part 5 storey building. Block B was previously configured as
two separate blocks (Blocks B and C) in the original submission. It has now been amended
to form one long rectangular shaped block, synonymous with historical industrial canal
front buildings. This block has been reduced in height, with the removal of the penthouse
level. The building has been moved further away from the canal side over three design
revisions, in order to accommodate additional amenity space along the canal front.

The south facing windows facing the boatyard have been removed in order to address
potential noise issues emanating from the boatyard. The final relocation of block B the
applicant submits, is a balance between a greater separation from the east-side
neighbouring residents (fronting Waterloo Road) and sufficient space for private and public
amenity space facing the canal.

The proposed development includes a mixture of shared and private amenity space at
ground level and the canal front has been made fully accessible for residents. The roof
space has been configured to accommodate an extensive shared landscaped roof
terraces, to provide additional amenity space with views for residents.

A children's play area has been incorporated at ground level in the north west corner of the
site. The adjacent existing listed Pillbox will be made habitable internally, with lighting and
services, for leisure use by residents. Seating has also been introduced to the various
external areas. The hard paved areas are intended in part to be used as multi-use shared
space.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

The timber yard has been in operation at this site for over 50 years, being established in
1954. Waterloo Wharf was one of if not the first wharf in Uxbridge and has been
continuously available for over two centuries.

Digging at this site commenced for the then Grand Junction Canal on 1st May 1793.
Waterloo Wharf was almost certainly the Uxbridge terminus when the Canal was opened
on 3 November 1794. For the first 150 years, Waterloo Wharf, which was originally known
as Canal Wharf was a coal wharf, operated by Fellows Morton & Clayton Ltd. until 1949.
The adjacent Uxbridge Wharf was and still is principally devoted to boat building and repair,
leaving Waterloo Wharf as the only general wharfage left in Uxbridge.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



80 Rockingham Road (formally known as 1 Waterloo Road) was built in the mid 1800's. It
was privately occupied at first, but by 1901 is shown as being in part occupied by the
Wharf Manager. The building has been extended over time and for many years has been in
use as offices.

In 2003 an application ref: 13550/APP/2003/2427 for a part 3, part 4 storey block of 38, 2
bedroom flats with 38 associated car parking spaces, together with refuse and cycle
storage facilities was refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development, by reason of its layout, scale, proportions and massing
would result in an unduly intrusive, visually prominent and incongruous form of
development, which fails to respect the established character of the Uxbridge Moor
Conservation Area or compliment the visual qualities of the Grand Union Canal and the
visual amenities of the street. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE4, BE13,
BE19 and BE32 of the Unitary Development Plan.

2. The proposed development by virtue of its siting and scale would be detrimental to the
canal side setting of the Listed Building known as the General Elliot Public House,
contrary to Policy BE10 of the Unitary Development Plan.

3. The proposal would result in inadequate provision for car parking which would be likely to
cause on-street parking, to the detriment of highway and pedestrian safety. This is contrary
to Policy AM14 of the Borough's adopted Unitary Development Plan.

4. Access to the site is considered inadequate for the likely increase in traffic generated by
the proposed development. As a result, the proposal would give rise to conditions
prejudicial to the free flow of traffic and will be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety.

The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies, AM7 and from the Borough's adopted
Unitary Development Plan.

5. The proposed development, by reason of its close proximity to the adjoining boat yard
and dry dock facility is likely to be subject to unacceptable levels of noise and vibration,
detrimental to the residential amenities of future occupiers, giving rise to noise complaints.
The proposal is therefore likely to cause operational problems for the boat yard operator,
thereby prejudicing the conservation of buildings and features associated with the working
life of The Grand Union Canal. This is contrary to Policies H6, OE5, BE 31 and BE32 of
the Unitary Development Plan.

6. The development is likely to give rise to a significant number of children of school age
that would require additional educational provisions, due to the shortfall of places in schools
serving the area. Given that a legal agreement or unilateral undertaking has not been
offered to address this issue, the proposal is considered to be contrary to policy R17 of the
Unitary development Plan.

7. The proposal fails to provide affordable housing. Given that a legal agreement or

unilateral undertaking has not been offered to address this issue, the proposal is
considered to be contrary to policy H11 of the Unitary Development Plan.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.CI1
PT1.E1
PT1.EM1
PT1.EM11
PT1.EM3
PT1.EM6
PT1.EM7
PT1.EM8
PT1.H1
PT1.H2
PT1.HEA

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

(2012) Managing the Supply of Employment Land
(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
(2012) Sustainable Waste Management

(2012) Blue Ribbon Network

)
)
)
)
)
)
(2012) Flood Risk Management
(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise
(2012) Housing Growth
(2012) Affordable Housing
)

(2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

AM13

H4
H5
H8
LE4

OE1

OE5
OE7
OE8

BE1

BE10
BE13
BE20

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families
Change of use from non-residential to residential

Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated Industrial and
Business Areas

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development within archaeological priority areas

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



BE21
BE23
BE24
BE3

BE31
BE32
BE33
BE38

AM14
AM15
AM18

AM2

AM7
AM9

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 5.1
LPP 5.11
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.24
LPP 7.26
LPP 7.28
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.30
LPP 7.8
LPP 8.2

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of archaeological
remains

Facilities for the recreational use of the canal
Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union Canal
Proposals for the establishment of residential moorings

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal - securing facilities for canal borne
freight

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

(2015) Climate Change Mitigation

(2015) Green roofs and development site environs
(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Renewable energy

(2015) Parking

(2015) Improving air quality

(2015) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2015) Blue Ribbon Network

(2015) Increasing the use of the Blue Ribbon Network for freight transport
(2015) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network

(2015) Designing out crime

(2015) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces
(2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2015) Planning obligations

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 8th April 2015

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The application has been advertised under Article 15 of the Town and Country Planning General
Development Management Order 2015 as a Major Development. The application has been
advertised as a development that affects the character and appearance of the Uxbridge Moor
Conservation Area and the setting of the Grade 2 listed building, the General Elloitt Public House. 47
surrounding property owners/occupiers were initially consulted. A subsequent consultation was
caried out for the revised scheme that was submitted in September 2015.

At the time of writing the report, 20 letters have been received objecting to the proposal. The
contents are summarised below:

- The height of the proposed new development blocks are much taller and imposing than the existing
'shed' type building that the development will replace.

- Even though the new blocks are a little further away from my property than the current building,
they will be 4/5 storeys high so this really does not equate.

- The development is very tall and despite the day light assessment common sense would indicate
that | will ultimately lose sunlight in my garden

- The blocks facing and to the side of my flat will all have balconies. which will overlook both my
garden and bedroom

- My bedroom/garden will back onto the car park. | am hugely concerned about the impact of noise |
will encounter (all hours) and indeed pollution from the cars that will be parking.

- lam concerned about the impact of any lighting planned for the car park area.

- The bin stores would be situated in the car park at the rear of mine and my neighbour's property
this would encourage the rodent population not to mention the smell

- The ratio of flats planned vs car parking spaces is a concern. Parking is already a challenge for
those of us who live in Waterloo Road. We have residential permit parking during the day, which |
know would not be open to development residents, however that ends at 5pm. The planned
development would include 52 flats with only 37 car parking - a significant shortfall which is bound to
have an impact on local residents parking on the street in surrounding roads.

- No visitotr parking

- The access to the planned development would be newly created and will be very close to the bend
at the top of Waterloo Road

- The entrance to Waterloo Road (from Rockingham Road) gets very busy and congested,
especially during 'peak hours'. The additional traffic generated from the development will only add to
this congestion.

- The reasons for refusal of the previous application still stand today

- The developer's claim of a complementary new development doesn't hold weight - the building
height together with the colour of the brick will mean it stands out like an eyesore.

- The service road at the back of Frays Waye is constantly being used to access the back gardens
of properties at both Frays Waye and Waterloo Road, but access is always an issue due to the high
number of cars parked all day, This is by people that work in the borough and want to park for free
all day, and in the evening is used as an over flow by residents who cannot part outside there
properties.

- The entrance to 'Waterloo Wharf' will be newly created and will be very close to the bend at the top

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



of Waterloo Road, travelling from Frays Waye onto Waterloo Road is already dangerous due the
fast speed and amount of cars. With additional cars using the new development this is very
dangerous.

- | am broadly in favour of this development

- The Transport Statement makes reference to there being "nodeficiencies in the public transport
network or facilities that woulddiscourage or restrict the use of these modes as being a viable
alternative to the car". This is true for journeys into London, butoptions out into Buckinghamshire and
Berkshire are far more limitedand not realistic for instance for daily commuting except to
veryspecific locations such as Slough Town centre. Most local residents

therefore have a car, which ironically will spend much of its timeparked up, increasing the need for
parking space. | gather the current well-intentioned but ultimately misguided policy of setting
maximum levels of parking has been criticised by the Minister of State forHousing and Planning it
may be appropriate in inner London, but is far less soon the outskirts.

- The development really does need a minimum of 1 residents parking space per property plus
visitor parking if it is not to have a negative impact on parking for nearby residents. Barring
occupants from applying for residents parking permits will simply move the problem

slightly further away.

- | note that a previous application to redevelop this site was turned down on the grounds of
insufficient parking. This would still seem to be a problem.

- The Planning Statement notes that "Every resident who attendedthe event objected to the provision
of affordable housing at the site". | attended but raised no such objection, and in fact think there
shouldbe a significant proportion of affordable housing to avoid apreponderance of buy-to-let with
transient student and other shortterm occupants who have no long-term commitment to the area.

- The proposed widening of the pavement on the corner of Rockingham Road and Waterloo Road
will be much appreciated.

- It would be good to find a place in the new development for the Waterloo Wharf bas-relief mounted
on the side of 80 Rockingham Road.

- This will pollute the area.

- The car park will directly face my bedroom. This new development will infringe on my privacy,
cause more traffic and pollution and it will no longer be the quiet neighbourhood

- the entrance to the proposed car park will be dangerous for pedesrians.

- | wasunable to attend the public exibition due to my disability.

- The proposed blocks are higher than the current buildings which will be more imposing on my
private garden, and also block some of the sunlight

- the building at the back of my property is a solid wall this will now change to properties there will be
light pollution streaming into my property

- The extra volume of people and cars will cause noise and toxic pollution

- | will lose the privacy of my garden and home as | will have people overlooking my garden

- The proposed waste disposal option is of concern, we currently havea large issue with vermon on
Waterloo Road,

- Has the drainage of the properties been considered,

- Any problems in this area would affect the local wildlife The wildlife along the canal and surrounding
areas will be affected during the build of the development and once the properties areready.

- The traffic in Waterloo Road and the junction of Rockingham Road is currently an issue, to have an
increased volume of traffic using this junction will add to these problems, as will the build up of traffic
on an already dangerous bend with traffic turning into the proposed complex this is an even bigger
area of concern. ]

- Waterloo Road is currently limited on parking spaces, the proposal is for less spaces to the
number of properties therefore spaces on Waterloo Road and surrounding roads will become even
more limited

- Has any consideration been given to the local support

- It is also a shame to lose some old buildings from the area it feels like we are losing some of the
local heritgage which given the history ofthe area

- If Goldbergs have a definite decision to no longer occupy the premises then the council could be

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



more creative in using these buildings to provide amenities for the local area

- Have the local infrastructure and amenities been considered, schools,hospitals etc

- There has been a number of new builds in the area over the last couple of years. The local
amenities and infrastructure is currently under strain with all the developments around the hillingdon
area so a further development will put even more pressure on the borough.

- | understand that a certain proportion of the development should be given to the council for social
housing, and | understand that the developers are trying to manage their proposal to have a limited
number of social houses but this is relating to the profits, my concern

is that there is already a large number of social housing properties on Waterloo Road and in the
surrounding areas, whilst | am not against social housing | would ask the council to take into
consideration the tenants they allocate the houses should the development go ahead.

- Buildings will have a detrimental impact on the area, and the road exiting onto Waterloo Road, has
the great potential to become a black spot for road traffic accidents involving pedestrians and other
vehicles alike, due to the number of flats proposed and distance to the turning onto the Rockingham
Road.

In addition a petition bearing 60 signatures has been received objecting to the proposals on the
following grounds:

-Significant impact on residents living in the surrounding area due to the design, height and scale,
limited parking planned, the poor access on a busy road and associated noise and pollution.

HISTORIC ENGLAND (GLAAS)

The applicant's detailed consultation with this office has led to the submission of a selection of
reports on the archaeology of the site, detailing the works the applicant has carried out prior to
determination of the current planning application.

This application involves a substantial development within the Council's Colne Valley Archaeological
Priority Zone identified for its potential for rare early prehistoric hunter gatherer sites. The application
site lies in an area which has numerous records of hunter gatherer (Upper Palaeolithic and
Mesolithic) occupation including undisturbed in-situcamp sites consisting of scatters of worked flint
tools and waste, animal bone, hazel nut shells, fire sites and in one case possibly a preserved
wooden structure. Such sites will either be of major regional or national importance. Only ¢800m
north and in a similar topographic location is the site of Three Ways Wharf (Uxbridge). Three Ways
Wharf and the New Denham site (nearby but in Buckinghamshire) are considered to be nationally
important undesignated heritage assets which under the provisions of NPPF 139 would be subject
to the policies applying to designated heritage assets.

Similar remains could exist on this site and would be considered subject to the same policies as a
designated heritage asset. Also of interest isthe site's proximity to the Grand Union Canal, as early
docks and wharves associated with the canal or its construction may extend into the site. The
proposed development may, therefore, affect remains of archaeological importance.

To date the applicant has carried the following works:

1. Archaeological Desk Based Assessment of Palaeolithic/Mesolithic Potential (Cotswold
Archaeology, dated April 2015) this included a geo-archaeological model of the site and its environs
to understand the potential for Mesolithic and Upper Palaeolithic occupation or associated
environmental remains. Importantly it also compared this site to other local sites.

2. Fieldwork and report of the Geoarchaeological monitoring of boreholes (Cotswold Archaeology /
ARCA, dated August 2015)

3. This work was followed by fieldwork and a report entitled 'Phase Il: Geoarchaeological monitoring
of evaluation trenches'(Cotswold Archaeology/ARCA , dated October 2015).

Having carefully considered the submitted reports, | confirm that the applicant has made

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



conscientious efforts to determine the value and significance of the potential buried archaeology of
this site in advance of the determination of the planning application. Unfortunately, there are on-site
logistical constraints to carrying out any further predetermination evaluation works at this stage -
these relate to the continuing operation of the saw mill on the site.

In summary, the reports are very informative pieces of work. They accord with relevant standards
and guidance and are in compliance with the advice from this office. For the sake of clarity it must
be stated, however, that these works do not decisively confirm whether archaeology similar to Three
Ways Wharf and New Denham is or is not present on this site. The results of the works indicate that
from the very small sample area available there is currently no evidence for prehistoric human
activity at the site. However, over much of the site the geological conditions appear conducive to the
survival of such remains. The evaluation trial trenching work revealed a deposit of black organic mud
of similar depth and nature to that seen at the Three Ways Wharf site has been identified, and this
deposit has been described as containing macro biological remains (plant matter and mollusc
shells). This deposit would need to be excavated more fully to see if artefactual or ecofactual
evidence of human activity was present. The advice of the Historic England Science Adviser, Dr
Sylvia Warman, is that the retained samples of this deposit should be analysed to see if any macro
botanical remains are present that could be submitted for radiocarbon 14 dating. A date now would
clarify where this deposit sits within the known Three Ways Wharf and

Phase 500 Riverside Way (Uxbridge) chronologies andbe helpful for determining the archaeological
strategy here. | would be grateful if Mr Blick could confirm if this is achievable

and whether it could be actioned now.

Appraisal of this proposal using the Historic Environment Record and the documents submitted to
date indicates that the applicant has endeavoured to collate sufficient information to reach an
informed judgment, but that logistical constraints limit further work.

| conclude that the development would not cause sufficient harm to justify refusal of planning
permission provided that robust arrangements are made to safeguard the archaeological interest
and/or require an investigation to be undertaken to advance understanding. These safeguards would
normally be secured by a conditions attached to a planning consent.

If the Borough is minded to grant consent, | recommend that the following two planning conditions
are applied. The first Condition is for archaeological investigation and then - dependent upon a
review of the results of the investigations - the Borough could recommend either full excavation of
any discovered archaeological remains or preservation in situ(or a combination of the two). The
preservation in siturequirement could be achieved via the second condition, which is for flexibility in
the foundation design to safeguard buried archaeological deposits.

Condition 1: Archaeological Investigation Two StageCondition

Condition: No demolition (except to ground slab only) or development shall take place until a stage 1
written scheme of investigation (WSI) hasbeen submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority in writing. For land that is included within the WSI, no demolition or development shall take
place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI, and the programme and methodology of site
evaluation and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to

undertake the agreed works.

If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by stage 1 then for those parts of the site
that have archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall be submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the stage 2 WSI, no
demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed stage 2 WSI
which shall include:

A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and methodology of site
investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



undertake the agreed works

B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, publication &
dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the condition shall not be discharged
until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the stage 2
WSI.

Informative: Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by

a suitably qualified professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance with Historic
England's Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater London. This condition is exempt from
deemed discharge under schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

These works should take the form of:

Geotechnical Monitoring and Potentially Further Geoarchaeology Coring Archaeological monitoring of
geotechnical pits and boreholes, combined with boreholes sunk for geaoarchaeological purposes,
can provide acost-effective means of establishing the potential for archaeological remains to survive
on previously developed land or where deep deposits are anticipated. It is usually used as part of a
desk-based assessment or field evaluation. Followed by:

Evaluation

An archaeological field evaluation involves exploratory fieldwork to determine if significant

remains are present on a site and if so to define their character, extent, quality and preservation.
Field evaluation may involve one or more techniques depending on the nature of the site and its
archaeological potential. It will normally include excavation of trial trenches. A field evaluation report
will usually beused to inform a planning decision (predetermination evaluation) but can also be
required by condition to refine a mitigation strategy after permission has been granted.

Depending upon the results of the geotechnical monitoring and any further geoarchaeological
modelling work and an assessment of the impact of the foundation design and piling density of the
proposed development, theevaluation should take the form of a grid of archaeological test pits which
are sieved for worked flint and other anthropogenic material and recorded/sampled for evidence of
formation processes and palaeoenvironmental data.

Refer to Science Advisor

In preparing a written scheme for this site, the applicant's archaeologist should consult English
Heritage's Science Advisor, Dr Sylvia Warman. The applicant will also need to submit a suitable
methodology for demolishing the buildings without harming the below ground archaeological interest.
Compliance with this methodology should be a requirement of approval. The WSI for the site should
also include contingency arrangements for major new discoveries relating to the
Palaeolithic/Mesolithic interest in the area.

Condition 2: Archaeology Foundation Design

Condition: Following the review of the results of the Stage 1 evaluation required under Condition 1, if
heritage assets worthy of preservation in situ are identified then no development shall take place until
details of the foundation design and construction method to protect archaeological remains have
been submitted and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: The planning authority wishes to secure physical preservation of the site's archaeological
interest in accordance with the NPPF.

Further information on archaeology and planning in Greater London is available at:
http://www.english-heritage.org.uk/professional/advice/our-planning-role/greaterlondon-
archaeology-advisory-service/about-glaas/

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



Please note that this advice relates solely to archaeological considerations. If necessary, English
Heritage's Development Management or Historic Places teams should be consulted
separately regarding statutory matters.

CANALS AND RIVERS TRUST

The British Waterways Board (Transfer of Functions) Order 2012 has substituted references to
British Waterways in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure)(England) Order 2010 to the Canal & River Trust. As such, local planning authorities are
now required to consult the Canal & River Trust on applications for planning permission in the same
way as British Waterways was previously consulted. In addition, under the British Waterways Board
Transfer Scheme 2012 (also made under the Public Bodies Act 2011) all the property of British
Waterways in England and Wales has now vested in the Trust. The Canal & River Trust is a
company limited by guarantee and registered as a charity. It is separate from government but still
the recipient of a significant amount of government funding.

The Trust has a range of charitable objects including:

- To hold in trust or own and to operate and manage inland waterways for public benefit, use
and enjoyment;

- To protect and conserve objects and buildings of heritage interest;

- To further the conservation, protection and improvement of the natural environment of
inland waterways; and

- To promote sustainable development in the vicinity of any inland waterways for the benefit
of the public.

The Canal & River Trust has the following comments to make on the application:

Principle of development

The Trust has no objection to the proposed redevelopment of the site for residential purposes. We
note that the site is adjacent to a working boatyard, with its associated intermittent loud noises and
the potential for occasional paint fumes etc.

Design

The Trust does not object to the proposed design of the buildings. We would like to see additional
details in relation to the boundary treatment that faces the canal. A suggested condition is included
at the end of this letter. Any boundary treatment facing the canal (such as for the gardens of Block
C) should be sensitively chosen and should not be detrimental to the appearance of the canal. For
example, 1.8m high close boarded fencing would not be considered appropriate.

Moorings

We are disappointed that the scheme does not proposed any mooring facilities. The location is
suitable for visitor moorings, which can enhance and enliven the waterspace. We consider that the
landscaping scheme should be amended to include the provision of mooring rings to allow boats to
safely moor.

Waterway wall
The condition of the waterway should be investigated prior to any demolition works taking place on
site. A condition requiring this should be included.

Planning obligations

The introduction of residential properties into a canalside location such as this will place an
additional burden on the Trust's management of the waterspace and towpath environment.
Residents and visitors to the development will likely make use of the canal environment and its

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



towpath, which will put additional pressure on this valuable open space. We also experience
increased complaints regarding windblown litter in the water from new developments where
occupants have raised expectations of our waterspace management. We would therefore request

a contribution towards canal environment and towpath improvements from the development, to
include access improvements. For a development of this size we would consider a contribution of
£25,000 to be reasonable. This contribution should be included within the s106 negotiations for the
site and the Canal & River Trust should be named within the agreement.

After due consideration of the application details, the Canal & River Trust has no objection to the
proposed development subject to the imposition of suitably worded conditions and the applicant
first entering into a legal agreement, as described above.

If the Council is minded to grant planning permission, it is requested that the following conditions
and informatives are attached to the decision notice:

Conditions:

Waterway Wall Survey

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a survey of the condition of the
waterway wall, and a method statement and schedule of the repairs identified shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the Canal & River
Trust. Any heritage features and materials identified by the survey shall be made available for
inspection by the Canal & River Trust and where appropriate, preserved in -situ or reclaimed and
re-used elsewhere. The repair works identified shall be carried out in accordance with the method
statement and repairs schedule by a date to be agreed in the repairs schedule.

Reason: In the interest of the structural integrity of the waterway wall, waterway heritage,
navigational safety and visual amenity.

Risk Assessment

Prior to the commencement of development a Risk Assessment and Method Statement outlining

all works to be carried out adjacent to the water must be submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canal & River Trust.

Reason: To ensure the proposed works do not have any adverse impact on the safety of waterway
users and the integrity of the canal.

Details of boundary treatment for Block C

Prior to commencement of the development (not including any demolition works) the applicant shall
provide full details of the proposed boundary treatment to be used for Block C, to be approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canal & River Trust.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the boundary treatment does not have an
adverse effect on the setting of the canal.

Surface Water

If surface water run-off and ground water is proposed to drain into the waterway, details shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canal &
River Trust prior to the commencement of development, and thereafter implemented in accordance
with the agreed details unless otherwise agreed in writing.

Reason: To determine the potential for pollution of the waterway and likely volume of water.

Potential contamination of the waterway and ground water from wind blow, seepage or spillage at

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



the site, and high volumes of water should be avoided to safeguard the waterway environment and
integrity of the waterway infrastructure.

Informatives

The applicant/developer should refer to the current "Code of Practice for Works affecting the Canal
& River Trust" to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained. Please visit
http://canalrivertrust.org.uk/about-us/for-businesses/undertaking-works-on-our-property

The applicant is advised that surface water discharge to the waterway will require prior consent
from the Canal & River Trust. Please contact Nick Pogson from the Canal & River Trust Utilities
team (nick.pogson@canalrivertrust.org.uk).

The applicant/developer is advised that any oversail, encroachment or access to the waterway
requires written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should contact the Canal & River
Trust regarding the required access agreement.

INLAND WATERWAYS ASSOCIATION (MIDDLESEX BRANCH)
We strongly object to the Planning Application for the following reasons:
Conservation

The General Elliot public house together with the former Fellows Morton and Clayton Uxbridge dock
and the existing timber warehouse collectively form a group of buildings which are an important
heritage asset and typical of an historic urban canal setting.

The Design and Access Statement claims that the warehouse at Waterloo Wharf has no particular
architectural or historic merit but this argument completely misses the point of Conservation Area
designation. Conservation Areas are not comprised only of architecturally important or historic
buildings - they often embrace the ordinary and the utilitarian, which create a place worthy of
conservation.

The proposed soft landscaping and the pocket gardens facing the canal will completely destroy the
existing character of the timber yard canal wharf.

Scale

Block B, which is five storeys in height, introduces a high and overbearing element within the
Conservation Area and will dominate both the canal and the General Elliot public house. The four
storeys of Block C will dwarf the historic sheds of the Fellows Morton and Clayton dock. In order to
preserve this important canal setting the residential elements of this scheme should be no more
than three storeys in height.

UXBRIDGE BOAT CENTRE LTD

This development is immediately adjacent to our boatyard and in particular our dry dock (wrongly
marked on the plan as a warehouse). This dry dock is unique in the greater London area because of
its size. It is the only dock large enough to accept the large boats that frequent the Southern Grand
Union and London Canal system. The dock has an entrance that is 14ft-3" wide and the dock itself
measures 25ft wide x 80ft long and can accept boats with a draught up to 4ft. | have listed below
some of the craft that rely (because of their size) on our dock.

.Canal and River Trust for repair and maintenance of their own canal maintenance craft.
.Commercial craft belonging to subcontractors engaged in waterway maintenance and waterside
developments.

.The commercially owned London trip and restaurant boats.

.The London based commercially owned floating offices.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



.The charity funded floating classroom boats used for educational purposes.
.The London borough owned youth and community boats.

.The charity funded boats designed to accommodate wheelchair users.
.The larger houseboats.

.The larger pleasure boats.

The first seven on the above list all bring jobs both directly and indirectly to the area.

Our dock and cranage facilities are widely used by local boat owners to repair and maintain their
own boats. These boats are a mix of commercial, residential, private leisure, church, charity and
London borough owned. The leisure, church,charity and residential boats are maintained by their
owners and / or volunteer labour. These people by necessity need to work on their boats outside
normal working hours i.e. at weekends and in the evening, these activities are incompatible with the
proposed adjacent residential use.

| have taken advice from a local commercial property developer who following an inspection of the
buildings on the proposed development site reported that in his opinion the portal frames of the
existing buildings are in good and reusable condition and the eves are of sufficient height to allow a
quality two storey profitable refurbishment of the existing buildings to take place maintaining their
commercial use.

As a boatyard we, unlike some businesses are unable to relocate. As a company we have trading
from this site since 1976. The site has been a boatyard for around 150 years. There have been a
number of modern quality marina developments within the area over the last 15 - 20 years which
have been successful in attracting and expanding the canal's leisure and residential use. None of
these developments have been able to accommodate the cost of dry dock construction. The other
large dry dock that used to be in the area is now a Tesco store at Bulls Bridge, Southall. There are
numerous examples up and down the canal system of boatyards and their facilities being lost or
seriously curtailed following adjacent residential development, the concerns we are expressing are
demonstrably very real.

This company was served a noise notice in April 1979. On that occasion the council rehoused the
complainant and we as a company agreed to lease the property concerned. It would be a waste of
the Council's and our own investment over the intervening years to allow this unsuitable
development now.

| have shown a summarised list of our objections below: -

1) Change of use.

2) There are numerous examples up and down the country of boatyards closing or having their
activities seriously curtailed following adjacent residential development.

3) Boatyards and residential properties are incompatible by their very nature.

4) Loss of unique and irreplaceable service to local business, transport, residential, educational,
leisure and services for wheelchair users.

5) Damaging to national government policy of transferring transport from road to water within
London.

6) Proposed development is in direct conflict with existing and adjacent use.

7) Adjacent user unable to relocate.

8) Site is capable of profitable redevelopment maintaining existing commercial use.

9) Residential development is threat to local jobs.

The canal system is promoted as a linear park providing a valuable amenity with free access for all.
The boats in all their forms are an important part of this and they require the facilities we provide.

METROPOLITAN POLICE CRIME PREVENTION ADVISOR

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



No objection subject to secure by Design accreditation.

Internal Consultees
ACCESS OFFICER

In light of the revised proposal, the Deregulation Act 2015, Section 42 (optional requirements),
rationalises accessibility housing standards at national level.

From 1 October 2015, Hillingdon Council has continued to require accessible housing through its
existing Local Plan policy and the Minor Alterations to the London Plan 2015, Policy 3.8 (Housing
Choice).

The proposal is for the erection of two blocks comprising 53, 1, 2 and 3 bedroom flats. 35 car
parking spaces are proposed, and the Design & Access Statement further reports on a ramped
approach to each block, along with circulation areas, lifts and stairs designed to comply with
Approved Document M to the Building Regulations.

The scheme should be revised and compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant)
should be shown on plan. In addition, 10% of new housing should be built to wheelchair home
standards and should accord with relevant policies, legislation and adopted guidance.

The following access observations are provided:

1. Level access should be achieved. Details of level access to and into blocks A, B and should be
submitted. A fall of 1:60 in the areas local to the principal entrance and rear entrance should be
incorporated to prevent rain and surface water ingress. In addition to a levels plan showing internal
and external levels, a section drawing of the level access threshold substructure, and water bar to
be installed, including any necessary drainage, should be submitted.

2. A minimum of five wheelchair accessible flats should be incorporated into the scheme. Detailed
plans showing their location and internal layout should be submitted. In line with the GLA 'Wheelchair
Housing BPG', the wheelchair accessible flats should be evenly distributed between the proposed
blocks, should be located on the ground floor, and allocated an accessible parking space.

3. The five wheelchair accessible flats should be designed in accordance with the guidance set out
in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon' (adopted May 2013).

4. The remaining flats should be designed in accordance with Lifetime Home standards. At least
700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100 mm provided between the front edge of
the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

Conclusion: The revised plans similarly appear not to include housing which is suitable for
wheelchair users, and the scheme should therefore be revised accordingly.

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER

Site description:

- The 0.82 acre (0.33ha) plot is occupied by an intensively developed industrial site comprising a
large warehouse running parallel to the Grand Union Canal and ancillary buildings currently operating
as a saw mill and timber merchant.

- It is bounded to the north (west) by the abutment of the Rockingham Road over bridge and to the
north (east) by Waterloo Road, from which the site is accessed.

- The east boundary backs onto the rear gardens of house numbers 11-22 which front onto

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



Waterloo Road and the southern boundary is shared with a smaller warehouse and boat yard
fronting on to Uxbridge Wharf.

- This commercial site lies at the interface between the edge of canal /edge of town centre and the
residential suburbs.

Landscape Planning designations:

- There are no trees on, or Tree Preservation Orders affecting, the site.

- However, there are a few off-site trees close to the site boundaries and the site lies within the
Uxbridge Moor Conservation Area.

Landscape constraints / opportunities:
- This site has a distinctive sense of place, due to its location next to the Grand Union Canal and its
location within a designated Conservation Area.

PROPOSAL:
The proposal is to erect 2 blocks containing 53 one, two and three bedroom apartments, together
with associated parking access and landscaping, involving demolition of existing buildings.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

- The tree survey by Ruskins, dated November 2014, confirms that there are 4No. specimen trees
and 1No. group. All are off-site and all are graded C1, according to the assessment (to
BS5837:2012). The report confirms that none of these trees should be adversely influenced by the
development.

- The Design & Access Statement, by Frame, includes a clear analysis of the site and the evolution
of the proposals, with reference to pre-application discussions with the LPA. Clear integrated
landscape objectives are set out on p. 25, supported by Barry Chinn Associates' External Works
Masterplan.

- More detailed landscape objectives are set out in document ref. 1482/14/RP01 Rev A, Landscape
Design Statement by the landscape consultant, Barry Chinn Associates.

- The landscape design features improvements to the Rockingham Road / Waterloo Road
boundaries, soft landscape screening between the car park and the Waterloo Road residents,
accessible communal amenity space alongside the canal, private (defensible) space around
ground-floor flats, and accessible roof terraces.

- The soft landscaping (planting) comprises features, such as hedging, which will provide 'instant’
impact, while other planting (notably the trees) will provide a robust and attractive landscape that
matures over time.

- The application is supported by BCA drawing Nos. 01 Rev E: External Works Masterplan, 02 Rev
D: External Works Masterplan Sections, 03 Rev C: External Works Roof Terrace Masterplan - 3rd
Floor Block B & C, and 04 Rev C: External Works Masterplan Penthouse Block A and B.

- A small formal play area is proposed in the north-west corner of the site. This is far from ideal.
The site is below the wall supporting the road bridge and sandwiched extremely close to two private
terraces belonging to ground-floor flats / residents. The siting of the play area also blocks a natural
link to the canal for residents of block A. It is understood that the opportunities to site a play area are
very limited and that the location of the play area has been the subject of pre-application discussion.
- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment - in accordance with the Masterplan.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

This application has been subject to pre-application discussions. No objection, subject to the above
observations and RES6, RES7, RES8 (to protect the above ground spread of the tree to the rear of
Waterloo Road), COM9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5, and 6).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



HIGHWAY ENGINEER

a. The site has moderate public transport accessibility (PTAL = 3). The proposal includes 35 car
park spaces for the 53 dwelling units. This is considered acceptable within an area with a CPZ and
the applicant has acknowledgedthat future residents of this development would not be entitled to
parking permits.

b. The visibility sight lines at the new access are considered marginally below standards, However,
because the Council is developing a traffic calming scheme for Waterloo Road to reduce traffic
speeds to 20 mph, it should not then be necessary for any on-street car park bays to be deleted. It
should be noted that the traffic calming scheme will be subject of public consultation.

c. The applicant has indicated some widening of the footway along Rockingham Road (Drw.No:
Sub-03 Rev.B). The land will need to be dedicated as highway for this purpose and will require a
s106 / s38 agreement. The extent/ area of land required will need to be agreed as part of developing
the traffic calming scheme that is currently in progress.

d. Details of provision for delivery vehicles is required. Vehicle swept paths demonstrating that these
vehicles can enter and leave the site in forward gear should be provided.

e. The proposal shows an electric gate at the access to the car park DRW.No: Sub-04 Rev C).
These should be set back 10m (from the back of footway) - to allow a delivery vehicle to wait
without obstructing the highway. The proposals also show a pedestrian gate - This will cause
difficulty for access by mobility impaired users. It is recommended that both these gates to be
removed from the proposal.

(Officer Note: Additional information has been submitted which addresses the above mentioned
issues).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT (EPU)
Noise

The proposed development, by reason of it's close proximity to the adjoining boat yard and dry dock
facility, is likely to be subject to unacceptable levels of noise and vibration, which can be considered
detrimental to the residential amenities of future occupiers, and therefore giving rise to noise
complaints.

The noise report included with the submission mentions the close proximity of the boatyard & timber
yard to residential premises, and the possible noise issues that arise from these operations. It has
suggested the use of non-openable windows to the affected elevations with trickle vents or HVAC
units to those elevations that look out onto these respective businesses.

It may be that the development of a barrier could reduce the noise disturbance, such as a wall or a
separate non-residential building, but this would need to be looked at in more detail by the developer.

| can confirm that historically, because of the operational aspect of the boatyard, noise complaints
from nearby residents had been received, and have been resolved by the installation of a barrier to
contain the majority of noisy works, and the leasing of one of the nearby properties. The way the
boathouse operates is such that not only do they carry out the business of repairing boats within the
dry dock and its environs, but they also allow boat owners to utilise the dry dock and as such, the
operation of the boatyard could be considered to be in operation 24/7, as boat owners may wish to
attend to their boats of an evening or at weekends. The nature of the work is erratic and as such
could give rise to complaints.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



Additionally, there is also the operating timber yard and two public houses, that will add to the noise
environment for any residential premises. As such, no complaints have been received but an
increase in the residential properties could result in an increase in complaints.

The proposal is therefore likely to cause operational problems for the boat yard operator thereby
prejudicing the conservation of building and features associated with the working life of the grand
union Canal. This is contrary to policy OE5 and as such EPU object to the application.

| do not feel that there are any conditions that could be added that would prevent a noise nuisance
occurring and proposed residents being disturbed unduly.

Comments on revised submision:

Although this site has made changes to the assessment, and the positioning of the two blocks, my
previous comments and concerns still stand.

Air Quality

The air quality assessment does not consider receptors along A408 which would have been useful.
Whereas the impact is considered negligible by the study produced, | believe the input data did not
capture all contributions as the results do not match with the LAEI modelling results for the site.

If minded to grant permission 2 planning conditions are recommended: one on mechanical
ventilation and another on provision of a low emission strategy.

This proposal includes an energy centre the impact associated with it was determined based on a
set of assumptions. If these assumptions change, the impact magnitude can change significantly.
Therefore approval will be subject to the following CHP condition:

The final plant design must adhere to the following minimum specifications:

1) the CHP will have a single flue terminating at least 1m above the roof level and must be designed
such that it will operate with a minimum efflux velocity of 10 m/s to allow for good inital dispersion of
emissions a boiler system to be comprised of units totalling 400 kW must share a common flue
outlet with a maximum exit diameter of 0.4 m terminating 1 m above the roof level.2) all stacks
should discharge vertically upwards and be unimpeded by any fixture on top of the stack (e. g., rain
cowls or 'Chinaman's Hat'")

3) a boiler system to be comprised of units totalling 400kW must share a common flue outlet with a
maximum exit diameter of 0.4m terminating 1 m above the roof level

4) the system must be designed to conform to the requirements of the GLA's guidance on
sustainable design and construct on (GLA, 2014) for a band B development. As such, the CHP will
have a maximum NOx emission limit of 125 mg/Nm3 (at normalised conditions) and the gas boilers
will conform to a maximum emission of <40 mg/ kWh.

The SPG makes clear that the emission standards are 'end- of -pipe' concentrations expressed at
specificreference conditions for temperature, pressure, oxygen and moisture content. Compliance
with these standards will be confirmed prior to occupation, based on:

a) monitoring undertaken on the actual installed plant or
b) based on manufacturer guaranteed performance levels supported by type approval monit oring
undertaken by the equipment supplier

In order to attain these values, relevant catalyst or alternative abatement will be required. This will be
approved by the Officer.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION OFFICER

There are no objections in principle to the demolition subject to getting an appropriate and good
quality scheme. If agreed then the buildings would need to be recorded.

The plaque on the end of the existing 2 storey building on the corner of Waterloo Road and
Rockingham Road should be salvaged and incorporated into the new development. The existing
railings on the approach to the bridge should be retained, the retention of the pill box is welcomed.
The location and footprints of both buildings are considered acceptable in principle

Block A

This needs its upper floor set back and should drop gradually in scale down to 2 storeys on
Waterloo Road, where the buildings are much smaller in scale. The stair tower on the corner would
be a very large and heavy looking element that would be a dominant element in the street scene. It
needs to be reduced in height and | would much prefer to see this element with more glazing.

The ground floor bedroom adjacent to the entrance needs to have some screening for privacy

More soft landscape should be provided within the parking areas.

| feel the play area would be better located away from the retaining wall to the bridge abutment, as its
likely to be in shadow and overlooked form the road/bridge. High level screening would be required if
the railings are retained and this area is likely to be more secure where it can be overlooked by the
flats.

Block B

This is considered to still be too tall and bulky within the existing townscape context, the top floor
should be set back and the scale of the block needs to drop down to the existing warehouse
structures. | don't believe the roof terraces would look as shown and are likely to create more height
and bulk at roof level. The staircase towers are also likely to be very dominant elements on the
skyline.

| would like the applicant to look at more interesting materials with an "industrial" feel, such as
perforated metal cladding, or Corten steel, rather than what looks like standard profiled zinc
cladding.

A Heritage Statement should be submitted. This should show that the applicant understands the
history and features of the area and their significance, and justifies the demolition of the existing
buildings. The small Edwardian buildings on the frontage do in my view contribute positively to the
character of the area and should ideally be retained.

| consider that the current scheme, whilst an improvement, would be damaging to the setting of the
conservation area and the adjacent listed building.

Additional Comments:

The Heritage Statement is a good report, which clearly describes the history, development and
significance of the Conservation Area and the buildings proposed for demolition. It does not,
however, include anything that would change the above conservation and design comments in
terms of the appropriateness of the scale and massing of the currently proposed development.

FLOOD AND DRAINAGE OFFICER

There are no overall objection to the scheme. There are areas that need to be clarified and so the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



following conditions are recommended:

Long Term Management and Maintenance of the drainage system.

i. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of arrangements
to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including appropriate details of
Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification, remediation and time scales for the
resolving of issues. Where there is overland flooding proposed, the plan should include the
appropriate actions to ensure the safety of the users of the site should that be required.

ii. Where the maintenance will not be the responsibility of an individual householder, the details of the
body legally responsible for the implementation of the management and maintenance plan must be
provided.

f) During Construction

i. How temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk from
commencement of construction.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not increase the
risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (July 2011)
and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March
2014). To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable
Drainage of the London Plan (July 2011), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy
5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

Although there are proposed surface water sewers on the site it is not clear from the documents
who is going to have overall management and maintenance of these assets and whether they are
being put up for adoption. This needs to be clarified as part of the submitted management and
maintenance plan for the site.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The application site falls outside of the proposed Strategic Industrial Locations in the
emerging Local Plan Part 2 and it is not identified as a Locally Significant Industrial Site.

Paragraph 5.10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 sets out that there is more employment
land in the Borough than is currently needed. Policy E1: Managing the Supply of
Employment Land, identifies areas of managed release of employment land for
development. The applicant submits that there is policy support for the site's
redevelopment for non-employment generating uses in the London Plan and the UDP
Saved Policies. London Plan Policy 4.4 states that the Borough should plan, monitor and
manage the release of surplus industrial land so that it can contribute to strategic and local
planning objectives, specifically those to provide more housing. However, it should be
noted that the the application site is not identified through the Local Plan as a site for
managed release.

Saved Local Plan Part 2 Policy LE4 sets out that proposals involving the loss of existing
industrial floorspace or land outside of designated industrial and business areas will
normally only be permitted subject to certain criteria. Addressing each of the Saved Policy
LE4 criteria in turn, the applicant contends that there is a strong case to support the loss of
employment use at the application site.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



(i) The existing use seriously affects amenity, through disturbance to neighbours, visual
intrusion or an adverse impact in the character of an area;

The current use of the site is un-restricted in planning terms, with no conditions controlling
hours of operation, noise levels or vehicle movements to and from the site. As the
commercial use of the site is unregulated, the use of the site for industrial purposes has
the potential to now and in the future, have a detrimental impact on the prevailing residential
character, amenity and outlook of residents in the area. However, it should be noted that
current use of the site as a timber yard is long established, and the Council's
Environmental Protection Unit has no record of noise complaints associated with the use
of the site as a timber yard.

In addition, it is considered that the existing timber yard warehouse forms part of a group
of buildings which are an important heritage asset and typical of an historic urban canal
setting.

(if) The site is unsuitable for industrial redevelopment because of the size, shape, location
or lack of vehicular access;

The Transport Statement that accompanies this application demonstrates that the current
use and operation of the site has a detrimental impact on the local highway network,
particularly through the level and frequency of HGV traffic which causes local congestion
and road safety issues adjacent to the St Mary's Catholic Primary School.

Any proposals for redevelopment of the site for employment generating uses in the future
would be assessed against impact on amenity.

It is considered that residential use of the site would be compatible with the residential
properties directly adjacent to the site fronting Walterloo Road. However, concerns remain
regarding the relationship of a residential use on the site with the adjoining boat yard.

(iii) There is no realistic prospect of the land being used for industrial or warehousing
purposes in the future;

The applicants contend that the location of the site is unattractive to potential business /
commercial users of the site. To reinforce this conclusion, an independent market report
has been submitted in support of this application. The report highlights the poor prospect
of successful sale / lease of the site for its future utilisation for industrial, storage or
commercial purposes, due to its relatively inferior location compared to purpose built
employment centres / business parks in the Borough, access restrictions, the current state
of repair of existing site buildings, high potential for conflict with adjacent residential uses
(noise, disturbance, hours of operation, highways safety etc) and financial and market
conditions.

The applicants state that the site has been marketed since May 2014. The marketing report
that accompanies this application explains that despite several enquiries, the marketing
campaign has failed to attract an occupier. However, it is noted that the disposal options
were quite restrictive. The property was marketed on a leasehold basis only, with a view to
agreeing a new

lease for a period of five to 10 years. The freehold of the property was not available.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



Furthermore, the site was occupied during the marketing period by Goldberg who was to
remain in situ. The explanation to the market was that should a transaction be agreed, the
current occupiers (Goldberg) would be given sufficient time in which to relocate, which was
considered to be in the region of three months from after exchange of contracts.

The report concludes that the fact that the property is 45 years old means that there are
two inescapable consequences that have put off occupiers. The first is that when the
property was built it may well have been adequate in terms of access and circulation but
occupiers are now seeking detached properties with secure yards with adequate
circulation which leads to a more efficient site. The second fact is the condition of the
building, leading to worries over high maintenance costs and even having to replace the
roof at some stage. Even though the site could be redeveloped to be replaced with a
modern building with a better site configuration, it would not mitigate the access issue
which would always be prevalent, as the property is located on a predominantly residential
street.

In addition, there has been a number of speculative schemes being built which has led to
occupiers being given more choice. All these new developments are providing occupiers
with better options which have led to the subject site struggling to attract interest.

It is clear from the aformentioned report and submitted documentation that the current
occupiers operate a viable commercial empolyment generating business, which would
need to relocate, in order for the current residential development to go ahead. In addition, in
light of the restrictive terms of the marketing exercise, it is unlikely that potential occupiers
would be willing to commit capital investment to refurbish or redevelop the site for industrial
purposes, in view of the short lease offer. It is therefore considered that the applicant has
failed to demonstrate that there is no realistic prospect of the land being used for industrial
or warehousing purposes in the future, contrary to Saved UDP policy LE4 (iii) of the Local
Plan Part 2

(iv) They are in accordance with the Council's regeneration policies for the area.

The Local Plan lists individual strategic policies including Policy E1 relating to Managing the
Supply of Employment Land and states the Council will accommodate growth by protecting
Strategic Industrial Locations and the designation of Locally Significant Industrial Sites
(LSIS) and Locally Significant Employment Locations (LSEL), including the designation of
13.63 hectares of new employment land. The site which is the subject of this application
does not fall within a LSIS or LSEL.

The NPPF, The London Plan (2015), the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic
policies and the saved Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Policies (2007) all support the
provision of residential accommodation in appropriate locations. London Plan Policy 3.3
(increasing housing supply) seeks to increase London's housing supply, enhance the
environment, improve housing choice and afforability and to propvide better
accommodation for Londoners. Local Plan Policy PT1.H1 affirms the London Plan targets
to deliver 4,250 hew homes in the Borough from 2011 to 2021 or 6,375 dwellings up to
2026. The proposal includes 53 residential units, which will contribute towards the
Council's housing supply as prescribed in the London Plan and emerging local policy.
However, it is noted that the site is not identified in the forthcoming Site Allocations and
Designations document as being required to meet the Council's housing targets.

In terms of Blue Ribbon policies, although the loss of potential wharfage facilities is a

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



material consideration, it is not considered on its own to justify a reason for refusal, given
that these facilities have not been used as such since the present incumbents occupied
the site in 1954. It is also noted the the Canals and Rivers Trust have expressed
disapointment that the scheme does not proposed any mooring facilities, as the location is
suitable for visitor moorings, which can enhance and enliven the water space. However,
the applicants have indicated that they do not intend to provide morings along that stretch
of the canal; failure to do so is not considered to be a sustainable reason to refuse the
application. However, as stated elsewhere in this report, concerns are raised regarding the
impact of the development on the continued use of the adjoinhg boat yard and dry dock.

Conclusion

There is local and London Plan support the release of surplus industrial land to provide
more housing where appropriate. Evidence demonstrates that Hillingdon Borough has a
surplus of employment land at present. However, the site is not identified in the forthcoming
Site Allocations and Designations document as being required for the managed release of
employment land, to meet the Council's housing targets. The current occupiers operate a
long established commercial employment generating use, which would need to relocate, or
cease operations, in order for the proposed residential development to go ahead. It is
considered that the applicant has failed to justify the loss of employment land and
demonstrate that the proposed scheme satisfies all the criteria of Policy LE4 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). Objections are
therefore raised to the principle of residential development on the site.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The application site has an area of 0.33 ha. The local area is considered to represent an
suburban context and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 3. Policy 3.4 of
the London Plan seeks for new developments to achieve the maximum possible density
which is compatible with the local context. Table 3.2 of the London Plan recommends that
for a PTAL of 3, a density of 150-250 hr/ha or between 50-95 u/ha, (assuming 2.7-3.0 hr/u)
can be achieved for the application site. For an urban setting a density of 200-450 hr/ha or
between 70-170 u/ha, (assuming 2.7-3.0 hr/u) can be achieved for the application site.

The proposal seeks to provide 53 residential units, totalling 125 habitable rooms. This
equates to a density of 160 u/ha or 378 hr/ha. This level of development is above the
guidelines set out within Table 3.2 density matrix of the London Plan, assuming a PTAL of
3 for a suburban setting and would be more appropriate to an urban setting.

It will therefore be important to demonstrate that the units will have good internal and
external living space, and that the scale and layout of the proposed development is
compatible with sustainable residential quality, having regard to the specific constraints of
this site, including its conservation area designation and proximity to statutory and locally
listed buildings.

UNIT MIX

Saved Local Plan Part 2 Policies H4 and H5 seek to ensure a practicable mix of housing
units are provided within residential schemes. One and two bedroom developments are
encouraged within town centres, while larger family units are promoted elsewhere. There is
a change in the housing mix in the revised scheme, which now has three more 1-bed units,
one less 2-bed unit and 1 less 3-bed unit than the original proposals. The revised scheme
also includes one additional unit overall taking the total number to 53 dwellings. The revised
unit mix is now 35 x 1-bed, 17 x 2-bed and 1 x 3-bed units. This mix of units is considered

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



to be more appropriate to a town centre location and the lack of larger family units is
considered to be a lost oportunity, particularly if some larger units may be required as part
of any affordable housing offer.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

ARCHAEOLOGY

The NPPF accords great weight to the conservation of designated heritage assets and
also non-designated heritage assets of equivalent interest. Heritage assets of local or
regional significance may also be considered worthy of conservation. Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that the Local
Planning Authority will only allow development, which would disturb remains of importance
in archaeological priority areas where exceptional circumstances can be demonstrated.
Part 2 Saved Policy BE3 states that the applicant will be expected to have properly
assessed and planned for the archaeological implications of their proposal. Proposals
which destroy important remains will not be permitted.

This application involves a substantial development within the Council's Colne Valley
Archaeological Priority Zone identified for its potential for rare early prehistoric hunter-
gatherer sites. Also of interest is the site's proximity to the Grand Union Canal, as early
docks and wharves associated with the canal or its construction may extend into the site.
The proposed development may, therefore, affect remains of archaeological importance.

GLAAS advise that the development would not cause sufficient harm to justify refusal of
planning permission, provided that robust arrangements are made to safeguard the
archaeological interest and/or require an investigation to be undertaken to advance
understanding. These safeguards would be secured by a conditions attached to a planning
consent.

LISTED BUILDINGS

The site is located at a key location in the Uxbridge Moor Conservation Area and close to
the Grade 2 Listed General Elliot Public House. The relationship with the locally listed
Uxbridge Boat Yard immediately to the south of the site is considered to be particularly
important. Accordingly, Policies BE4 and BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) are relevant. Any development would therefore be
expected to address these matters.

In terms of the impact of the development on heritage assets, the relationship with the
Locally Listed Boat Yard as proposed, is considered to be poor. The four storeys of Block
B would dwarf the historic sheds of the former Fellows Morton and Clayton dock.
Furthermore, it is considered that the impact upon the setting of the Grade Il listed General
Elliot PH opposite, would harm that building's historic significance. The proposal therefore
does not generally meet the NPPF's core principles; particularly that planning should be
seeking to ensure high quality design and seeking to conserve heritage assets in a manner
appropriate to their significance. It is not considered that the proposal will sustain the
significance of these heritage assets.

CONSERVATION AREA

There is no objection in principle to the demolition of the Waterloo Wharf building and the
post-War housing block (3-5 Waterloo Road). These are not considered to have any
particular architectural or historic merit and do not contribute to the conservation area.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



However, the detached property, 80 Rockingham Road has some merit and should ideally
have been incorporated into a new development scheme. Whilst slightly isolated within the
context of the existing site, it forms part of the history of the area and has a relationship
between the remaining properties on Rockingham Road. However, the applicant has
indicated that this is not a viable option. On balance the Urban design and Conservation
Officer considers that there are no objections in principle to the demolition, subject to
replacement with an appropriate and good quality scheme.

This development would result in 2 substantial blocks (A and B), up to 4 storeys high, with
fifth floor penthouses.

Layout

In terms of siting, the Urban Design and Conservation Officer considers that the location
and footprints of both buildings are acceptable in principle. However, the play area would be
more approporiately located away from the retaining wall to the bridge abutment, as its
likely to be in shadow and overlooked form the road/bridge.

Scale and Massing

In terms of the scale and massing, the overall height of the blocks are a storey, and in
some cases two storeys higher than the existing wharf buildings. This is considered
unacceptable. A previous scheme for a housing block of 4-storeys was refused in 2003
(13550/APP/2003/2427). This proposal would be higher. The proposed development
therefore, because of its height and scale would fail to respect the character or appearance
of the conservation area.

With regard to Block A, the Urban Deisgn and Conservation Offficer reommnended that the
upper floor be set back and should drop gradually in scale down to 2 storeys on Waterloo
Road, where the buildings are much smaller in scale. The stair tower on the corner would
also be a very large and heavy looking element that would be a dominant element in the
street scene and would therefore need to be reduced in height

Block B would be 4 to 5 storeys high, in contrast to the surrounding development, which
predominantly comprises 2 storey residential properties and single storey commercial
premises fronting the canal. Despite the revisions to reduce its height, this block is
considered to still be too tall and bulky within the existing townscape context. The Urban
Design and Conservation Officer recommended that the top floor should be set back and
the scale of the block needs to drop down to the existing warehouse structures. The
staircase towers are also considered to be very dominant elements on the skyline.

In response to these concerns the applicant has stated that the plans have already been
revised significantly to reflect earlier feedback from officers, and further amendments to
reduce the height and therefore the number of units on site would render the scheme
unviable and undeliverable.

A Heritage Statement has been submitted in support of the application which has been
reviewed by the Urban Design and Conservation Officer. This document is considered to
be a good report, which clearly describes the history, development and significance of the
Conservation Area and the buildings proposed for demolition. It does not, however, include
anything that would change the previous conservation and design comments in terms of
the appropriateness of the scale and massing of the currently proposed development.

In conclusion, the proposed scale and mass of the new residential blocks would be out of
character with the established scale of buildings in the conservation area, contrary to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



Saved Policies BE4, BE19 and BE32 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and relevant policies of the London Plan. It is also considered
that the impact of the development upon the setting of the Grade 2 listed General Elliott
public house opposite and the adjacent locslly listed boat yard would harm those building's
historic interest, contrary to Saved policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) and the provisions of the NPPF.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues related to this development.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

There are no Green Belt issues associated with this site.
7.06 Environmental Impact

The Phase 1 Detailed Study submitted in support of this application concludes that there is
an overall negligible to moderate level of risk from potential contaminants.

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit raises no objections to specific contamination
issues at this site. A condition could be imposed to minimise risk of contamination from
garden and landscaped areas.

In addition, the Canals and Rivers Trust have recommended conditions requiring the
submission of a waterway wall survey and a risk assessment, in order to ensure the
proposed works do not have any adverse impact on the safety of waterway users and the
integrity of the canal.

Had the development been acceptable in other respects, subject to the aforementioned

conditions, it is considered that the scheme could satisfactorily address the issues relating

to land contamination and the integrity of the adjoining canal, in compliance with Policy

OE11 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Part 1 policy BE1 requires all new development to improve and maintain the quality of the
built environment in order to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods. Saved
Part 2 Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new development complements or
improves the character and amenity of the area, whilst Policy BE38 seeks the retention of
topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting and landscaping
indevelopment proposals.

In terms of design, development adjacent to canals should respect the particular character
of the canal. Policy BE32 requires development to complement the visual qualities of the
canal in terms of scale, bulk, layout and materials. Development should also enhance or
create views through and from the development, from and towards the watercourse.

London Plan Policy 7.1 sets out a series of overarching design principles for development
in London and policy 7.6 seeks to promote world-class, high quality design and design-led
change in key locations. In addition to Chapter 7, London Plan policies relating to
density(3.4) and sustainable design and construction (5.3) are also relevant.

The scale, bulk and siting of buildings are key determinants in ensuring that the amenity
and character of established residential areas are not compromised by new development.
The main constraints and opportunities of the site have been identified, in particular its
relationship to neighbouring residential and industrial properties and the canal side. As
such, the proposals need to be considered with regard to the impact on Waterloo Road
and the Grand Union Canal.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



It is considered thet the development would dominate the area and be out of scale with the
surrounding development. The proposal would be especially noticeable when viewed over
the roof tops of the properties on Waterloo Road. Block B, which is five storeys in height,
introduces a high and overbearing element within the Conservation Area and will dominate
the historic sheds of the Fellows Morton and Clayton dock, the canal, the General Elliot
public house and the two storey residential properties fronting Waterloo Road. These
matters have been dealt with in section 7.03 of this report.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

DAYLIGHT/OVERSHADOWING

Saved Policy BE20 of the Saved Policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the HDAS - Residential Layout seek to ensure that new
development does not result in harm to neighbouring occupiers through loss of daylight or
sunlight. The application has been supported by a Daylight and Sunlight Assessment,
which assesses the impact of the development on the level of sunlight and daylight
reaching neighbouring properties and for future occupiers of the development.

It is considered unlikely that the proposal will result in substantial shading/overshadowing of
the rear gardens of the nearest residential properties fronting Waterloo Road.

OUTLOOK

Policy BE21 of the Saved Policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to resist developments which would result in significant loss of
residential amenity by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity. The HDAS - Residential
Layout provides further guidance on the interpretation of this policy. a setback of 15m
should be maintained between habitable room windows and side boundaries to avoid loss
of outlook to adjoining occupiers and to provide adequate outlook for future residents of the
development.

The proposed Block B would maintain an average distance of 23m to the boundaries of the
rear

gardens of properties fronting Waterloo Road and 30 metres to the rear windows of those
properties. This is in contrast to the current situation where the existing steel clad 2 storey
equivalent warehouse building is sited only 5 metres away from the site's eastern
boundary. Not withstanding the bulk and massing of block B, given the separation distance
provided, it is not considered that the development would produce an oppressive impact, or
have an adverse effect on the outlook of adjoining residents from their rear gardens, in
accordance with Policy BE21 of the Local Plan Part 2 Saved policies.

PRIVACY

In relation to privacy, Policy BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) requires new residential developments to be designed so as to ensure
adequate outlook and privacy for occupants of the site.

A distance of approximately 30 metres is maintained between the rear eastern elvevation of
the proposed block B and the rear windows of properties fronting Waterloo Road, with a
corresponding distance of between approximately 23 metres to the private amenity areas
of those prperties. The plans show a bank of windows on all the floors on the rear elevation
of the proposed block B. The perception of residents of these adjacent properties would
therefore be of a lack of privacy in their rear gardens, compared with the current situation,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



where they look onto a blank facade to the existing warehouse building. However, given that
the separation distances between the proposed block B and adjoining dwellings meets the
relevant design guidance, it is not considered that refusal of the scheme on the grounds of
unacceptable loss of privacy to the adjacent properties is sustainable in this case.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Saved Policy H8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states amongst other things, that the conversion or change of use of premises to
residential use will only be acceptable if a satisfactory residential environment can be
achieved.

External Amenity Space:

Policy BE23 of the Saved Policies UDP sets out that new developments should ensure
adequate external amenity space. The HDAS -Residential Layouts sets out the following
minimum requirements:

- Studio/1bed flats - 20sg.m

- 2 bed flats - 25 sgq.m

- 3 bed flats- 30 sq. m

For the proposed development, a total of 1,155 sq.m of communal and/or private external
amenity space would therefore be required.

The current development proposal provides 1,242 m2 of useable external amenity space,
including dedicated play space provision. The majority of the units also benefit from private
space in the form of balconies or small terrace garden areas. The overall amenity space
provision would exceed the relevant standards contained in the HDAS.

It is considered that the siting of the small formal play area in the north-west corner of the
site is far from ideal, as it is located below the wall supporting the road bridge and is
sandwiched extremely close to two private terraces belonging to ground-floor flats. The
siting of the play area also blocks a natural link to the canal for residents of block A.
However, the applicants submit that opportunities to site a play area elsewhere within the
site are very limited.

On balance, the amenity space provided is considered acceptable, in compliance with the
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Residential Layouts and Saved
Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Outlook and Light

The units have been designed with no north facing single aspect units. The single aspect
units are generally orientated to ensure they receive good levels of lighting. All of the flats
also either have a private garden or balcony as well as access to the two communal
amenity areas within the scheme.

Each of the units benefits from a reasonable level of privacy, outlook and light and overall,
it is considered that in relation to these issues, good environmental conditions can be
provided for future occupiers, in compliance with relevant UDP saved policies and
supplementary design guidance.

Unit size

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



Planning policy requires that all new housing should be built to Lifetime Homes standards,
with 10% of new housing designed to be wheelchair accessible, or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users. The individual flats generallly meet National Technical
Housing Floorspace Standards.

Privacy

Saved Policy BE24 states that the design of new buildings should protect the privacy of
occupiers and their neighbours. A minimum separation distance of 21 metres is required to
avoid overlooking and loss of privacy. It is considered that the design of the development
would provide an adequate level of privacy for future occupiers, in accordance with Policy
BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
relevant design guidance.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Of particular relevance to this application are Policies AM7 and AM14 Policy AM7 requires
developments not to prejudice the free flow of traffic or conditions of highway/ pedestrian
safety whilst AM14 set out the Council standards for car parking.

A Transport Assessment has been submitted as part of the application dealing with
access, parking, traffic generation and public transport issues. The site has a Public
Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) score of 3 (on a scale of 1 to 6 where 6 is excellent.

Traffic Generation

The proposal will introduce 18 new trips at this junction over 24 hours and less trips in the
peak hours. Importantly, HGV trips are reduced from the existing sub-standard junction.

The Highway Engineer has assessed the submitted Transport Assessment and initially
raised concerns notes that the assessment of the trip generation is based on site data
from Trics. The Highway Engineer also commented that there were discrepancies in the
Transport Statement which required clarification. Following the submission of further
information, the Highway Engineer is satified that traffic generated by the proposed
development could be safely accommodated on the surrounding road network.

Access
A new access is to be provided, to be located further away from the junction of
Roackingham Road and waterloo Road than the current access.

The substantive unresolved issue relates to sightlines from the proposed new access. In
this regard, the Highway Engineer recommended relocating 2 parking bays from the right to
the left of the new access along Waterloo Road, in order to ensure that sightlines to both
sides are maintained. This would have the potential to improve visibility without any
reduction in on-street parking. However, these changes would be subject to approval by the
Local Highway Authority.

Details of provision for delivery vehicles have been provided. Vehicle swept paths
demonstrate that these vehicles can enter and leave the site in forward gear.

The proposal initially showed an electric gate at the access to the car park. The Highway
Engineer raised concerns that this could result in obstruction of the highway from vehicles
waiting to access the development. The gates have been removed to remedy these
concerns.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



Despite potentially not being able to achieve full visibility standards, it is considered that
outstanding matters could be resolved. The proposed access is considered to be of
significant highway safety benefit over the existing site access, in that it removes an
existing access that is too close to the junction, reduces HGV traffic, removes HGV's
waiting in the public highway (either on double yellow lines or within controlled parking
bays) and removes existing hazardous turning manoeuvres from the site on to the public
highway.

In addition, the applicant has agreed to the widening of the footway along Rockingham
Road. The land will need to be dedicated as highway for this purpose and will require a
s106 / s38 agreement. The extent/area of land required will need to be agreed as part of
developing the traffic calming scheme for Waterloo Road that is currently in progress.

Parking

The application proposes a total of 35 parking spaces, including 10% of these spaces for
people with a disability. This equates to 0.7 spaces per unit. The Council's standards allow
for a maximum provision of 1.5 spaces per residential unit, a total of 79 spaces in this
case. The site has a PTAL rating of 3 and is in close proximity to Uxbridge Town Centre,
local facilities and local transport opportunities. As such, it is considered that residents of
the proposed development would have relatively good access to all day to day facilities and
to the wider London area, via good public transport connections. In addition, the
development proposals are for a predominance of 1-bed units The proposed 0.7 parking
spaces per dwelling therefore meets the NPPF policy guidance by being in line with
expected existing and future need, taking into account the type, mix and use of the
development.

It is also noted that the surrounding highway network is subject to a CPZ and the applicants
agree that the occupants of the proposed units would not be eligible to apply for a parking
permit. This will discourage car ownership. In addition the provision of electric charging
points can be secured by condition.

As such, the Council's Highways Engineer has raised no objection to the level of car
parking and has confirmed that the parking spaces would be of sufficient dimensions and
usable. The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the aims of Policy AM14 and
AM15 of the Local Plan Part 2.

The submitted plans indicate that secure cycle storage can be provided for 53 cycles and
the form of cycle stores wihin the demise of Blocks A and B, together with 3 motorcycle
parking spaces. The scheme would therefore be inaccordance with the Council's
standards and Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies AM9.

Had the development been acceptable in other respects, subject to conditions and
S106/Highway Agreements, in light of the above considerations, it is considered that the
development would not give rise to conditions prejudicial to free flow of traffic and highway
and pedestrian safety.

It is considered that highway related issues could be satisfactorily addressed by the
imposition of appropriately worded conditions and S106/Highway Agreements.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

Issues of design and access are addressed elsewhere within this report.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



In respect of security, the Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design advisor has
commented on the proposals and there is no reason that the proposed development could
not achieve appropriate standards of secure design.

7.12 Disabled access

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from direct discrimination on the basis of a protected characteristic, which includes those
with a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and
within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment
can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think
ahead to take steps to address barriers likely have a defined model that meets best
practice design guidance. The submitted documentation has explained how the principles
of access and inclusion have been applied to this scheme.

The Access Officer has made a number of observations which are summarised in the
Internal Consultee section of this report.

Although the wheelchair units have not been identified on plan, it is considered 5 of the

units could be adapted to full wheelchair standards and the remaining units to lifetime

homes standards. Subject to appropriately worded conditions, these standards could be

achieved, in accordance with the London Plan Policies 3.8, 7.1 and 7.2 and in general

compliance with the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon".
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The development would introduce a total of 53 dwellings, therefore triggering the affordable
housing requirement threshold of 10 units as set out in London Plan policy 3.13. Policy H2
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies relates to Affordable Housing with the
Council seeking 35% of all new units in the borough delivered as affordable housing. The
Council notes however, subject to the provision of robust evidence, it will adopt a degree of
flexibility in its application of Policy H2, to take account of tenure needs in different parts of
the borough as well as the viability of schemes.

A Financial viability Appraisal (FVA) has been carried out in support of this application. The
FVA concludes that no affordable housing can be afforded. The FVA has been
independently assessed and has been found to present a reasoned case, at least in
principle, for no affordable housing.

However, a review mechanism would be required, so that should value increases and/or
cost savings arise, then financial contributions towards the shortfall in affordable housing
should be required. In order to respond to the possibility of the business closing rather than
relocating, a schedule of allowable costs would need to be attached to any planning
agreement. If those costs do not arise, then the saving should be transferred to an
affordable housing contribution.

The development would therefore meet policy requirements in terms of affordable housing,
so long as an appropriate legal agreement were in place to secure this provision.

As the application is being recommended for refusal, no negotiations have been entered
into with the developer in respect of this obligation. Given that the provision has not
currently been secured by way of a legal agreement, the development as it stands would
not make adequate provision of affordable housing and should be refused. However it
should be noted that this issue could be addressed, were an appropriate legal agreement
to be completed.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



Since no affordable housing has been offered a legal agreement has not been entered into
to address the issue of a review mechanism, it is recommended the application should be
refused on this basis.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Local Plan Part 2 Policy BE38 stresses the need to retain and enhance landscape features
and provide for appropriate (hard and soft) landscaping in new developments.

An arboricultural survey has been carried out making an assessment of existing trees on
and within the vicinity of the site. Within the site there are few trees.

The development of the site would give rise to new landscaping opportunities that would
potentially benefit the visual amenity of this part of the conservation area. One of the key
design objectives is to provide an attractive visual setting to the canal side. This has partly
been achieved by the introduction of a canal side landscaped area, providing accessible
communal amenity space alongside the canal. The landscape design features also include
improvements to the Rockingham Road / Waterloo Road boundaries, soft landscape
screening between the car park and the Waterloo Road residents, private (defensible)
space around ground-floor flats, and accessible roof terraces. The soft landscaping
comprises features, such as hedging, which will provide 'instant' impact, while the planting
of 18 trees will provide a robust and attractive landscape that matures over time.

On balance, it is considered that the hard and soft proposals, including ground level details
and roof gardens could provide a robust landscape which is both functional and attractive
for residents of the site and adjacent properties which overlook it.

The Tree and Landscape Officer raises no objections subject to conditions to ensure that
the detailed landscape proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of
the area and off Subject to these conditions, it is considered that the scheme is on the
whole acceptable and in compliance with Saved Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy 5.17 of the London Plan sets out the Mayors Spatial Policy for Waste Management,
including the requirements for new developments to provide appropriate facilities for the
storage of refuse and recycling. Bin stores have been located to each of the blocks and
refuse vehicles would be able to access the site and exit in forward gear. The bin stores
would have external access, would be convenient for use by residents and appropriate for
servicing.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Sustainability policy is now set out in the London Plan (2011), at Policy 5.2. Parts C & D of
the policy require proposals to include a detailed energy assessment. The 2011 London
Plan requires major developments to demonstrate a 35% reduction from a 2013 Building
Regulations compliant development.

A Sustainability Statement has been submitted in support of the application. This report
demonstrates how a variety of technologies could be incorporated into the design to reduce
the CO2 emissions for an approximate average of 35% reduction in CO2 over building
regulations 2013. A number of sustainable features have been incorporated into the
proposed development, including a range of passive design features and demand
reduction measures to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.

The Sustainability Statement concludes that the 'Be Lean' and 'Be Clean' measures the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



proposed development achieves a 39% reduction from a compliant Part L 2013 baseline
building. the scheme will not useany 'green’ technologies as through thermal fabric, energy
efficient mechanical & electric technologies and a centralised heat system led by a CHP
engine the dwellings achieve the GLA London Plan targets.

Had the development been acceptable in other respects, it is considered that conditions
securing theimplementation of the sustainable design and construction and renewable
measures set out in the Energy Statement, could satisfactorily address the issues relating
to the mitigation and adaptation to climate change and to minimise carbon dioxide
emissions, in compliance with Policies 5.2, 5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan, Policy
PT1.EM1 of Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 and the NPPF.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policies OE7 and OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to ensure that new development incorporates appropriate
measures to mitigate against any potential risk of flooding. The site falls outside any flood
zones as defined in the Council's own Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) and is
with flood zone 1 on the Environment Agency maps.

Although a flood risk assessment is therefore not a requirement, given the proximity of the
canal, a Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy has been submitted, to demonstrate that it
would incorporate sustainable drainage techniques and reduce the risk of flooding in
accordance with the requirements

of Polciies 5.11, 5.12 and 5.13 of the London Plan and the NPPF.

The Canal & River Trust maintains the water level of the adjoining Gran Union Canal using
reservoirs, feeders and boreholes, and thereafter manages the water by transferring it
within the canal system. The level of the water in canals is normally determined
predominantly by the use of weirs and is therefore controlled.

All new development should incorporate sustainable drainage systems. The proposals
need to include a clear drainage strategy that is reflected within the designs of the
development. Policy 5.13 of the London Plan sets out a hierarchy to work towards, it also
requires a greenfield run-off rate to be met.

The Flood and Drainage offcer raises no objections to the proposed drainage strategy,
subject to a condition requiring a long term management and maintenance plan for the
drainage system.

Had the development been acceptable in other respects, it is considered that subject to
appropriate conditions the proposal would comply with Policy EM6 (Flood Risk
Management) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policies
OE7 and OES of the Local Plan Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012), Policies 5.12 and
5.13 of the London Plan (July 2011) and the NPPF.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

NOISE
A noise impact assessment has been submitted in support of the application to assess the

likelihood of complaints from future occupiers of the development of noise, from
surrounding established commercial premises occurring in the future.

The site is in an area subject to road traffic noise, noise from the various surrounding
commercial premises, including the two public houses, The Dolphin PH and the General

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



Elliot PH. The other commercial business that poses a potential problem is the Boat Yard,
south of the development site, which specialises in the repair of steel boats and is in use 7
days a week.

In 2009, the Town and Country Planning Association working with the Canal & River Trust
(as British Waterways) published 'A Policy Advice Note: Inland Waterways -Unlocking the
Potential and Securing the Future of Inland Waterways through the Planning System'. This
document includes a 'development management and control checklist for waterside
developments'. The checklist can help to identify those matters which require careful
analysis, informed by the views of the relevant navigation authority. The advice note
includes inter alia, a requirement to ensure that

development located adjacent to or in close proximity to a waterway does not involve the
loss of a a boatyard (either boat building or boat repair), servicing or maintenance yard,
slipway, dry dock, crane or other services needed for day-to-day cruising, used in
connection with water-based transport, tourism, leisure and recreation.

There have been several examples of dry docks and boat yards closing due to the
development of adjacent residential development. New residential development in close
proximity to existing boat yards can cause operational problems for the boat yard operator
and could theoretically contribute to the closure of the boat yard. The proposed residential
development at this location therefore has the potential to cause operational problems for
the boat yard, whose regional importance in providing essential maintenance of boats
using the canal was emphasised by numerous letters form individuals and organisations,
on the previously refused scheme for residential development on this site.

A Noise Assessment whas submitted in support of the original sumbission. In addition, an
updated Noise Assessment has been submitted, which takes into account revisions th the
scheme. These revisions relate to changes to blocks B and C.

The application has been reviewed by the Council's Environmental Protecton Unit which
notes that although there have been changes to the Noise Assessment and the positioning
of the residential blocks, the proposed development, by reason of it's close proximity to the
adjoining boat yard and dry dock facility is likely to be subject to unacceptable levels of
noise and vibration, which can be considered detrimental to the residential amenities of
future occupiers, and therefore giving rise to noise complaints.

The noise report included with the submission mentions the close proximity of the boatyard
to residential premises, and the possible noise issues that arise from these operations.
Although it is noted that in the revised scheme there would be no windows on the western
facade of block B, directly facing the boat yard, the Noise assessmnent recommends the
use of non-openable windows to the other affected elevations (north and south), with trickle
vents or HVAC units to those elevations that will be affected.

The Environmental Protection Unit notes that historically, because of the operational aspect
of the boatyard, noise complaints from nearby residents had been received, and had been
resolved by the installation of a barrier to contain the majority of noisy works, and the
leasing by the boat yard of one of the nearby properties. The way the boatyard operates is
such that not only do they carry out the business of repairing boats within the dry dock and
its environs, but they also allow boat owners to utilise the dry dock and as such, the
operation of the boatyard could be considered to be in operation 24 hours a day, 7 days a
week, as boat owners may wish to attend to their boats of an evening or at weekends. The
nature of the work is erratic and as such, could give rise to complaints. These hours of use

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



and the mode of opertaion has been confirmed by the boat yard operator.

Although no noise complants have been received from local residents to the existing
operations at the boat yard and timber yard in the recent past, the Environmental Protection
Unit considers that an increase in the residential properties could result in complaints. As
such the proposal is likely to cause operational problems for the boat yard operator,
thereby prejudicing the conservation of the boat yard operation and features associated
with the working life of the Grand Union Canal. The Environmental Protection Unit does not
consider that conditions could be added to any approval that would prevent a noise
nuisance occurring and proposed residents being disturbed unduly. As such objections are
raised to the application.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be unlikely to provide good
environmental conditions for future occupiers without prejudicing the conservation of
buildings and features associated with the working life of The Grand Union Canal. This is
contrary to polices OES5, BE31 and BE32 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012). Refusal is recommended on these grounds accordingly.

AIR QUALITY

The NPPF at para. 123 states that planning policies should sustain compliance with and
contribute towards EU limit values or national objectives for pollutants, taking into account
the presence of Air Quality Management Areas and the cumulative impacts on air quality
from individual sites in local areas. Planning decisions should ensure that any new
development in Air Quality Management Areas is consistent with the local air quality action
plan.

The site is located within an Air Quality Management Area and as such, an air quality
assessment has been provided as part of the application.

The assessment concludes that the location is considered suitable for residential use and
aier quality imppacts will be negligible. The Council's Air quality Officer raises no objections
subject to conditions requiring details of mechanical ventilation and another on provision
of a low emission strategy. Subject to these conditions and based on the assessment
results, it is not considered that air quality would be a constraint to planning consent for the
proposed development.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The main issues raised have been dealt with in the main body of the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Hilingdon UDP is concerned with securing planning obligations to
supplement the provision recreation open space, facilities to support arts, cultural and
entertainment activities, and other community, social and education facilities through
planning obligations in conjunction with other development proposals. These saved UDP
policies are supported by more specific supplementary planning guidance.

The Council's Section 106 Officer has reviewed the proposal, as have other statutory
consultees, including the Canals and Rivers Trust.. The comments received indicate the
need for the following contributions or planning obligations to mitigate the impacts of the
development. As the application is being recommended for refusal, no negotiations have
been entered into with the developer in respect of these contributions. However, if the
application were to be considered for approval, these heads of terms would have been
pursued:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



1. Highways: in line with the SPD and depending upon the views of the highways engineer
any and all highways works will be required to be met by the applicant.

2. Affordable Housing: In line with the SPD and current planning policy 35% of the scheme
is required to be delivered as affordable housing with the tenure and mix to be agreed by
the Council. In this case the applicant has demonstrated that no affordable housing can be
delivered. However, a review mechnism has not been secured.

3. Construction Training: Either a construction training scheme delivered during the
construction phase of the development or a financial contribution.

4. Canal Contributions: The Canals and Rivers Trust seeks a contribution of £25,000
towards maintenance of the canal environment. However, the applicants argue that the
proposal vastly improves the canal environment alongside the application site. Residents
are far more likely to use the landscaped canal side within the site than the towpath on the
other side of the canal where there is no direct access from the site. There is no existing
towpath alongside the site. Furthermore, the Trust has not justified the sum. For these
reasons, the the applicant considers that the requested contribution is not reasonably or
directly related to the proposal.

The applicant's response is noted. However, The Canals and Rivers Trust submit that
residents and visitors to the development will likely make use of the canal environment and
its towpath, which will put additional pressure on this valuable open space. The trust also
experiences increased complaints regarding wind blown litter in the water from new
developments where occupants have raised expectations of the water space
management.

The request for a contribution towards canal environment from the development, is
considered justified, reasonable and consitent with other planning obligations secured for
similar canal side developments within the Borough. Failure to to secure the aforesaid
contributions is therefore considered to be a sustainable reason to refuse the application
on this basis.

5. project management and monitoring fee.

No legal agreement to address these issue has been offered. As such, the proposal fails to
comply with Policy R17 of the UDP and it is recommended the application should be
refused for the following reasons:

1. failure to provide for affordable housing

2. failure to address impacts arising on construction training, off site highway works, canal
environment and towpath improvements and a project management and monitoring fee.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Threr are no ennforcement issues relating to this site.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other issues related to this site.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



10. CONCLUSION

Objection is raised to the principle of the loss of employment land on this site, whilst the
scheme also fails to provide acceptable environmental conditions for prospective
occupiers of the development without prejudicing the long-term future of the adjacent boat
yard and dry dock.

It is considered that the proposal is unacceptable in terms of its built form and scale,
particularly in relation to its location within Uxbridge Moor Conservation Area, its proximity to
the listed Public House opposite and adjacent locally listed boat yard. It is considered that
the proposed development, because of its bulk, scale, proportions and massing of the
blocks, would fail to respect the character or appearance of the conservation area and the
significance of the adjacent heritage assets.

The applicants have failed to address the issue of planning benefits in relation to affordable
housing, canal enhancements, construction training and off site highway improvements.

Refusal is recommended accordingly.

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (8th November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

London Plan 2015

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)

Contact Officer: Karl Dafe Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



Works

: - 31.4m
5 6 1 J
i
//

2t0 4

Jed M

! Rockingham Wharf

I

3

" 1 Dolphin Whg‘rfx\

Dolphin
Bridge
House

House

;
'
i
‘
'

'/ 31.4m

|
N !
)
;
;
4/
;

'

it

£

it
a3

¥ - i

i
Y 5

Waterside f

!{  The General Ellio

I
Waterloo Wha

|
1

(PH)

:

31.7m

" "Boat Yard
Uxbridge Wharf ||

A

‘- -
. d
. s
A
5 . B
; . B
¥ 5 > ;
i ol s A
‘ ‘ T
! e '
‘
K a ik
. ~ ' R .
. =y v Ty
’ e s
‘
: ~---.. RUSHESMEAD
¢ S
: M
‘ n-
S
/

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

rCjub
Club Works I‘: g
- INIRRNRARENED B
i B
‘:;u Wke| Wks ‘ Works ‘ | \ § ‘- E
Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Waterloo Wharf OF HILLINGDON
Waterloo Road Residents Services
. Planning Section
Uxbridge Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale: g
43016/APP/2014/4486 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major P29e 79 | January 2016
LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address MATERIAL STORE, THE OLD VINYL FACTORY BLYTH ROAD HAYES

Development: Approval of reserved matters relating to the appearance and the landscaping «
Phase 2 of The Old Vinyl Factory Masterplan: The Material Store as required
by Conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission ref. 59872/APP/2013/3775.

LBH Ref Nos: 59872/APP/2015/3991

Drawing Nos: Landscape Maintenance and Management Plan Rev
0228 _SEW_MS_7101
0228_SEW_MS_710z
0228 SEW_MS_710¢
0228_SEW_MS_860C
0228 SEW_MS_8601
0228_SEW_MS_860z
0228 SEW_MS_860:<
Written Specification of Planting and Cultivatior
14034-00-001-P-Rev_A
14034-00-002-P-Rev_E
14034-01-000-P-Rev_E
14034-01-001-P-Rev_C
14034-01-002-P-Rev_E
14034-01-003-P-Rev_A
14034-01-004-P-Rev_A
14034-01-005-P Rev A
14034-01-006-P-Rev_A
14034-01-007-P-Rev_A
14034-01-008-P-Rev_A
14034-01-009-P-Rev_A
14034-01-010-P-Rev_A
14034-01-011-P-Rev_E
14034-01-012-P-Rev_E
14034-02-001-P Rev A
14034-02-002-P Rev A
14034-02-003-P Rev E
14034-02-004-P Rev A
14034-02-005-P-Rev_A
14034-02-006-P RevA
14034-02-007-P Rev A
14034-02-008-P RevA
14034-02-10-Rev_C For emai
14034-02-11-Rev_B For emai
14034-10-000-P Rev A
14034-10-001-P Rev A
14034-10-002-P Rev A
14034-10-003-P Rev A
14034-10-004-P Rev A
14034-10-005 P Rev £
14034-10-006 Rev A
14034-92-001-P Rev E

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



14034-97-001-P Rev E

OO, WN -~

BD 0121 SD 001 RO1
BD 0121 SD 002 R01
BD 0121 SD 003 RO1
BD 0121 SD 101 R0z
BD 0121 SD 102 RO32
BD 0121 SD 801 R0O€
BD 0121 SD 802 RO1

Date Plans Received: 26/10/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 26/10/2015
Date Application Valid: 26/10/2015 16/12/2015

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to appearance and
landscaping in compliance with conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission ref.
59872/APP/2013/3775 for of Phase 2 of The Old Vinyl Factory Masterplan: The Material
Store.

The application site forms part of The OId Vinyl Factory site for which outline consent was
granted under application reference 59872/APP/2012/1838, and varied under application
reference 59872/APP/2013/3775, for the mixed-use redevelopment of the site.

The Reserved Matters application site is located centrally within the wider site, directly to
the south of the Power House (formerly known as the Neptune) which is a locally listed
building.

The Materials Store site has already been granted Reserved Matters consent under
application reference 59872/APP/2015/1329 (dated 7th August 2015). However the
applicant would like to make some changes to the approved scheme, including the
provision of six additional units along with internal layout and elevation alterations.

The proposed development has been designed in accordance with the parameter plan and
design code, which were approved at outline stage. The design and appearance of the
building is considered to have a positive impact on the visual amenities of the surrounding
area and the urban form of the development has improved since the outline stage.

The overall development is in accordance with the outline consent and varies only
minimally from the already consented Reserved Matters Application. Therefore, the
application is recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:
14034-00-001-P Rev A
14034-00-002-P Rev B
14034-01-000-P Rev B
14034-01-001-P Rev C
14034-01-002-P Rev B
14034-01-003-P Rev A
14034-01-004-P Rev A
14034-01-005-P Rev A
14034-01-006-P Rev A
14034-01-007-P Rev A
14034-01-008-P Rev A
14034-01-009-P Rev A
14034-01-010-P Rev A
14034-01-011-P Rev B
14034-01-012-P Rev B
14034-02-001-P Rev A
14034-02-002-P Rev A
14034-02-003-P Rev B
14034-02-004-P Rev A
14034-02-005-P Rev A
14034-02-006-P Rev A
14034-02-007-P Rev A
14034-02-008-P Rev A
14034-02-010-P Rev C
14034-02-011-P Rev B
14034-10-000-P Rev A
14034-10-001-P Rev A
14034-10-002-P Rev A
14034-10-003-P Rev A
14034-10-004-P Rev A
14034-10-005-P Rev A
14034-10-006-P Rev A
14034-97-001-P Rev B

BD 0121 SD 001 RO1

BD 0121 SD 002 RO1

BD 0121 SD 003 RO1

BD 0121 SD 101 R02

BD 0121 SD 102 R0O3

BD 0121 SD 801 R06

BD 0121 SD 802 RO1

0228 _SEW_MS_7100 Rev 11
0228 SEW_MS 7101 Rev 04
0228 SEW_MS 7102 Rev 03
0228 SEW_MS_7103 Rev 03
0228 SEW_MS_8600 Rev 08

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



0228 _SEW_MS_8601 Rev 01

0228 _SEW_MS_8602 Rev 01

0228 SEW_MS_8603

14034-92-001-P Rev B;

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

2 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Design and Access Statement October 2015 (document reference no. 14034-99-001-P)
Bird Hazard Management Plan

Landscape Maintenance and Management Plan Rev 1

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies . Specify
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



AM2

AM7
AM8

AM9

BE13
BE15
BE18
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE25
BE3

BE38

BE4
H4
H5
H6

H8

LPP 2.13
LPP 2.17
LPP 2.6
LPP 2.7
LPP 2.8
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.10
LPP 3.11
LPP 3.12

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.9
LPP 4.1
LPP 4.2

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on
congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementatio
of road construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design o
highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas
Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Considerations influencing appropriate density in residential
development.

Change of use from non-residential to residential

(2015) Opportunity Areas and intensification areas

(2015) Strategic Industrial Locations

(2015) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2015) Outer London: economy

(2015) Outer London: Transport

(2015) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2015) Definition of affordable housing

(2015) Affordable housing targets

(2015) Negotiating affordable housing (in) on individual private
residential and mixed-use schemes

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

(2015) Children and young people's play and informal recreation
(strategies) facilities

(2015) Large residential developments

(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2015) Developing London's economy

(2015) Offices

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



LPP 4.3
LPP 4.4
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.11
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.15
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.21
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.6
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.8
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.5

LPP 6.7
LPP 6.9
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.7
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.9
LPP 8.1
LPP 8.2
LPP 8.3
OE1

OE11

OE3

OE5S
R17

R7

(2015) Mixed use development and offices
(2015) Managing Industrial Land & Premises
(2015) Climate Change Mitigation

(2015) Urban Greening

(2015) Green roofs and development site environs
(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
(2015) Water use and supplies

(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2015) Contaminated land

(2015) Sustainable design and construction
(2015) Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals

(2015) Renewable energy

(2015) Innovative energy technologies

(2015) Strategic Approach

(2015) Walking

(2015) Parking

(2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

(2015) Better Streets and Surface Transport

(2015) Cycling

(2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

(2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and
enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate
soundscapes.

(2015) An inclusive environment

(2015) Designing out crime

(2015) Local character

(2015) Public realm

(2015) Architecture

(2015) Location and design of tall and large buildings

(2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2015) Heritage-led regeneration

(2015) Implementation

(2015) Planning obligations

(2015) Community infrastructure levy

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated lan:
- requirement for ameliorative measures

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

Provision of facilities which support arts, cultural and entertainment
activities

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from
the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

4 160 Cranes

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required
during its construction. The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult
the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained
further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available at
www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp)

5
Waste Requirements

Arrangements should be made for the cleansing of the bin stores with water and
disinfectant. A hose union tap should be installed for the water supply. Drainage should be
by means of trapped gully connected to the foul sewer. The floor of the bin store area
should have a suitable fall (no greater than 1:20) towards the drainage points.

The material used for the floor should be 100 mm thick to withstand the weight of the bulk
bins. Ideally the walls of the bin storage areas should be made of a material that has a fire
resistance of one hour when tested in accordance with BS 472-61.

The gate/door of the bin stores need to be made of metal, hardwood, or metal clad
softwood and ideally have fire resistance of 30 minutes when tested to BS 476-22. The
door frame should be rebated into the opening. Again the doorway should allow clearance
of 150mm either side of the bin when it is being moved for collection. The door(s) should
have a latch or other mechanism to hold them open when the bins are being moved in and
out of the chamber.

f) Internal bin chambers should have appropriate passive ventilators to allow air flow and
stop the build up of unpleasant odours. The ventilation needs to be fly proofed.

g) If the chambers are inside the building they should have a light. The lighting should be a
sealed bulked fitting (housings rated to IP65 in BS EN 60529:1992).

h) The collectors should not have to cart a 1,100 litre bulk bin more than 10 metres from the
point of storage to the collection vehicle (BS 5906 standard).

i) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no
more than 1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the
storage area is raised above the area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped
kerb is needed to safely move the bin to level of the collection vehicle.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



k) The access roads must be able to with stand the weight of a 26 tonne refuse collection
vehicle.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The whole of The Old Vinyl Factory (TOVF) site consists of approximately 6.6 hectares of
land set in an irregular quadrilateral shaped site. The multi-phase site was originally
constructed between 1907 and 1935 by the Gramophone Company and was later the
production centre of EMI Ltd, producing the majority of vinyl records for distribution
worldwide. Associated record production works had ceased by the 1980s after which time
the site has been largely vacant with many buildings falling into disrepair.

The Reserved Matters application site is located centrally within the wider site, directly to the
south of the Power House (formerly known as the Neptune) which is a locally listed building.
The wider site is bounded by Blyth Road to the north and by the Great Western Mainline
railway to the South, with Hayes and Harlington rail station 420 metres to the east of the
site. Opposite the site on Blyth Road lies the Grade Il Listed Enterprise House, an eight
storey office building, together with a variety of industrial and office buildings. The wider
area is a mixture of residential, industrial and office uses with Hayes Town Centre located to
the northeast of the site.

This application site comprises some 5ha and excludes the three largest employment
buildings located to the south of the site, The Shipping Building, The Cabinet Building and
The Record Store. This is because the refurbishment of these buildings has already been
approved in earlier permissions.

Many of the existing buildings are in a derelict condition arising from long term vacancy.
They require a substantial investment to return them to a habitable and thus lettable state.
The public realm is dominated by a large extent of tarmac surfacing providing for surface car
parking.

Much of the application site, as well as The Record Store, The Cabinet Building and The
Shipping Building, which lie immediately outside of the application boundary, is situated
within a Developed Area, The Botwell: Thorn EMI Conservation Area and partly within a
Industrial and Business Area, as identified in the Policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and a Strategic Industrial Location (SIL) as designated within the London
Plan (March 2015).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to appearance and
landscaping in compliance with conditions 2 and 3 for Phase 2 of The OId Vinyl Factory
Masterplan - The Materials Store.

The Materials Store site has already been granted Reserved Matters consent under
application reference 59872/APP/2015/1329 (dated 7th August 2015). However the
applicant would like to make some changes to the approved scheme, including the provision
of six additional units with internal layout and elevation alterations.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



In summary, compared to the approved RMA scheme, the revised proposal includes:

- Introduction of a new 'triplex' residential unit arranged across three storeys (lower ground,
ground and first floor), 23 of these units are proposed in the current application, as opposed
to the 18 approved two storey units (over ground and first floor);

- 1 additional studio unit on the first floor

- 1 additional garden room amenity area at first floor

- Reconfigured parking area at lower ground and ground floor to provide 177 car parking
spaces (an additional two spaces);

- Increase in cycle parking spaces from 202 to 213.

The introduction of the 'triplex' units results in the need for modifications to the elevations of
the approved scheme. The entrance to the individual units would be via steps to a slightly
raised ground floor, allowing the creation of light wells to proposed lower ground floor
bedrooms.

Otherwise, subject to minor internal layout changes the proposed scheme is as previously
approved under application reference 59872/APP/2015/1329, with four residential blocks,
over a plinth of part commercial and part parking. The amended Material Store would consist
of 189 residential units of 1, 2 and 3 bed apartments spreading over 10 floors. There are
459sgm of commercial floorspace on the ground and first floor that would fall within use
classes A1, A2, A3, A4, A5 or B1. Parking will be provided over two levels centrally within the
building with additional on-street parking proposed externally.

Overall heights and massing principles have been established in the outline planning
consent, with 4 distinct blocks sitting above a clearly defined 2 storey podium which links the
blocks together. The two storey base contains double height commercial space along the
northern frontage to The Groove, and service and residential space at ground and first floors
respectively to the southern railway frontage. Side streets, along Powerhouse and Pressing
Plant Lane, are now proposed to be lined with triplex family units at Lower Ground, Ground
and First Floor Levels. This allows the base to be expressed as a distinct element and
different from the residential blocks above podium level. From Level 2 up, the four blocks
house simply stacked apartments and rise to different heights allowing variation against the
skyline and relationships to surrounding buildings and established datum levels as set out in
the approved masterplan and amendments as approved under application reference
59872/APP/2015/1330.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

The application site forms part of The Old Vinyl Factory site for which outline consent was
granted under application reference 59872/APP/2012/1838.

Application reference 59872/APP/2013/3640 granted permission for a non-material
amendment to the scheme, due to the proposed revised phasing of the site, and some
revisions to documents. This resulted in changes to the wording of conditions 6, 18, 27, and
32 of the original planning permission.

Application reference 59872/APP/2013/3775 granted a variation of the original outline
permission to allow variations to phasing of the approved development.

Application reference 59872/APP/2015/1330 granted a Non-material Amendment to planning

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



permission ref: 59872/APP/2013/3775 to amend the approved parameter plans and
Development Specification (condition 31) and amend the wording of Condition 13 (acoustic
buffering) in connection with the Material Store development.

This reserved matters application is therefore submitted as Phase 2 of the revised
application, as allowed as per reference 59872/APP/2013/3775 and 59872/APP/2015/1330

As stated above, the Materials Store site has already been granted Reserved Matters
consent under application reference 59872/APP/2015/1329 (dated 7th August 2015).

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (March 2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

PT1.CI2 (2012) Leisure and Recreation

PT1.E1 (2012) Managing the Supply of Employment Land
PT1.E6 (2012) Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises (SME)
PT1.E7 (2012) Raising Skills

PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
PT1.EM4 (2012) Open Space and Informal Recreation
PT1.EM5 (2012) Sport and Leisure

PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



PT1.T1 (2012) Accessible Local Destinations

Part 2 Policies:

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE25 Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of archaeological
remains

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

H6 Considerations influencing appropriate density in residential development.

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

LPP 2.13 (2015) Opportunity Areas and intensification areas

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



LPP 2.17
LPP 2.6
LPP 2.7
LPP 2.8
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.10
LPP 3.11
LPP 3.12

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.9
LPP 4.1
LPP 4.2
LPP 4.3
LPP 4.4
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.11
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.15
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.21
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.6
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.8
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.5

(2015) Strategic Industrial Locations
(2015) Outer London: vision and strategy
(2015) Outer London: economy

(2015) Outer London: Transport

(2015) Ensuring equal life chances for all
(2015) Definition of affordable housing
(2015) Affordable housing targets

(2015) Negotiating affordable housing (in) on individual private residential and
mixed-use schemes

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

(2015) Children and young people's play and informal recreation (strategies)
facilities

(2015) Large residential developments

(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2015) Developing London's economy

(2015) Offices

(2015) Mixed use development and offices

(2015) Managing Industrial Land & Premises

(2015) Climate Change Mitigation

(2015) Urban Greening

(2015) Green roofs and development site environs

(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

(2015) Water use and supplies

(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2015) Contaminated land

(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals
(2015) Renewable energy

(2015) Innovative energy technologies

(2015) Strategic Approach

(2015) Walking

(2015) Parking

(2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



LPP 6.7 (2015) Better Streets and Surface Transport

LPP 6.9 (2015) Cycling

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2015) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2015) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.7 (2015) Location and design of tall and large buildings

LPP 7.8 (2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.9 (2015) Heritage-led regeneration

LPP 8.1 (2015) Implementation

LPP 8.2 (2015) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2015) Community infrastructure levy

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land - requiremer
for ameliorative measures

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

R7 Provision of facilities which support arts, cultural and entertainment activities

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 2nd December 2015
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



9th December 2015

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 115 local owner/occupiers, the Hayes Village Conservation Panel
and the Hayes Town Centre Residents Association on 10/11/2015. The application was also
advertised by way of site and press notices. No responses have been received.

HEATHROW AIRPORT LIMITED (HAL):

| can confirm that the introduction of the additional units create no further safeguarding concerns.
Therefore, | have no safeguarding objections to the above application or the proposed amendments
to this development.

METROPOLITAN POLICE:
In relation to the Design and Access Statement section 13.1 (Secure by Design), | think these
comments are appropriate and acceptable.

NATIONAL AIR TRAFFIC SERVICES:

The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and does not
conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Public Limited Company
("NERL") has no safeguarding objection to the proposal.

Internal Consultees

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT:
No objection as the proposal does not concern EPU

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER:
No objection

TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

The NLP's letter of 26 /10/2015 confirms that the revised scheme follows the public realm and
landscape principles as agreed for the Old Vinyl Factory Masterplan. Part of the public realm layout is
The Groove, which is shared public realm with the Boiler House and will be delivered in a single
phase shared to ensure a seamless finish.

The landscape concept and objectives are described in section C. Landscape, of the Design &
Access Statement. This describes the treatment of the podium and roof terrace as well as the ground
level and public realm.

Drawings by BD landscape Architects include the Podium Landscape Plan, ref. BD 0120SD 801 R06,
Soft Landscape Plan dwg ref. SD 002 R01, Hard Landscape Plan, dwg ref. SD 801 R01, Play
Strategy Detail Plan, dwg. Ref. SD 802 R01, Planting Plan dwg. Ref. SD 003 RO1.

Drawings by SEW include drawings and illustrative sections through the site, and hard and soft plans
for The Groove.

The submission is supported by two documents: Specification of Planting and Soft Works which
covers the first 24 months of maintenance by the main (implementation) landscape contractor. The
site will then be handed over to the Building Management Group, guided by the Landscape
Maintenance & Management Plan.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



Neither specification refers to the need for an annual check on plant health and the need to replace
any planting which fails. This clause should be added.

No objection, subject to the above detail.

Case Officer comment:
The Landscape Maintenance and Management Plan has now been revised to include the clause
requested.

WASTE OFFICER:
The Council tends to use 1,100 litre eurobins for residential properties.

| would recommend arrangements should be made for the cleansing of the bin stores with water and
disinfectant. A hose union tap should be installed for the water supply. Drainage should be by means
of trapped gully connected to the foul sewer. The floor of the bin store area should have a suitable fall
(no greater than 1:20) towards the drainage points.

The material used for the floor should be 100 mm thick to withstand the weight of the bulk bins. Ideally
the walls of the bin storage areas should be made of a material that has a fire resistance of one hour
when tested in accordance with BS 472-61.

The gate/door of the bin stores need to be made of metal, hardwood, or metal clad softwood and
ideally have fire resistance of 30 minutes when tested to BS 476-22. The door frame should be
rebated into the opening. Again the doorway should allow clearance of 150 mm either side of the bin
when it is being moved for collection. The door(s) should have a latch or other mechanism to hold
them open when the bins are being moved in and out of the chamber.

f) Internal bin chambers should have appropriate passive ventilators to allow air flow and stop the
build up of unpleasant odours. The ventilation needs to be fly proofed.

g) If the chambers are inside the building they should have a light. The lighting should be a sealed
bulked fitting (housings rated to IP65 in BS EN 60529:1992).

h) The collectors should not have to cart a 1,100 litre bulk bin more than 10 metres from the point of
storage to the collection vehicle (BS 5906 standard).

i) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no more than
1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the storage area is raised
above the area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is needed to safely move the
bin to level of the collection vehicle.

k) The access roads must be able to with stand the weight of a 26 tonne refuse collection vehicle.

Case Officer comments: The above points have been included within an informative.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

As stated in the assessment of the original outline application, the existing site is largely
vacant, with the exception of part of the Shipping Building which was refurbished following
the granting of planning permission in 2001. The applicant has provided a detailed and
confidential review of the measures taken to market the immediately available Shipping

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Building and the Cabinet Building, with both offers struggling to attract tenants. The report
concludes that including a mixed use residential, retail and leisure offerings alongside the
employment land within the scheme would improve the attractiveness of the commercial offer
to potential B1 occupiers.

The proposed development was approved within this area of the site as part of the outline
consent for the redevelopment of the wider site. Approved as part of the outline consent was
a set of parameter plans, which included the parameters within which the buildings should
be located. The proposed building is in accordance with the parameter plan in terms of
height and footprint and as such, the use and scale of the building would be in accordance
with the approved parameter plan which established the principle of the development as
acceptable.

The principle of the development has already been approved at outline stage and was
considered acceptable under the previous Reserved Matters Application reference
59872/APP/2015/1329.

Density of the proposed development

Density was considered as part of the originally approved outline application, and was
deemed acceptable. The site wide density of the development is not proposed to change
significantly as part of this application.

The outline application proposed a maximum of 510 residential units across the site. The
current application proposes the erection of 189 units, which is an increase of 34 flats in this
building compared to the original masterplan that proposed 155. This follows design
development, including a more efficient layout, for the Material Store which now allows for
an increase in the number residential units within the same building envelope, including the
provision of three-storey units at street level on both side of the roads.

These changes have been subject to various lengthy pre-application discussions with
officers at the Council. The consented Reserved Matters Application (reference
59872/APP/2015/1329) is for 183 units, and as such the current proposal intends an
increase of only six units. As such the minimal change in density above that already
approved is considered to be acceptable.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The impact on the heritage of the borough was considered as part of the originally approved
outline application, and was considered acceptable, subject to conditions. The proposed
building is not considered to impact on this previous assessment.

Airport safeguarding

The proposed development is within the height parameters approved at outline stage. BAA
and NATS Safeguarding have reviewed the application and raise no objection to the
application from an airport safeguarding perspective. As such, it is considered that the
proposal would not impact on the safe operation of any airport.

Impact on the green belt

The site is not located within the Green Belt, so there are no Green Belt issues relating to
this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The objectives for the wider site included in the master plan, include amongst other things,
the promotion of a high quality scheme reflective of the area's general character as well as
reinforcing local distinctiveness.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



The site lies in the Hayes Botwell: Thorn EMI Conservation Area, and forms part of the old
EMI factory site, which played an important part in the history of Hayes. It retains a number
of large historic industrial buildings from the 19th and 20th centuries, a number of which are
Locally Listed. Directly to the north is Enterprise House, an early concrete clad metal framed
structure, which dates from the early 20th century and is grade Il listed. This building has a
very distinct appearance and is considered as a local landmark, it was also part of the
original EMI site when first constructed.

The proposed new building has been subject to pre-application discussion with the Council's
Conservation and Design Team. The height and footprint of the building are in accordance
with the outline planning permission and the amendments approved under application
reference 59872/APP/2015/1330.

The Council's Design Officer reviewed the previously approved proposals and commented
that "The current scheme is in line with previous and extensive discussions at pre application
stage. Overall, this is considered to be a very well designed and carefully detailed large
building.' They have raised no objections to the amended proposals.

This proposed building forms part of the masterplan for the regeneration of this particular
site and to make a strong and positive architectural statement about the future of the area.
The overall development is considered to be a well designed building which will have a
positive impact on the visual amenities of the surrounding area, in accordance with Policies
BE13 & BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The building proposed is located adjacent to the Great Western Railway Line and new
buildings proposed within the wider TOVF site. The 'Boiler House' and the 'Pressing Plant'
will be positioned between the proposal and existing residential properties on Blyth Road.

It should be noted that the consideration of potential impacts upon neighbours formed part of
the assessment of the outline application. Matters considered include the construction
impacts; traffic and car parking; noise and general disturbance; overlooking, outlook and
overshadowing. The reserved matters are consistent with the details and principles
considered at the outline stage which were considered acceptable on balance.

As such, the scheme is considered to be acceptable. The scheme accords with the UDP
policies and design guidance which seek to protect the amenity of neighbours.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

INTERNAL FLOOR AREA

The proposed development is for the creation of 189 flats within the site. Each of the
dwellings would be erected in accordance with the floor space standards contained within
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (March 2015). Therefore, each dwelling would be considered
to create residential accommodation of an acceptable size for the number of bedrooms and
inhabitants being proposed.

EXTERNAL AMENITY SPACE

The overall amenity requirements of the proposed The Material Store are as follows:
1B - 20sgm per dwelling x 59units - 1180sgm
2B - 25sgm per dwelling x 106 units - 2650sgm

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



3B - 30sgm per dwelling x 24 units - 720sgm
Total amenity requirement- 4550sgm

The majority of the amenity space for the Materials Store is proposed within the public
podium on level 1, shared terrace and private terraces on Level 2, and the four public roof
gardens on the top of each residential block. In addition to this, balconies are provided to
individual flats, adding a further 336sgm of amenity space provision to the building.

In addition to space provided for residents of The Material Store, an additional 298sgm of
amenity space is to be incorporated to provide for requirements of residents of The Boiler
House, who will have controlled access to the podium garden and playspace via the
concierge entrance on Powerhouse Lane.

Total amenity requirement (including provision for Boiler House residents)- 4848sgm
Total amenity provision - 4836sgm

There is therefore a shortfall of 12sgm in external amenity provision across The Material
Store and The Boilerhouse developments. The proposed shared amenity space for the flats
will be a mixture of formal and informal space that will provide an attractive setting for the
new apartment blocks. Given the high quality of the landscaping proposed throughout the
wider site and the creation of new spaces that will benefit both future residents and workers,
this minimal shortfall in provision is deemed acceptable.

Therefore, the proposed development is considered to be provided with sufficient outdoor
amenity space for the occupiers of the development, in accordance with Policy BE23 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan.

LIGHT AND OUTLOOK

All of the habitable rooms within the dwellings would be provided with an acceptable source
of light and outlook in accordance with Policies BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan and 3.5
the London Plan (2015).

OVERLOOKING

In terms of outlook for future residents, Policy BE21 of the Local Plan seek to ensure that
new development would not have a significant loss of residential amenity, by reason of the
siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings.

In this regard, it is considered that the site layout would provide a high standard of amenity
for future occupiers. The layout provides sufficient space within the block and ensures that
there is adequate separation between the units. This will result in a satisfactory outlook from
the proposed units in the block and reduces the potential for nuisance and disturbance to
the future occupiers. As such, the development is considered to be consistent with relevant
design guidance and policies BE21 and OE1 of the UDP.

All of the units would benefit from an acceptable level of privacy and light, in compliance with
the Council's standards given in The Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS)
'Residential Layouts'.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Part of the consideration of the outline application included means of access for the entire
site. The Council's Highways Engineer and TFL have considered the traffic and parking
impacts of the scheme on the surrounding area. The outline application was specifically
supported by a transport assessment and travel plan along with drawings detailing access,
turning (refuse vehicle swept paths) and parking (cars, bicycles, car club, motorcycle
allowance, 10% accessible parking provision allowance). In addition, appropriately worded
conditions of approval in respect of traffic management, parking numbers and allocation for
example were imposed on the outline consent.

It should be noted that matters relating to access and layout were approved under the
outline consent and access was amended under application reference
59872/APP/2015/1330. All potential transport impacts of the scheme were considered at the
outline stage with details for on-site matters being secured as part of planning conditions,
and no significant changes or differences are posed in the current application.

The reserved matters application for landscaping and appearance for this phase accords
with the outline permission. The hard and soft landscaping, including car parking locations,
road layout and widths, landscaping, as well as access, are consistent with the outline
proposal and details approved under application reference 59872/APP/2015/1330.

Whereas the proposal only provides 2 extra parking spaces for six residential units the
parking level must be viewed in the context of the overall parking levels for the material
store. In this regard, and given the proximity to Hayes Station 177 parking spaces to serve
189 residential units is considered acceptable.

The current application relates to appearance and landscape only and the details provided
for the consideration of the current application are deemed acceptable. The Council's
Highways Engineer has been consulted on the current application and raised no objection to
the proposals.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

It is considered that there are no urban design or security issues arising from the proposal.
The Metropolitan Police have been consulted on the proposals and raised no objections to
the details submitted.

7.12 Disabled access

All homes are designed to ensure adaptability to the changing needs of the household as
well as ease of access for family and friends who might have a disability, as required by the
London Plan.

10% of the units will be easily adaptable to wheelchair housing standards and will be
provided in a range of sizes reflecting the mix provided in the building.

1B - 4 adaptable units
2B - 14 adaptable units
3B - 1 adaptable unit

The scheme would provide for an accessible building on all floors with the provision of DDA
compliant lifts to access the upper floors of the building. Level access is provided from the
building to the external areas and to the car parking areas. All new doors and finishes will
fully comply with Part M of the Building Regulations.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



The Council's Access Officer has been consulted on the proposals and raised no objections
to the details submitted. The accessibility of the scheme is equal to that already approved
under the previous reserved matters application and accordingly the scheme is considered
to be consistent with Policies R16 and AM15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

As per the original outline approval, the applicant proposes to provide 5% social/affordable
housing within Phase 3 of the development. The quantum of affordable housing has been
dictated by the Viability Assessment and given that the Assessment has been independently
assessed and found to be robust, this level of provision is considered acceptable in this
context. It will continue to be secured through the accompanying S106 legal agreement. As
such the current phase of development is not required to provide affordable housing.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Trees and landscaping have been implicit in the scheme from pre-application discussion
through to the consideration of the outline scheme, and were considered as part of the
outline application.

The landscaping proposals include the provision of areas of hard and soft landscaping
around the building, including along the boundary of the site, and the planting of new trees
along the site frontage. The proposal also includes the permanent landscaping of the
amenity space.

The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer has reviewed the proposals and subject to an
additional clause requiring the need for an annual check on plant health and the need to
replace any planting which fails (which has now been included) raised no objections to the
proposals.

As such, the overall landscaping proposal is considered to be in accordance with the
character of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The sustainable waste features of the proposed development were considered as part of the
outline application. The application was supported by a Waste Strategy, Waste
Management Plan as well as drawings describing waste vehicular access into the site. In the
course of considering the outline scheme, the Highways and Waste teams confirmed that
waste arrangements could be suitably accommodated on the site.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Given the proposed change in phasing, it has been agreed with Council Officers that the
Energy Centre will be brought forward. The current proposal will be built to connect to the
site wide energy network following the construction of the Power House.

Conditions imposed on the outline consent included details for renewable energy and
sustainability. These details have been considered by the Councils Sustainability Officer for
the current phase of development and are deemed acceptable.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Flood risk and the drainage of the site, including sustainable drainage was considered as

part of the originally approved outline application, and was considered acceptable, subject to

conditions. The proposed development does not impact on this previous assessment.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise and air quality aspects were considered as part of the outline application. The
Environmental Statement submitted as part of the outline application considered the
potential noise and air quality impacts associated with the development and appropriately
worded conditions of approval were imposed on the outline planning permission. The
Council's Environmental Protection Unit confirmed they would continue to control these
detailed design aspects through the discharge of conditions and as such, there are no
issues to consider in the subject application for reserved matters.

Comments on Public Consultations

No public responses were received as a result of the consultation on this application.
Planning obligations

The planning obligations for the development of the site were secured as part of the Outline
Planning Permission and the subsequent application to vary the phasing.
Expediency of enforcement action

No enforcement action is required in relation to this application.
Other Issues

There are no other issues.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to appearance and
landscaping in compliance with conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission ref.
59872/APP/2013/3775 for of Phase 2 of The OIld Vinyl Factory Masterplan: The Material
Store.

The application site forms part of The Old Vinyl Factory site for which outline consent was
granted under application reference 59872/APP/2012/1838, and varied under application
reference 59872/APP/2013/3775, for the mixed-use redevelopment of the site.

The Reserved Matters application site is located centrally within the wider site, directly to the
south of the Power House (formerly known as the Neptune) which is a locally listed building

The Materials Store site has already been granted Reserved Matters consent under
application reference 59872/APP/2015/1329 (dated 7th August 2015). However the
applicant would like to make some changes to the approved scheme, including the provision
of six additional units with internal layout and elevation alterations.

The proposed development has been designed in accordance with the parameter plan and
design code, which were approved at outline stage. The design and appearance of the
building is considered to have a positive impact on the visual amenities of the surrounding
area and the urban form of the development has improved since the outline stage.

The overall development is in accordance with the outline consent and varies only minimally
from the already consented Reserved Matters Application. Therefore, the application is
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (March 2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Contact Officer: Ed Laughton Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Material Store, The Old Vinyl Factory
Blyth Road

Hayes

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref:

59872/APP/2015/3991

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

Major Page 104

Date:
January 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HNILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Annex

Plans for
Major Applications
Planning Committee

Tuesday 5th January
2016

www. hillingdon.gov.uk




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 511 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Demolition of existing 4-bedroom house and erection of 2, three storey blocks

comprising 10 two-bedroom flats, with associated access, parking and
amenity space.

LBH Ref Nos: 15988/APP/2014/4271

Date Plans Received: 03/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/04/2015
Date Application Valid: 09/07/2015 03/12/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee -5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



oszr1-wogopes Y 101d/JAGXNTTIG - NVId NOILYDO1 41LIS 9NILSIXI SV

ws ov o ‘oz o o NOILLVYWIOANI XQQIW ‘'SIAVH ‘QvOd 39QI4aXN 116
=)

L == . n . IV®0G2I:1 -:2|p2s

NTE VI A

Page 107

BRANGT

25

<
&



s s 3
£071d/48XNTIG

12\21 —xwg_"—émuds;
s FLcd

JpaTe
HOLEYWEOS] FHILSIXNG
ety
HOGIW SIAVH

Q¥ 3901w 116
L

) ) bt 2 Biama g
it e i s Lot g
B o et P 14 e 4 43

IYROO0L -
N¥Id NOLLY2OT
3LIS 9NILSIXI

DAL -2 2o

- e e e w

B

O] g e

D04 0 e

o

]

1Y SO01[ — s
NVd 30074
1S¥I4 ONILSIX3
15
E - s
- e —
3 1
Fan A
e

i
I_ 3
—

24,61 (woaddo) -:Aysuap aps
shoq ¢ -:aysuo bungiod

wrbsy /g —asnds Aluswo - uapaob soas

1ybspeg 2 wbsegt “VLO0L
© 7 wbspy w0 asay
whsgIy -0y punosb

{oaun jpudajul)
31TS 01 NOLLYGOWWOR2Y TWLOL

‘@3 JE7N Albsace'ntawrbseans - (xouddo) -pauw aug

e T

e ]

9NILSIX3 SV
NOILVWJOINI 'XAQIW
'SIAVH ‘QvY0d 39Q149XN 11

IVBOUT #pes
NV1d 30074
ANNOY9 9NILSIX3

116

é

NY1d GNNO¥9 / 3.

* 4 NOLLYA313 3Q1IS 9NILSIX3

e

:
i
Page 108

L} r =
-
| s
= - =
e
—_—
-
L | YN
x e = apis Buigsixa

T T —
Aty Buysixe

n
- mwaudmx



Page 1 of 1

Bl |
e |
o |
== |
OAD
UXBRIDEE F

__ proposed f;';n:t —."ﬂ._

17 elevation A |

4 =

B

O
—
2
Irlz-:‘. - - :,__.'-._ 1

proposed side
elevation B

- I—

proposed rear
elevation C

Famamey ) Wy

http://argyll:8080/documentviewer/viewdocument?file=D%3A%5CData%5CArchive... 24/11/2015



™ 4 NOILVYAIT3 391S 9350404d

QZC_H_r{}w._w n_{w ammo Dm_a_

2607d/48XNTIG |

1_0w___m_.=._ ¥ & DOO1/Da 14000 T
aive kL

warn

FOTLYWHOENT Q35004
e
XOAIW 'STAVH

QYO 390THExN (16
zarces

FLEAPRH AW

A\

;o et o R Ty e Y
iy oy o i i g i
[ ot St B4 i 1 AL

I — i — — - — -

108 2 e e s 1

TYS001T -HEw

NYId NOILYI01
3115 93504044

DO -1 358

L T A

OO - 3o

L e e

S1v14 Wo0odQ3d 2xz
®SLV1d WOOdQ3d I X €
(2 %2018) 43S0d0ud S
NOLLYWIOLNI XQQIW
‘'SIAVH ‘Av0d 39Q1d9XN 116

I¥SOOLIE e

2 A2074
(s4p14 woodpaq 291) NY1d 40014

1S4I4 4350404d

IYI0OL] O

2 X208 (4014 woo.p2 2) N¥1d 40O
aN023S Q35040dd

8 ZOHP{bmgw 3915 9350d404d

== L

LY S00KT -heos

2 22078 (s4o14 wooupaq 291) NY1d ¥0014

ANNOY2 Q3aS0d0dd

T¥ @0 -=aas

NYd nﬁ'_ 49 / mﬂ_.Hm n_mmonaﬂuan_




207d/d48XNTIG - S, HAYJ9010Hd 3LIS INILSIXI - 'XAQIW 'SIAYH ‘AvOd 39QTd9XN 116

Page 111



Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database

rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100012283

Site Address:

511 Uxbridge Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Hayes
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
15988/APP/2014/4271 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Major Page 112 | January 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address WATERLOO WHARF WATERLOO ROAD UXBRIDGE

Development: Erection of 2 blocks containing 52 one, two and three bedroom apartments,
together with associated parking access and landscaping, involving demolitior
of existing buildings.

LBH Ref Nos: 43016/APP/2014/4486

Date Plans Received: 22/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 30/12/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



MANOR FARM, TREDINGTON,
WARWICKSHIRE CV36 48
TEL : 01608 863317

‘www frameintermalional co.uk

INTERMATIONAL Ltd
SHIPSTON ON 5TOUR

Frame

PLANNING

A TAANI0IE | redetne: sl develcpmee Diurdary

Scale: 1:1250 (A1)
Revision: -A

Date: 20,10.2014

: WATE

PROJECT CODE
Drawn; RM
Drawing Mo: SUB-01

Author: YF

. '
St (e e
w2 ! U

e

. =
S| e s

i -E i

I e L —

PROJECT : RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT- 3-5 WATERLOO ROAD - UXBRIDGE

DESCRIPTION : Location Plan

PREMIER FOREST ESTATES LTD




- JuoISIASY

Z0-8NS 10N Bumesq

(1w) 0gz:) rejeng

o i a31s uo sBuipjing Bunsix3 - Aaaing : NOILAINOS3A 4171 S3LV.LSI LSTUOL YIINIU
reovzaEg L wwm0 | 39QI4EXN - AVOY OOTYILVM S-€ -LNIWJOTIAIA TVILNIAISIY : LO3roud
HIV O TEUOHFUESSUI WA T T _

swel

'HOLONIOENL "Wy HONYIN

P IWNOILLYNSILNI

SOMITING DMLENT

unidinas arg

ONINNY1d

[ ]

P

G301 TNOLLYNHALN SNV
ALMTA0HS 3L SRAVINEY DNAT SIHL
HONNETO 3L 0L SIHOTHALOD 3HL

Grand Union Canal
Page 115




a - ‘uoisinay L"€0-8NS oN Bumeig .

¥L02 01702 =eq WY umelg

i G117 S31V1S3 1S3HOL ¥IINIUd
Jora W uwea | 39qiygXn - AVOH OO TIILVM S-€ ~LNIINdOTIAIA TVILNIAISTY : 103roud

A O B0 ESIUIBURIE MAM
ALEE99 805L0 3L

HF SEAD FHIHSHIIMYM
HNOLS NO NOLSHIHS
NOLONIOIHL 'Y HONYW

3SNOHHVM - IEVA LVOR
P TYNOILYNYS LN

swel

SENOHZN - THYA ivea

WG I (L Uoadg ubieen) | PLOPOOE | O NDIBIATY

7 HPD 40 PRETRI) NIVEASIN ORI T

4360 DI AR IR Do
POADUAMA BIURINS A SIOOR Y - Y ROIE L | FLICEIED | 3 NDIBIASY

Hopn gree

ko
By Esuas0ma 10 duspum Sumeda o T
0 puEsaN .
20, vy ) 4ROA PADUGTID » [ 0 T
oMU - 3 W1 | SIOTBEE| O iNOREATY

ga-yo071d
a350d0¥d

i

|

]

:
WATERLOO ROAD

Grand Union Canal

ONINNVYd

Page 116

uydieq

ﬂm.—_iizgnéw_.z_mgu
ALH3A0MD FHL SNIVNTH DNAYHA SIHL
R0 NS0 THL OL S1HNHAAOD FH1




i e i
v - - 4 tivo i Srssmmn s

- Pl
10 o e ma vo | e
O TekE B LNUINGD
NYIdHaLSYI
SHHOM T¥YNYILX3
3oardgxn
'‘av0d OO THILYM S - €
Etig

B @3aLnn
S3LV183 L5304 ¥

sjoelyoly edeospuen ‘
ZZ_IO >Im<m E

a3 4 100 B ayea

g’;g PO SHECH G ey P ;ii

Ly i gg-xxo!
Tawey

024 Do 0.
FOMVULNT v BeD

- | bpaaesy s 0BR0 By

Lol 1 oy
* Y NOLLY L Ll
. 2 1

. i

Ay

....) \r
[ E

*ass%

_________________________
E WOHIA4D D

g}hﬁ.ﬁiﬁ?.“x 6“’1%; o b

e m_
I —
e oo . i
L Tom worysn
. L AR P Do
), PN un i
W e i _ i _
i

.....
ENLENY I HIAGIINNOND MO 03804084 |

o —

o
[\ﬂl _u
o




COPYRIGHT RESEAYED
OC NOT SCALE FAOM THIS DRAWING

a s s og¢glates

= Landscape Architects

: ; g i Fmmmc Lzd
= & Se— e she
e s 5 T _-- 1 A2 k. ._:"_' . REVROTE CATE ALTH
. - ' BARRY CHINN
CLENT
PREMIER FOREST ESTATES

CE3 CE0 o0 Cag 53 CEa D LIMITED
— e — O — — — N — — . — N — . — — N — — FRONCT
i = 3 - 5 WATERLOO ROAD,
| | ' UXBRIDGE
| e
o % EXTERNAL WORKS ROOF
] i TERRACE MASTERPLAN
BLOCK B
| cotG R
| b e | 04

ISSE ey | CHECKED  BAC

Page 118 I I

CADFUE M- Mohoeg

| B et ottty Eepons B, S St WIS
T 150 T £ - SR £ g i 8 e g



SueEAGY  LOZENS ON Bumeig ) . .
(ov) G214 - ofeog ’ 4 A Houiny g-9 ‘v-v - suoieas|g jeuonoas Bunsixy : NOILINISIA

e A3 e 3901EXN - AVOYH 0O THIALYM S-€ -LNIWJOTIAIA TVILNIISIY : 1D3roud SLRSILE 193 103003 Piend

3009 193roHd

O A
dvmee ey 1k

TR SEAD TSI
HOLS NONOLSAHE.
DARITHL T MO

B IWNOILYNETLN

saweld

DNINNYTd

'8-8 NOILVYA3T3 TYNOILD3S

CSSTAATUISHN X mndNmidIOqEAL 350101 ONILSIXT OuvASNUSIKE SSTIOHFHYM DNULSIXD . > FSNOHII CHVALYOS

3SMOHIHYM DNILSIXE

¥-¥ NOILYATTE TYNOILLDAS

FENOHTEM OHYALYOS 2 & ASNOHITHYM DNLLSIXS > 22140 NINCY DNLLEIT 3ISNOHONILSKT - SSN0H DITEN NIHG 100 JHL SONITTING TYITHIWNOD
1.3

SR NG NS0 3L OL SIMDIHASOD 3L




quosmey - TL0Z 8BNS oM Bumesg & .
a-a "'v-v it} 13| Boag pa d ! NOILJI¥DS3a al1 S3LVLSI 1S3H04 ¥IWIud

(ow) 5211 - s dCA Houny

07701702 58 W3 e » = |
bl awm_ﬂh . mnom ._mum_dzm I90I4EXN - AVOH OO0OTHILYM S-£ ~LNIN4O0TINIA TVILNIAISIY : LO3roud

awel4

|
1
i
z
§
L

e e st B

DNINNY T4

9-89 NOILYA3T3 T¥NOILO3S

SISNOHIYTM TUYALYCE

V=¥ NOILVAZTI T¥NOILOIS

SASNOHILEVM THVALYOS 2-H3078 ¥ -H20TE P SEMITNTE TR SN0 D OVOH WNFHONHD0H
0 WY

sl P
HE HN EER =R
a

CTRLIN TNCOLYNA TS IR |
40 ALNIOM THL SNV DN
.mﬁssmwﬂmr.—a_m.—xn_uiaog_




- | ‘o Bumesn
s T @-a ‘3-D - suoyEAd|3 |euol3oas Buisix3 : NOILAINOS3A Q17 S3LV1S3 1S3H04 HINTUd
mEoiez g A3 wa FOAINEXN - AVOY OOTHILYM S-€ -LNIWJOTIAIA TVILNIAISTY ! LO3roud
i i [ | |
o T 1 = F ._m__ _.ll.rl_ L | 5 |
B 1.#= y a
BT TYNCALYNESLN | |
sweld ) i — =
=S
= |1
2
. J 4 1
A 4
= “Tw Mwﬂ |
7/ .
SNINNYI4 N/\ AV\( g_&._

< ASN0H I8N NiHd 100 SHL

OVOH WYHONOOH ORNNOEOIE0L IHL NI HIOTE NINGY DNILSIXT - IEN0HTYM ONILEIXI

0-a NOILVAZT3 T¥YNOILOFS

S1V14 WILNIQISIY OVOH OCTHILYM

SL¥d TWIINIQISIY AFHOLS €
O W

iy |EHIHM | _EEE .
il A

ELGEGECIE | Vi (7

x T FSNOHIHYM DNILSIX3

=ESE
wi Hint

SEIANT FIUSFAN

Bd MHETHCD 3HL

ONNOEDHIVE JHL NI IENOHTEYM DNILSINT - S1V1d TVLLNIQISIH OVOH OO0 THILYM

0-0 NOILVA3T3 T¥YNOILO3S

SIvd AFHOIS €

o0t

Hig o m 0 e
d 7 | ] HH e 8

M
i

bis

ISNOHIHVM ONILSIXT

Page 121

30 ALHFSOH THL SNIVNTH SRV
SP4L N DS ED BML OL SAHSRIAICD FHL




Qusshey  ZZ0Z 8NS o Bumeig

(0w szu:k: owas 474 Houiny a-a ‘9-0 - suoneaa|3 jeucoag pasodoid : NOLLJINOS3A
L o 39aI¥EXN - AVOH OOTYILYM S-€ -LNIWAOTIAIA TVILNIQISIYN : LDIroNd ST EANIER AN HEN

T A T
WOOLE RO ROLEEHE
MOLERIOIEL WS ORI

P TYNOILYNEELNI

awel4
fosieins=——1 I I

e s | s | @ e
et e onrariem wrem

P ——r
[ e e T R

A *

i s s e 4 W
e e

o =1 =

ONINNY T4

d-a NOILVAZT3 TVNOILD3S

-0 X B-3%3078 ¢ | O¥GM GOTMALVM NO SYO0T8 WILNIOISTH SNLISHGE

ook nive

Page 122

0-0 NOILYAITE T¥YNOILO3S

- %3078 8- %3078 : 811 ASHOLE ©

AT TNOUYNHILNI TWYES
40 ALHTS0MA THL SHYIVTH DNINYE
SIHL MO NEISH0 3HL 0L SIHENEAS0D FHL




QuoEMeY  ZE0Z 8BNS CON Bueg

(o121 owos 4% woamy 4-d ‘3-3 - suoneAs|3 jeuonoas pesodoid : NOLLAINISIA
RENEaR. e 3901EXN - GVOH 00 THILVM S°€ “LNIWJOTINIA TVILNIAISTY : LDIr0Hd GLYE3LVISA 1EMOL U4

O LR S
217688 90010131

PR OEA) DML
H0LE NO HOISE
HOLOMOFUL S B0

P IWROLLYNEEIN

awel4

B ke vt

!

i

i
[

= e v s g e

s Lk e e gl [T S
s i di
pet e}
VSN o)
[ a—
T
ey

ey e o e i

e e

—— - —_—

DNINNYId

4-4 NOILVAZTE T¥NOILD3S

3800H ONBN 10T THANED OHVALYOE - 8- %018 ELEE SLY14 Y0 OOTNILYM -
2008 il

Page 123

3-3 NOLLVAZT3 TYNOILO3S

“B1%14 QVOH COTHALYM ¥- 30078 < §- %3018 < 3ENOH DITANG LOMME TYAINI9

g ey

G TYNGLLYNM 3188 B3rtvid
20 ALMIAOM 3L ENNINEY DRMYHG
EHL NG NOFE30 3H DL STHEMAOD 311




-3 ‘0N Buwesg
e H-H ‘9-9 - suoneAs|3 [euooag BunsIx3 : NOLLAINOSIA

Ll o 390I¥EXN - AVOH OOTHILVYM S-€ -LNINAOTIAIA TVILNIAISTY | 1D3r0Nd O] SRS AR N

T ST
U000 WO YL

Ther BEAT FHIHEHOUYM
HICLE O NOLSIHE.
NOLONIERL WAV HOKYW

PO TYRCELYNEILNI

aweld

-

DNINNYId

SSNOHIHYM DNILSIXT

Page 124

99 NOILLYAZT3 T¥YNOILO3AS

< BIVIEOVOMIM 30440 NIWDY SNILEXE ISNOHTeVIA SNLLEIXT P O HORE ¥EE ISMOH DITENG LONTE TWHaNID

ISNOHIHYM DONILSIXI

SHL NO NORS3D 3L OL SLHDIHASCD FHL




QueEsey  TTOZANS ‘oN Bumeg

(0w goics : eeog dUA Louny
FLOZ'0L 02 8geg AT MBI
Juvm 3002 L23roYd
T O MU LR L LR |
LEOE0¥ 20010 TR
THY BEAT FEHE MM

HIHILE RO NOLSARE
‘NOLDMEZHL WA M

BT WNGILY YN

sweld

ORI ..
S
e e T A R R

s e
o oy ARROR] —

B e e e R ]

— - —

ONINNY 14

H-H ‘D-9 - suojjeaaj3 |euoydas pasodoid : NOILAINOSIA
IA9AIHEXN - VoY OOTHILYM S-€ -LNINJOTINAIA TVILNIAISTH  LDAroUd

al7 S31VLS3 1S3U0d HIWIFHd

H-H NOIL¥A3T3 T¥NOILO3S

SV avoN [ M

TYNVD ONY 300188

9-D NOILYATT3 TVNOILD3S

LA TYRCILYNLEIN S¥e
#3 ALHI0HE IHL ERAEY SMIMYE0
STHL N NSTI FHL CL SIHOGAG0D FHL




@ ‘uoisinay
(1v) 00z:) 8leog

#0-8NS oN Bumeig

p g0y g ® V %o0ig - suejd 100} punoig pasodoid : NOILAINOSIA
R Wy wneo | 30aIIEXN - AVOd OO THALVM S-€ -~LNIWJOTIAIA TVILNIAISIY : LO3rodud
JLvm 3002 123royd
T oo

4l S3LVLSI 1STUO04 yIINIFud

PN 9EAD THIHSHOMEYM
HNOLS NO NOLSHIHG
NOLONIOESL WV HONVIN

PIT TYNOILYNGILNI

owe.l-

[raTes

[

B e Do K

[ ———

e =

ONINNYd

P

AL TYRGILYRHELN F00HA
ALHA0HA SHL SREVINEN DR SIHL

SSOHIEYA auvA LY08

IENOHIUYM - OavA 1v0E

O NEIESA SHL 0L SIHIHALOD SHL

S = .n,.cm”.m_ i
- e
e _D_. | B a..qm...f
i S
: = - a1
AOH : %
o . ]
3 e 1.8
¥ = | _|| | " ...7.
E ] o [ a
2 Sl i
M iyl bi oA
- - Ll
ritia L
ol B
i gy 4
e (i G
=0 i
| - i
o g
[ ]
~ 1
- ol
e = h._. #va...
= 1K
» : ol
Cle e il

Page 126




a uoisinay
(1) 00Z:1 8jedg
¥1L0Z°01°0Z "®1eq

TR

§0-8ns ‘on Bumeig
A Joyny

W umesg

30092 123roud

g '? V S}20|g - suejd 100|4 }s| pasodoid : NOILJINOS3A
F94REXN - AVOoYd OOTHIALVYM S-€ ~LNIINHOTIAIA TVILNIAISTY * LO3Aroud

all S3LVLiS3 1SIUO04 UIINIAUd

HNOO (UL HUEY M
LLEE0D BOBIL0 1AL

FHE EAD JHIHSHIIMEYM
HNOLE RO NOLSIHE
"HOLONIOSHL "Wy HONYIN

PIT TWNOILYNEILNI

swel

Buarm) ws0a ) S Sunedo o T
a5 GBI Ui
D B O GO PRERRS WHE T

patiass e 4| Sl0bagen] @

wonduneg -y

ONINNYd

\J

N

LN TUNCLLYNNILNI SR
ALMId0H IHL SHVINEY SRS SIHL
RO NDISI0 3HL O SIHORASOD IHL

3 oI

Page 127




Q iuoisiney

(1w) 00211 :8je0g
#LOZ'0L'0Z @eQ
J1YM

90-8Ns ‘0N Bumesg
4A Hoyiny

WY umeig

3009 103roud

€ ® V S$)20|g - sue|d 100]4 puz pasodoid : NOILAINOS3A
FOalygXnN - avod OOTAILVM S-€ ~LNINdOTIAIA TVILNIAISTY : LO3roud

all S3LV.iS3 1S3U0d ¥3INIud

AN OO [EUCHELUBIUIBLIEL M
LLEE0 40810 3L

PHE SEAD THIHSHDIMEYAY
HN0LS NO NOLSHIHE
NOLDMNIOIHL W HONYIN

P11 TYNOILYNEILNI

awe.

el

B 008 s iz s
s e gy
vy pan 13 waorko brssal | b

o pruses wsyg g payESapas 3 RO
pasnpe frou pawyEuSE)
e e {14 us0d0 ubaeal | b

e Ll
3 02 oy poeseasen LRSS MOPAM, T
pvamsn) 3200 BAE BANS- 3N T

atpa

i O] PO AR SENGA i
[PeAness FOAUEAUS 1840 WIS0R Y- W WIOH D | PSOETEED

el o ins w14y B

D2ay marscaieg 23 nunpays farsdo o ¢
B iR i
3. s 04 \EGR PADSRIES « @ WOOE T

Pastme 3 waE L | ELCs)

g sy

ONINNVY1d

P

N

AL TYNOLLYNSILNG w;.tu_
ALHI0MA SHE SNVIYEH BNIMYHO STHL
N0 RDIS30 IHL O SLHDIMALDD uI.-_

AL

LR

Page 128




d ‘uoisinay

(1v) 002} 3je0g
¥102°01°02 2keq
J1VM

£0-8NS oN Bumeig
A HJoying

uaolip '3 umelq
3009 123royd

€ B V s)o0|g - suejd 10o|] pig pasodoid : NOILJINOS3A
F9aRgXn - avod OOTIIALVM S-€ ~LNINdOTIANAIA TVILNIAISTY : LO3Aroud

4l S3LVLiS3 LS04 d3INIud

WOV O (RO BLLSHLIBLIEL A
LFEEDD BO9ED : 3L

FHF SEAD FHIHSHIMEYM
HNOLS NO NOLSHIHS
NOLDONIOIHL Y HONYW

P TYNOILLYNHILNI

awel

BB e 1) ) FIEI0N ) 0T
e o]

sown noesen

7 2003 494 BARTHI LSRRI WOBAM,
Ao Sse

L D PO (2401 I P

5198 U1 Auurary UGS PIVRAIRT S
WA us Ut pawIS)

s 4 ings Sopu &4 yors ancgn
Forkpsg

Dl 30518 46 Smdpupa Bupo% 0N 'E
w103 pugsea .

2, wmydes ) e pepueEe - 6 45T T

P

PR SUHIE {1 UORAG USR] | PLOTOLOT

e LA L U T

pownie - 3008 L | SHTwRrES|

— wag

ONINNVd

ALHZA0OHD FHL SNIVINEH SN SiHL
0 NEHS30 THL OF SIHSNHAIOD FHL

NI

B NCHEAY

varmany

*

Page 129




a :uosiey 60-8NS 0N Bumesg
e . 9’2 V S)o0|g - sue|d jooy pasodoid : NOILLAINOS3A
L) . i 411 S3LV1iS3 1S3YO0L YIINIAd
s sgor B imed | 39AIMEXN - AVOY OO THILVM S-€ ~LNIWJOTIAIA TVILNIAISTY ¢ LI3roud

O [EUCHRLIBILIBLURI MMM
LIEES9 B0SL0 - 73L

N SEAD FHIHSHIMEYM
HMOLE MO NOLEIHS
HOLONIOIHL WHYS HONVIN

P TYNOILLYNEZLNI

sweld

a0

V| memeees

Posoua - g wom L | SMTHTD)

- g

ONINNYd

)

P

QLN TYROILYNH LM 3NV
ALH30UD THL SNIYIWIH DNIMYHO SIHL

wioravsz [ ¥

fs

Page 130

HO NS30 3HU O SIHOMASOD 3HL |




G ey e - .8, %90]|g - SUOIEAd|T YMON + }seg pasodoid : NOILJINISIA
s ws wea | 30qIMEXN - VO 0O0TYILYM S-€ -LNINDOTIAIA TVILNIAISIY : 123roud

VM 3002 L03roud

L1 S3LVLS3 1S3¥04 d3INIdd

VO | BACRE LR IBLIE MM
LLEESS GO9L0 1 TEL

PNE SEAD JHHSHIMEYMN
HOLS NONOLSING
"HOLONIOZHL WY HONYIN

P IWNOILYNEILNI

swel- NOILVAIT3 HLHON

———

AT O1¥8v4 ONIaTINg g, DR

i

|
!
i
i
i
§

T

I

00 01 PRGN LS AN € YW 10
pa Buippep 15z SO0HE pljd SSqul) I} SSEE

I

i

i primpierig o IR . weas upues - BpERSMieq fucopig - opengnieq fuooeg

e 5 U ey g D m
SRl R
R AL P §
O 8% 4 PRI
Ay ey o8 BN Jagn 24 4NA 34Ty ¥

E
£
j

e —
s o swapn S o € oy
SR 00 I POGURIEE - § WA T T J00id P 7
DTN SHHE L] GIATHD O WOATH m
[re— o ueqmamy —
g 898 pauleiied weg SoUY B30 PU LIS b iy
1 iRy joo
ONINNY1d Buze Suppe spauiy [ p————" - soiE 1N 59400 E

= =

Page 131

NOILVAZTE 1SV3

|
|

i

¥ IE
TN -

i\

11

T

AR o

Q2L TWYNOILYNEZLNG 3
ALNIA0HA IHL SMVINDY SHMYET SIHL
NGO NS F0 SHL 0L SIHIHADOD 3HL




n D

Date: 20.10.2014
Scale: 1:100 (A1)

1 WATE
Revisiol

M et
il
T
il
'MWWE
g7l
SeEeEa i
e = ;
B
1}
i \IIIIlliiiiii’il!IH||||||EiiEithl||1||||||Eiiiii}|||||
WWWZ g
E i :
= IIIIl!lII [|1||J|II|I] o *‘g %
' : I
HH“N”"NWHmHN"nmum S '

n: RM
Drawing No: SUB-101

PROJECT CODE

PROJECT : RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT- 3-5 WATERLOO ROAD - UXBRIDGE oprw

Author: YF

DESCRIPTION : Proposed North + West Elevations - Block 'A’ -

PREMIER FOREST ESTATES LTD




a ‘uoisingy Z04-aNS :oN Buimeiq

(1%} 00L:L @e2g 44 Hoyiny -.V. ¥00|g - suoljead|3] jse] + yjynosg —w@mﬂa—o.-l : NOLLdIYJS3a
PL0Z°0L°0Z 3180 wy cuveig | JHATHEXN - AVOH OO0THIALVYM S-€ -LNIINdOTIAIA TVILNIAISIY : L23roud

JivM 3002 103roxd

all S31VLiS3 1S3VO04 HIINFud

HO OO OSSR MM
L1EE00 S0AL0  TAL

PN SEAD FHIHSHIIMEYM
HNGLS NO NOLSdIHS
HOLONIOTHL WiV HONYIN

P TYNOILYNEILNI

awel4 ‘AdX O1dav4d ONIdiNg

ABJILIS SO
: Gusppeys e SUpE pRp Jaqua M SR i 898} peuraied yeg ¥UQ 998 pUBE LONANS
n.:alalasza..“:it; puBlS & Kuoweg - Auoeg Burrejsy Blppep Mgl | (LIS PEsSa0a; - JakE| pRLIBINE SN
o8 00 S0
10 BoaRI0l pamALY {4 w080 wieedd | FLOZBURE ¥ NOIEIATY
P e wis W PHEIORY B WS
e e (L4 oAg A | HOZHIGZ | O NOISIATH
0T Hg DT U Mg |
AL SO U B - 3 0T T
WL YT (VTR AR SETRHOLE ] B
A UL HA0 RIDHY 8 - i ET] OE20SE [ D NOISIALE

Dl O | SIBDOPTD| O ROMARY

weadag mrq ] ]

NOILVAZT3 LSV NOILVAZT3 HLNOS

‘Page 133

Y

BN

:
8
g

N

LT

I

|

LI mle
—_—

I

ALY TROLLYNETANS v
ALMIdOMd FHL SN DRYEd il
HO NSHS30 3K OL SIHDHALCD THL




Q ‘uoisiney £01-9NS ‘oN Bumerq

- .8, 20|49 - suoljeAd|3 Yjnos + }S9M pasodoid : NOILLJINOSIA

(1v) 00L:1 :Bje0g 4A Hoginy
FLOZ'0L 02 91ea we uverg | JATNEXN - AYVOH OOTHIALVYM S-€ ~LNINdOTIAIA TVILNIAISAY : LO3Arodd
avm 3009 L23ro¥d

all s3Llvis3 1S3¥04 ¥3INIud

O (B BH R WA
LIECAY BOSLO: 3L

THE BEAD THIHSHIIMEA
HMOLS MO NOLSAIHS
"NOLDHIOSHL Wevd HONYW

PIT IWNOILYNYIANI

swel

Lm0 pavRIZal LA SANTUS PUT

R g oy

‘A3X O1d8v4 ONIaTNg

FEgLnS J0
Buippep owz BOQIS PER ARG ITTTE )
was Bupung - peiEnieg Auoien - apRAsEG Auosied

il =

%3 B28] puS|g UORANS
=~ e pELIEI JaIng

20 90w pauaied yeg
Buzen fuippes sequ g [BLISE Passany

| m —

GILONT WNOLLYNEDIN 3VHd
ALMTEAONA TH L SKIYWTH DHIMYHE SIHL

NOILVYATT3 HLNOS

NOILVATT3 LSIM

HO NUETG 3M) OL SIHOHASOD FHL




Works

: - 31.4m
5 6 1 J
i
//

2t0 4

Jed M

! Rockingham Wharf

I

3

" 1 Dolphin Whg‘rfx\

Dolphin
Bridge
House

House

;
'
i
‘
'

'/ 31.4m

|
N !
)
;
;
4/
;

'

it

£

it
a3

¥ - i

i
Y 5

Waterside f

!{  The General Ellio

I
Waterloo Wha

|
1

(PH)

:

31.7m

" "Boat Yard
Uxbridge Wharf ||

A

‘- -
. d
. s
A
5 . B
; . B
¥ 5 > ;
i ol s A
‘ ‘ T
! e '
‘
K a ik
. ~ ' R .
. =y v Ty
’ e s
‘
: ~---.. RUSHESMEAD
¢ S
: M
‘ n-
S
/

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

rCjub
Club Works I‘: g
- INIRRNRARENED B
i B
‘:;u Wke| Wks ‘ Works ‘ | \ § ‘- E
Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Waterloo Wharf OF HILLINGDON
Waterloo Road Residents Services
. Planning Section
Uxbridge Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale: g
43016/APP/2014/4486 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major P29e 135| January 2016
LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address MATERIAL STORE, THE OLD VINYL FACTORY BLYTH ROAD HAYES

Development: Approval of reserved matters relating to the appearance and the landscaping
of Phase 2 of The Old Vinyl Factory Masterplan: The Material Store as
required by Conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission ref.
59872/APP/2013/3775.

LBH Ref Nos: 59872/APP/2015/3991

Major Applications Planning Committee -5th January 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



L R
e DApL TR R L of Py

FEmod
] ™ g

@ Ay sy
SRAAT e

PUNOIBMBUY | sostiv 0 oo timms

8 d-200-00-vEOFL
o o Buanep

ueid ays
Sumer

BU0IS [eLRlEW AUL
e

Bunuelg 104

st il

e | s | v

SLPED voqrddy Buasty
SHI08L Bupwgpausay v
SHOLEZ vty sl B

_.P‘I . ._w.

ZLOZ Yole| pajussuoy

uipling plojaie syj .

W

S0 FELT |
ey a5

/ 'Page 137




Whaen an e 3 srared by g 1 Sareet o o
L sos g 1 o b b

COM Reguiations 2007

o]

.
P

Page 138

ase
| prpose of issue

The Material Store

For Flanning

project

‘drwing o

C i

14034/01-001-P

date Z30AE

Sieed

2

Shared ool Garden
Refer Io Landscape Drawings

scale @Al 10128

FENGRCLID Sty €

newground

[T

70 Comeroan et

. =43 0

Level 1 Plan

125



punoibmau T
THITAOLAEE D [ =1 i apes
o oIy | ™ umep

:| d-ZL0-LO/PEOrL

war ou Bumep

|3AaT JusWaseg
Gamep

210}g [EUSIE BYL
sfoad

Buuueld o4
anss1 ga sodand
| e ] Hep

wadumny) prode ) e 3Ll
e e ST
00z suogenBar WO

STLI

- 13Aa



5191 MO "M G B0

2l0jg |eusje sy |

SRR AT _ P )

o Sty - SUEROBL
Ry SR Y SLILONR

a Ll

hﬁ@_‘af

)

)

b

4

»ob o) )
PofoE B3

4
£
]

- .
u B ] o 8 o of 4 ] s 0 A e A - g e 1w ki o, s A M AR T - oD A, i D L LR
. e D 31 - SO ) e ey ey o ot Buree MU ouiyeq e gy LTS 0 SIS0 1D W - puroun: e e - ‘Pt mon
u::egg i o Hipen, sl HEPIA UL Oy~ 0400 PRI e o4 - moiod g pU ol 3k 5 “siogenoy “miogroy * Ly SINDPLL [ISEEG SEEONNOL - T
e WEHIUG PHOS pRUNTO P A 2 g?!%ﬁ?ih«.ﬁl..i.au& 24 ‘siizeIcy paae B EEONG S oo ica: i sanice | ¥ e Ay 4
. P o iy ey R fdoueg Aoy bl yp o Sz e e s 0P = = BT ey
AP g i IS K0 O 0 0 - g o ﬁ%ki&:guihu{ AT 3 e e [ e SRR AL T - 3300 "SR PR
F s gt I 3 = el gy noumisndde P ) iy Hopu. = eE
SLOENL AL R {4 L AR s dea iy it TP 4 HEII00 © IR0E pUe & HE | EL DA DUE $3000 UL g Waisis- o jaued pazed ooy e puz Joop 10 ULDPE NN YIU0L 08 SUSIRAD aissnr.a.au—.aeu 5 Arepuooas 'uioos Buzed
4 WBGHIE LR 3000 paomg AP MR DR A Hodtag MRAUOIR] PHIZOE - GL PRl 31000 LLNUALIYE DOYEOO0: DD 20U paTe T izo0d | v AR DRE00 0500 ey
dr pameg o) = sfgas sliuay -oliog Bugnng * g5 Ay R DR L WEEEE (b 0L L Of = O oy T Bt e pagms "y
i oo L RS PR TR B S A AN I 00 Wi - LS sy n PRAAED Do i i, b b B B, A LS ORI 00U PUTRID FEIAANO, -
. -  guioune POAHIE B 00000 LLIRFRIL s - wmane L2y “hh et Easiaga!-ﬁ.% Yo - !Sxxici AR S0R] DRI SR AT
v n_.._.oc.‘NO..:wmQVw. s ¢ oo s u.!inl -a-:E ! i K reates e oKD ] RASIE 6 40 S sm.c:.ius iy ] e katie bl or o
NECOYA NI :..___ AT 1Y L i!s%h!i ooy g L e § D :
" == I R Bty 004 ub, SRS Ll O R MO A T ped < i A Duszn) . Sury sip, (B pamL iy
S ogs uosaoSs y&nns iggﬁﬁigﬁﬁ&i? AR SN R ADURAED D v S SRR RIS S RUTARE Dad B i - 4 ) " e i P
e a) s 2 i A 4+ 07 e Buey « [} s ' - o frcseys .-..n-.i..,a&u..s.aoﬂk iy Wangtin (Ft O L0 DD
Uolieas|3 1583
susep | oo

Page 140




BSIIRAAEN e 5309 Gk U P B D TagyEy parRatun “pan) IO 0L e, AmIRISAE BAIRDEIN Ay |3 ) o4 Burprmysne
s ity AT G S Ao R puE SR e s B o PR O B i el FE 0 TR e - D R ] UL RN J0) S D A LR G - Sl
Vo v Kootz it o TN Did - BADOE 490 atieusi o 56 0 Bt 10, o0 1R TR Beitina PR i i By ﬁiwas.ux..h! gy s o i - § . i
u::o.-n;o: L E 54 A S O - et Rinsipu, LU - Mo oparsin, L .00 - pam) B RGeS o pona; L g pe e Uentng Al POSs IMag-S
s > A S DR Dt i i cesuesmt - g 8 Sdu ou s . aits i o Supeusis pue fasd 2074 3 e z
i i A - A AR R 45 ) SBunivso b L UenBuba IIBSA i g sgéésﬂiﬁa B g sty danah s pnes AR phisd OERAM A G - 103 “EBuT
o ¥ By Bunoyiarn ) s o Sy AL : i Lo i P WA 91 A O VU] Dt i
sbe £ oI 40 BT LR 0 - IRES N ) woutmwady. “wmord EopRRa Yp e R DER S il 4 i F3 o Bl [Oas DS Do 100D SITE
S0z ) e SZLL WD aes ARG s () PN A0 [ Al o R g [ G| B GBAR AL 0 BRI - Ltk e U0 Bl (Ui fEUKE Bl SIS by PR U EROOD i (i W|eiE fanj it W 8 Sustnip iz o H Ampu0saE Uoos tiamaay o) Booel
s At g ...?z_ b sw.h_a._-.._..o ’ = g 500D DoE(D L Lty P e it s . o i Borioes ; il ®
i AU .- 0000 . wR0p, . s e s . prs e
e v tiap LML PIIROD 102D T e T "o LK LT PRSI0 o P 2 Eéﬁﬁeix_.ﬁ wopu el jmelay Satni o] el e £350s gy
s b _.n.a“j w noqy e aiop s, ) EvntaﬁstuSoEus.n : = W e st o o v i umneds eparioal uopsuae pge sog
P 0y SEeIvE Y o e ada HUG Pt - G a0y B 52000 Y3 i) et o)
g d NﬂOuNO.... veort IenEap: 367 L £ 4 usnm&am samiesd s 50 2215009 Aimhazaid wmALG Soied nac apR ] et i
R ] AT “repchis Wl i, I S O] O DO DR I . s 2 L Odd LT 40 ST
... Lo S ol s B s g wsids fotiton o s sope 0 Loy e e P, e aouuinadde LT i DU} DU L JLes Soguic e
. WMEALNGE S3L000 {00 pantiayms 2k rding Dapng Yo 4eb oo Pl mop P SPBD 06 o
e mapu o k sy sz MO ety g - | YT SO L I 94 Bugeon 1o

uoneAa| 3 Yo ’
Sovap op

I0}g [BUISIENN SUYL
oot

Buiuue|d
s o edind
™

g N S0
ifnsﬁas..

f)
_|_ 1 ooy i

Page 141



ausmdde W WA N Ut D 0 DS Doy EHABU PanL B ] sk L 4 20 b s DT
. rhming el ] 84 ¢} mana i [ 8 Aitgou e - F 1 . pu £ a1 mana urinsdin §
LR v o 19 A g ] : 2 - LS 03 2% BLOpf s | Pussis ssgand } HEB . | aaumipasdn 0 E L D] = 00703 Blay "y ok U A RN 10 [ 05 99 - .00 i s o e,
u::o.-go: ] Wi B 3 IO R S - L Aol LR - Il RSpu 0 - A Wity PUR Fall Fqin IR R D W - pueoumE PO ] FRT G e e WU Bl I 5 3} T i oy v i adoud P Sl
s Ein o MR Pl CAFTIN Ul DURIEIAET IFgS ‘b0t 1100 of Supes Do paTreNel Sag o1 ejes Bumts 0 caruedef ud ety padube 10 Sassud el R B b e e B i U et 2
ottt ikl opluu o ey i CORE: Fsazde apsiiet) - wroge ddauesy ) Az 0 oy s e (A= (SdEmC LB ARl unngpR A L O, MDD 001 BN JURORIDR o YEe-Br [ e T besemint it |
g i adsigh L e L L ) AT 00 O P - T POQE [V gt e PTG E sl ed bl U i P R o
= - SR 1 L AL 4 - I R Buepacde N ) ung P00 L [T IELG DR ) X HEPUEN ey B0 008 FITURARE Dl “ROED SIXE
ST, R GZEE e | e s B e L s wl s v vl Sl i W G o s A e ot s ay o el
Il pot oo paal ey ARG PRARE - 91 A e waleis g oy ey
o pieE va - |k suspehe Aysasond A IELL 34 - 1045 "4 o8y fupyng . Dasigh sisep DO (v LAMAIE it PO oL Mg Megim puliatnd Bt 508 Blg oh s BUm o Joiuiny, s
- Rz B et sBunisds e e -t W R | R RO ~ B
. o . £ _ h; e e g
Y d-£00-20/ #E0F L oS o1 Spac0n ] DM nioen BMATAN KOS FURISY MODUIN RO BN 0P i i P IR NI o BIRRE "o x e i} 20 oS i)
i * AP USRI * T 1B |9 PGS WS PR L] WA I eapeis Aimaadcid CITUraTTE paR3 TSRS wramandin asaw A (R O SRS .43 R sl z Sty
8 = . O YoM, ek Ly atali 54 e AP FRE0 0) NREILY PSR SRINDTY, PR B0 S 2 - ) e o - s By R 8 BPERIAEA B PR UENEE S B e :
I S 04 BGHN v LRI SImBUGOR DG MUSINNG HOTCIE  FUD MODUU 9 BHSA) TRG 20 § 01 BUROLBNG oS B D30 MY 10 UL, AR EAIT 401 U i
o + napifiwars duufi mdan,y o fass g g i sourmedie srpias oy GRS e peaue et Do s . PIERLY R b ol e e
seelans oy Suep - 22 S A e - 02 40 Bugsey 5t asnos e ard - 100 e o4 ALk 3] - ) g ooy Jaing g LEBRS S 1N 1 o Slbos ey
uoneA|3 yinog
21015 [BUSEY BYL
e
Buwue|d
0881 o deodied
L wewemamesn | s awe Al
= g
gy By - SUEERIEL 3 g §
iy SRR SR
e r—— ey == ———— = = g - m—— L
il | s sm—s— L
_- -— ; _- £
—- 2 _- -— 5w i
R—— C e mm— w0s
_- H -— -" P
—_— - — s
_- i _- :-— e 3
—- i : _-. 7w il
sl [ | g e
pusabia ang i - =
___.\..\ ] op ) iy
e’ 1
B
.‘__O / .
£ bt
: gl b ]
v a
— —
Qi T e e e
rrr—— T
g
v




- aouniaddy e pang OO0 LIRS aouReaide | ssusiedse et o g 04 B P
: e T 3.1 TREURE 2 BN, B9 01 10403 "SRUe EUR 81005 [ ot latals . 1985 Bef - GHOGE JAT] i S0 ARG 1883 ad - B Pt g MODU (A & - IS aaunmadde .
DI ﬂ . i ; e B o gy ’ ey s ; 3 P— it e b i s promp—" peie i
I } (7] ORI IO iz MDD, U O o - e A TR 10 WADU0D W0 9 - puroung. mn P O ou .
punoiomau WL - HAOD0T PHOS PASTHEA) Pt soauadie mpuT *Gates e 03 By 13l peremaEd Sy o5+ inopa 'Bume; a5t panuenDt 9gd o Fucneon) panfle i cbusaid L pUVA e D3 pasdbe e shucad uoepuae  sbu - 2 ol ol wogans. grmuley 2
" ssuvaadde B2I0UD7) - SAqE ASoue; Eu!»ﬂa...aa sl U g edeind Ul Aerois wonEs e L) W Sopum 27000 W) e edeine of wieubs uGay Doy, ST o4 - 4o el
i i i Ry I e ey o R i o rop Wk S 58 g oo vt
SUBTIGH 18k wien Gzl iyDewss | eoqe seurd jmew peneul o s g s o Jaued Y  zow o e sars oy 10 BRI - g0 plar o Ao ot ¢ iy ple oo g o il " iatagon . . ; s e g RpCoaE "uacs SRRy 0 Bued
| g}.ﬁﬂﬁ-ﬁii de e IVOTRY PAIMIE - b paRaTu DIIPs Noi0a poe ] parwit Ypw msls Y AMARUE FHEOD NG b e ¥afiay nj BLIDOiG) WANSAE WOk
g pepes v o it Amadnd MOPCAS YT O - 000 EELY, ol Buipang A FIO00 DAIEH Ui WAIRAT 0 g 3 - e, BURIHE PARoS
5 ue ] AR ud < B3 s feincald A 3-8 R e o, i B freg
g st g shumea UDLeI stumado R I it - Aimi3udo Al WNASIg FOW0R IN0ED U O - INOEO ODRESTR s G s ik Dby PG
Y d-¥00-20/ yE0f L par o) v 1&.!.&;98;:!@ P R o YR P A (USRI DL £ S Py P S0 YR e s k i i r s
4 (PSR OO - TF ] isga«ﬂ.ﬁ WAL Lsbattid R0 PR e autenide AT IKAUIS 9 N0 MBI Linasing BAECS JN0RS HoEk YT 64 10O s gadn
i o e, WL L g et iy wan [ S ] GG PRl DR A L2 o - oL X E H R oise Bupey Butty g ek feveesung
B ad g 0T i Wik Aetaudind DUSS USRI s R pUn = ] S FRERSdE Dpart 10 eSS ey dtaeg P wfuns
2 nops RGNS PSS 2l DA o S 4 UBBIE BUSARG (BB i S, L0 shy B INOK 'DPRILNEG [BOIE CAPUTNSE Jdd arpmnd neay s et - ot pus el Sussey  swserBupy o ripiinlu gy o P
Hrdad 0 sty A Y R Wil B DPIRNITY - 21 S RS < () = eMOp S0y ISl - £
uoheAR(g 1S3
tae
ue

I
|
|
|
|
|
‘
|
|
I
:
4

|

i
b

§ s s i e oy e e :
g Aunrdy
e — S S T Vo
—
i

'

b

4

4



ETSub Sta

T

~t .
3 R T 4
P T - - 4
¥ ME - %, f]
s o ~7 i
i 3 i
T . ~ ’
i “'-\ p1 ‘“‘ &
3 o Sy
s ~ ~ TR
N G S g Y
s HL, S %
ey T ‘“\
I3 T
, .
I3 Py
‘ “ g
= '
Y o R

s '

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
[ ] site boundary Material Store, The OId Vinyl Factory OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. B|Yth Road Rgﬁ;:ﬁ:‘:; gg?{:gﬁs
This copy has been made by or with Hayes Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . . .
Copyright. Designs and Paterts Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 59872/APP/2015/3991 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database Page 144 J 201 6
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey i
100019283 Major e CUNDON




	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meetings 28 October 2015 and 18 November 2015
	Minutes of 18 November 2015

	6 511 Uxbridge Road Hayes 15988/APP/2014/4271
	7 Waterloo Wharf Waterloo Road Uxbridge 43016/APP/2014/4486
	8 Material Store, the Old Vinyl Factory Blyth Road Hayes 59872/APP/2015/3991
	PART I - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee

